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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is a Hong Kong-based premier retail operator that specializes in the operation of
mid to upper-end department stores in Hong Kong. The Group's two SOGO
stores in Hong Kong including the flagship store in Causeway Bay (“SOGO CWB"),
the largest and leading department store in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim Sha
Tsui store ("SOGO TST"). With an eclectic range of well-selected products and
brands, SOGO TST has established itself as the favorite shopping destination
among tourists and local consumers in the area. Characterized by the “one-stop
shopping” concept with unparalleled brand equity, the Group’s department stores
offer a wide variety of goods ranging from daily necessities to luxury products as
well as personal care services, such as beauty salons, in a comfortable shopping
environment.

Following the renewal of the Sogo trademark with Sogo & Seibu for a further term
of 20 years in December 2018, the Group is ready to take its business to the next
level in the coming decades with the sole and exclusive use of the lovable
“SOGO" trademarks in Hong Kong for conducting its operation of department
stores. As part of its continuous efforts to enrich customer experience at its store,
the Group acquired the Wa San Mai Japanese restaurant in July 2018 as a
complementary facility of the flagship department store in Causeway Bay to
provide a convenient alternative for customers. To capture the rising purchasing
power in the East Kowloon area, the Kai Tak Project commenced ground breaking
in December 2017, with its foundation construction work progressing satisfactorily.
The construction of the twin blocks of commercial buildings that upon completion
in 2022, will host a new SOGO department store along with other retailing,
entertainment, dining and lifestyle facilities in East Kowloon. The twin-tower is set
to become a new landmark in East Kowloon and will further strengthen the
Group's foothold in the Hong Kong retailing market. With the Group's strong
financial position and operating cash flows as well as its unparalleled brand equity,
the Group is always prepared to take on new investment opportunities to drive
sustainable growth and long-term prosperity.
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Corporate Information (continued) 3% & ¥ (&)

Head Office and Principal Place
of Business in Hong Kong

20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Principal Banker
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Solicitors

Reed Smith Richards Butler
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1212

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Closing share price at 31 December 2018: HK$11.86

Market capitalization at 31 December 2018: HK$17,813 million

Website

www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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Operating Results & & ¥ 4&

HK$'000 F7& 7T : 2018 2017 2016 20150l oA
o Lo Continuing Continuing Continuing G
operation operation - operation
Eg & R

REEK REXG RERE

(Restated)  (As reported)
(&%) (andRe)

Sales proceeds 4 Fi8 38 : 11,707,732 10,316,508 9,605,804 13836382 13,616,709

Turnover & ¥%8 4,358,010 3,755,092 4,671,971 6171393 5969740
Profit before taxation 4 % il 3 £ 2,162,376 3,412,689 1,938,603 2,675,411 2,831,865

Profit for the year at;ribdtable to _
‘owners of the Company e 2 _ : e
- AFRARARE AT - 1,690,070 2875674 1,600,907 1,914,392 2,143,994

Ba51c earnings per share (HK$) i _ :
@Hﬁ%z&&ﬂ(rﬁn) 2 1.08 : 179 11005 (ki tes s

Total dividehdspersharé(HKce‘nts) : e G ; :
TR B A E (B IL) S 665 nii ' 530 637 63.2 5.1

For the year ended 31st December BiZE + = A=+—HILFE

Continuing operations refer only to the Group's department store operations in ~ FHEL L EBEBAEEBD N T — TR
Hong Kong following the spin-off of Lifestyle China Group and disposal of ~Z—+tF S #FflfahBEEBE R HEFEHESEE
Lifestyle Properties Group in 2016 and 2017 respectively. B -REBNBRERAERS -

Turnover Growth for continuing operation IS EEE £ o E X FHER

j CAGR 6.8%

FESERE
5000 : _ ; TG e T
¥ bt : L | : : SR
Tt T s : 13,755
: i _ 3 353 3,584 ! 3 482 i :
T iz000 : - _
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Financial Highlights (continued) 81 # 2 (&)

Gross Profit in respect of continuing operation I E KL E £ 2 £ F

HK$ Million (o)
BESET j CAAGR 5.1/0
FHEEERE

i 2,633 2,751 v 2,831
2,000
1,000

0

2014 2015 ¢ - 2016 : 2017 2018

2018 Sales Proceeds and Growth By Store
“E-N\FRMEES ZHEMSHRERER

Causeway Bay g Tsim_Sh_a Tsui
g SaA 2P
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o Sales revenue growth once again
outperformed the broader market and
widened its lead over the Hong Kong retail

. industry ;

. HEWAREBRENERBTS  BAT

. The popular “Thankful Week” events held in
May and November drew overwhelming
responses from customers and sustained
strong sales momentum :

. REART— R0 S8 A R EEER

0 WHRERYHES A : L ' 3t HEFEZERNARES
. CVISION, the outdoor full-HD LED . . Cosmetics and skin care products
advertising screen on the building facade ! = continued to be the main growth driver
~reinforced the flagship store’s position as a e IS . bR ERERBEREEERY N

prominent retail landmark in Hong Kong
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Thankful Week once again induced great enthusiasm among
customers and maintained overwhelming momentum by bringing
fascinating shopping experience to every customer.

-5 —
o s 2 E WA WK (F8) BSogo & SeibuT 31 5 A H
% 5 - Sogo & SeibuR BB TEEEER rSOGOR ¥ | R @a
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Sogo Hong Kong, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a new trademark licence agreement with
Sogo & Seibu, pursuant to which Sogo & Seibu agreed to grant the
sole and exclusive licence to use the "SOGO” trademarks in Hong
Kong for a further term of 20 years.

2% o
<P SS®

£= 8 35 & 3B SOGO Rewardsﬁ%ﬂ%?ﬁﬂ‘iﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ'ﬂﬁ?ﬁ  EMEEHN
B R %2 §570,000 % °
The Group continued to reinforce its SOGO Rewards program

to increase customer engagement with its number of
registered members exceeded 570,000.
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Lau Luen Hung, Thomas /%5
Chairman £ /%

The year 2018 was a turbulent year for the global market. The world
economy was off to a strong start in 2018 but growth momentum tapered
off in the second half of the year as escalating US-China trade tensions and
rising interest rates spooked investors and dampened consumer
sentiment. The weakening Chinese yuan and a slowing Chinese economy
also took a toll on the consumer spending and undermined the nascent
recovery of retail market in Hong Kong.

Leveraging Lifestyle International’s unrivalled brand equity and superior
retailing platform, the Group implemented customer-centric strategies
such as the continuous enhancement of its robust loyalty program to
reinforce customer loyalty and refine shopping experience with more
seamless and engaging interactions in the face of external uncertainties
during the year. These well-planned efforts and sound business strategies
contributed to the Group's repeated outperformance against the broader
retail market of Hong Kong.

As part of our relentless efforts towards strengthening our position as a
leading department store operator, the Group stayed focused on
optimizing its operation and fortifying its strong brand equity during the
year. In July 2018, the Group acquired Wa San Mai, a premium Japanese
restaurant located in the same building as the Group’s SOGO department
store in Causeway Bay from a connected person, as a complementary
facility of the department store to providing a convenient alternative for
customers.

Over the years, the “SOGO" brand operated by the Group has become a
household name in Hong Kong and has established a lovable brand image
that appeals to people from all walks of life. We are pleased to announce
that in December 2018, the Group entered into a new trademark licence
agreement with Sogo & Seibu, in which Sogo & Seibu granted the Group
the sole and exclusive licence to use the "SOGO" trademarks to operate
its department stores in Hong Kong for a further term of 20 years. With the
renewal of the iconic “SOGO" trademark, the Group is ready for the next
stage of business growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) ¥ [F 3R & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's turnover rose 16.1%,
thanks to a robust sales growth of both the Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha
Tsui store. Notwithstanding an improvement in the Group’s core
department store operations, the Group however saw the net profit
attributable to shareholders decreased by 48.8% to HK$1,690.1 million,
which was largely caused by non-core operations or one off transaction,
including a fair value loss on the group’s financial investments, absence
this year of the one-off gain on disposal of a subsidiary recorded in 2017
and a lower revaluation gain in respect of the Group's investment
properties. Earnings per share for the year were HK$1.08. The board of
directors is pleased to recommend a final cash dividend of HK cents 37.0
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK cents 29.5 already
paid during the year, the amount of dividend per share for the year 2018
totaled HK cents 66.5. While we have kept the aggregate dividend amount
for the full year unchanged, the dividend per share however was higher
than the dividend of HK cents 63.2 in 2017 as the number of issued shares
has decreased due to share repurchase during the year.

In view of the current economic uncertainties brought by the rising trade
protectionism, weakening of the Chinese yuan and uncertain Brexit
prospects, management remains cautious on the outlook for the retail
market as 2019 is set to be a challenging year for Hong Kong's economy
against the backdrop of a slowing economic growth in China. In spite of
the market headwinds, our team will stay focused on implementing its
long-standing strategies to optimize operation, strengthen customer
loyalty and provide a more engaging and seamless shopping experience
for customers. As a leading retail operator in Hong Kong, the Group will
strive to stay ahead of the curve by bringing forth a precision marketing
approach with a personalized touch for a deeper connection with the
increasingly sophisticated customers in the fast-evolving market.

The foundation construction work of the Group's Kai Tak Project has been
proceeding satisfactorily and the construction of the twin blocks of
commercial buildings that upon completion in 2022, will host a new SOGO
department store and other retailing, entertainment, dining and lifestyle
facilities in the new Kai Tak development area, East Kowloon. We believe
that the project will become a new landmark in East Kowloon and further
strengthen the Group's foothold in the Hong Kong retailing market.

As always, the Group remains open to new business opportunities and
look forward to bringing fruitful returns for our shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to
all our management team members and staff for their earnest dedications
and contributions. Moreover, | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to
our customers, business partners, and shareholders for their trust and
support for the Group over the years. We look forward to your continued
trust and support in the years to come.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman
4 March 2019
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Market Overview

The global economy started 2018 on an upbeat note. Yet, the global
economic expansion lost momentum towards the end of the year amidst
rising protectionism and tightening monetary policy.

China, the world’s second largest economy, grew at its slowest pace in 28
years in 2018, with gross domestic product expanding 6.6%, down from
6.8% in 2017 as the China-US trade dispute took a heavy toll on sentiment,
leading to slowdown in consumer spending and capital expenditure. Total
retail sales of consumer goods in China rose 9% in 2018, shrinking from a
10.2% increase in 2017.

Hong Kong, the Group’s home market, saw its economic growth slow in
the second half of 2018 under the shadow of China-US trade dispute and
stock market corrections. The city’s GDP in the last quarter slowed to 1.3%
and for 2018 as a whole, it slowed to 3% from 3.8% in 2017. Growth in the
retail market also softened in the second half of the year as consumer
sentiment turned cautious amid rising external uncertainties and volatilities
in the global financial markets. Visitor arrivals to Hong Kong rose 11.4% to
over 65 million visitors in aggregate for 2018 with visitations from mainland
China reporting a 14.8% increase, partly fueled by the recently opened
high speed rail and Hong Kong-Zhuhai Macau Bridge. However, weaker
Chinese yuan weighed on the spending by mainland tourists. For the
whole year, retail sales in Hong Kong rose 8.8% year-on-year, compared
with only 2.2% growth in 2017 but the full-year growth sharply shrunk from
a 13.4% increase recorded in the first half of 2018. Sales of luxury goods
categories, including jewelry and watches, rose 13.7% whereas department
store sales increased 9.6% year-on-year.
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During the year, the Group constantly optimized its operations and
enhanced customer experiences to navigate the fast-changing market
landscape. The Group’s two distinctive Japanese-style department stores
in Hong Kong operated under the “SOGO" brand have established
themselves as a lovable brand among the customers. The Company is
pleased to announce that on 4 December 2018, the Group entered into a
new trademark licence agreement with Sogo & Seibu to grant the Group
the sole and exclusive licence to use the "SOGO" trademark in Hong
Kong for conducting its operation of department stores for a further term
of 20 years from May 2019. With the renewal of the SOGO trademark, the
Group is ready to take its business to the next level in the coming
decades.

Financial Review 2018

Leveraging on its unrivalled brand equity and pleasurable customer
experience, the Group managed to capture the strong retail momentum in
the first half of the year while maintaining solid performance when the
consumer sentiment turned sour and retail market slowed down in the
second half of the year, amid rising trade tensions and weaker asset
markets. During the year, the Group continued to implementing effective
measures to reinforce customer loyalty and create the ultimate shopping
experience. In 2018, the Group's operations once again outperformed the
broader market, with aggregate gross sales proceeds growing 13.5% to
approximately HK$11.71 billion. The Group’s outperformance was backed
by sound business strategy and strong management team.

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's department store
operations saw its turnover increased by 16.1% over the previous year,
while total gross sales proceeds, derived from both direct, After Purchase
Order ("APQO”) and concessionaire sales transactions, was up by 13.5%,
outperformed the broader market. The strong growth in turnover was
mainly due to growth in direct sales of approximately 22.7% and
approximately 10.2% increase in commission income derived from
concessionaire sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &% B 57 i & 247 (&)

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rates

The Group's gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover decreased to
73.8% from 75.4% in 2017, mainly caused by a higher growth in direct sales
relative to APO and concessionaire sales. Gross profit amounted to
HK$3,215.3 million, up 13.6% from HK$2,830.6 million in 2017. The
blended average concessionaire rate for the Group remained relatively
stable at approximately 24.8%, compared with approximately 24.7%
recorded in the previous year.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders
Net profit attributable to owners of the Group for the year amounted to
HK$1,690.1 million, down 48.8% from HK$3,300.5 million recorded in 2017.
The decline was primarily attributable to (i) a negative investment income
of HK$271.0 million resulting from the fair value loss on the Group's
financial investments amid the volatile financial market whereas it was a
positive income of HK$735.1 million last year, (i) the profit last year was
boosted by an one-off gain of HK$420.8 million from disposal of the
Group's 59.56% interest in a subsidiary; and (iii) a lower revaluation gain of
HK$251.2 million was recorded as comparing to an approximately
HK$823.2 million gain recorded last year in respect of the Group's
investment properties, namely the Kai Tak Land. Net profit attributable to
the Group's core operations (before the one-off gain, investment and
revaluation gains/losses) was HK$1,709.8 million, up 29.8% from
HK$1,317.4 million in 2017, thanks to the growth in sales which clearly

provided operating leverage.

Selling and Distribution Costs
The aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group
increased 7.8% over the previous year and represented 6.2%
(2017: 6.5%) of the Group's gross sales proceeds. The increase
in absolute amount was mainly a result of additional rental
expenses incurred for the TST store as its sales surged.
The increase was also a result of higher depreciation
charge in respect of leasehold improvements and other
fixed assets, including full year effect of the LED
advertising screen which was only put into operation in

late 2017.

Administrative Expenses
The Group's general administrative expenses increased
4.7% to approximately HK$137.5 million when
compared to 2017. The expense level was considered
reasonable and in line with the Group's operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &% B 57 i & 247 (&)

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding those of the directors) of the Group decreased 1.6%
to approximately HK$237.9 million during the year under review. While the
annual general increment of salaries and wages for the Group's employees
was largely in line with the market trend and general inflation,
remuneration adjustments and bonuses are based on performance of
individual staff and financial performance of the Group. The total number
of full-time staff of the Group decreased to 685 at the end of 2018 from
694 at the end of 2017.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

These comprise mainly management fee, credit card recharges and other
miscellaneous incomes received from the counters and tenants, other
sundry incomes and exchange loss. Increase in other income, gains and
losses of the Group this year was mainly attributable to a much lower
exchange loss to the tune of HK$10.1 million recorded during the year,
comparing to HK$45.0 million in 2017, on the Group’s USD denominated
bonds payable.

Interest and Investment (Losses) Gains
The Group's interest and investment income turned during the year to a
loss of HK$271.0 million from a gain of HK$735.1 million for the year 2017.
While the amount of interest income from the Group’s bank deposits saw
an increase of 141.0% to HK$159.0 million amid rising deposit rates, the
net investment loss comprised mainly fair value loss on the Group's
financial assets to the tune of, HK$516.0 million whereas it was a fair value
gain of HK$619.3 million in 2017. The overall negative return on the
Group's cash and financial investment portfolio was due to the poor and
volatile equity market conditions during most parts of the year. The
market value of the Group's financial investment portfolio amounted to
approximately HK$3,077.2 million as at 31 December 2018.

Finance Costs
The Group's total finance cost consisted mainly of finance charges and
interest expenses on bank loans and bonds payable. The aggregate
amount of finance costs and interest incurred, before capitalization,
was approximately HK$494.6 million (2017: HK$384.8 million) for the
full year. The increase was mainly due to higher interest expenses
incurred in respect of the Group’s Hong Kong dollar bank loans in
which interest is calculated with reference to the HIBOR, which
continued to stay at relatively higher level throughout the year as
compared to 2017. Finance costs charged to the profit or loss
account during the year amounted to HK$282.2 million (2017:
HK$229.0 million) after some HK$212.4 million (2017: HK$155.8
million) of the borrowing costs relating to the Kai Tak project has

been capitalized.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B & 24 (&)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's EBITDA (excluding investment losses/gains, fair value
changes on investment properties, and non-recurring items) for the year
increased 17.9% to HK$2,649.4 million (2017: HK$2,246.7 million). As at the
end of 2018, before counting the financial investment portfolio which was
worth approximately HK$3,077.2 million (2017: HK$3,349.0 million), the net
debt of the Group increased from approximately HK$8,398.7 million in
2017 to HK$9,674.8 million.

The Group's cash at banks and time deposits amounted to approximately
HK$6,196.0 million (2017: HK$7,423.1 million) as at the end of 2018. Of the
cash kept at banks in Hong Kong, approximately 99.3% was denominated
in US dollar (“US$") and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and approximately
0.7% was in Renminbi ("RMB") and other foreign currencies. The
substantial decrease in cash at bank and time deposits was mainly due to
the cash being used for the Company’s share repurchase during the year.

The Group's outstanding bank loans at the end of 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$11,214.2 million (2017: HK$11,184.1 million) and bonds
payable amounted to approximately HK$4,656.5 million (2017: HK$4,637.6
million). The bank loans comprised HK$5,000 million term loan and
HK$2,000 million revolving loan drawn under the Hong Kong dollar
denominated five-year (due July 2021) HK$8,000 million secured loan
facility, in which interest is calculated with reference to HIBOR. The
HK$5,000 million term loan is repayable semi-annually over the loan life,
with the first repayment starting from January 2019. The bank loans
consisted of also a term loan of HK$3,691 million drawn under the
HK$9,000 million project loan facility for financing payment of part of the
land premium of the Kai Tak Land. This HK$9,000 million project loan
facility bear interest calculated with reference to HIBOR and does not
require repayment until the end of the 5-year term in the year 2022. The
remaining bank loans represented short-term US$ loans totaling US$77.1
million (equivalent to HK$603.6 million) drawn under a US$255 million
facility, which is secured against certain of the Group's financial
investments, in which interest is calculated with reference to LIBOR.

As at the year end, the Group had aggregate unutilized banking facilities
in the amount equivalent to approximately HK$7,702.0 million (2017:
HK$8,099.0 million).

The bonds payable of HK$4,656.5 million at the year-end (US$600 million
at maturity) comprised a US$300 million 10-year (bearing interest at 4.25%
and maturing in October 2022) and a US$300 million 10-year (bearing
interest at 4.5% and maturing in June 2025) unsecured guaranteed bonds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &% B 57 i & 247 (&)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net debt to equity ratio (defined as
total borrowings less cash and bank balances divided by equity
attributable to the owners of the Company) was 330.0% (2017: 216.5%).
The increase in both the amount of net debt and net debt to equity ratio
was mainly due to the fact that approximately HK$1,543 million of cash was
used for the repurchase of the Company’s shares during the year. The
relatively high level of net gearing was also due to the fact that the
Group's self-owned store property in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong is stated
at historical cost less depreciation and amortization, thereby its fair value
has not been taken into account in the calculation of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is Hong
Kong dollar, in which most of the transactions are denominated. As
described under the "Liquidity and Financial Resources” section above,
certain monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in
US$ and, to a small extent, other foreign currencies. The Group currently
does not require a sophisticated and comprehensive foreign currency
hedging policy as the Hong Kong dollar, in which most of the Group's
transactions are denominated, is pegged to the USD in which certain of
the Group’s borrowings are denominated. Accordingly, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency fluctuation to certain extent is somewhat
limited.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values aggregating approximately
HK$1,217.4 million (2017: HK$1,262.8 million), together with shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group, were pledged to secure the HK$8,000
million (2017: HK$8,000 million) loan facility granted to the Group, of which
HK$7,000 million (2017: HK$7,000 million) was utilized.

In addition, the entire Kai Tak Project, comprising the land under
development and investment property under development, with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$9,185.7 million (2017: HK$8,416.2 million)
was pledged to secure the HK$9,000 million loan facility granted to the
Group for financing the Kai Tak Land acquisition and its construction, of
which HK$3,691.0 million was utilized as at the year end. Moreover, certain
of the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with
carrying value amounting to approximately HK$1,256.7 million (2017:
HK$1,427.4 million) were pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of
approximately US$255 million (2017: US$255 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B & 24 (&)

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

As part of its continuous efforts to enrich customer experience at its store,
at a cash consideration of HK$52 million, the Group acquired from a
connected party the Wa San Mai Japanese restaurant, which is operated in
the same building where the Group's flagship department store in
Causeway Bay is operated. Complementing the coffee shops and food
counters within the store, Wa San Mai provides a convenient alternative for
customers of the store with full Japanese lunch and dinner menu. The
business of Wa San Mai is stable and profitable and has generated
approximately HK$6 million of cash flow to the Group during the year.

Save for the acquisition of Wa San Mai abovementioned, the Group did
not have any other material acquisitions or disposals during the year.

Review of Operations

The Group repeatedly outperformed the broader retail sector in Hong
Kong during the past year, thanks to the Group’s seasoned management
team and sound business strategies.

SOGO CwB

Despite the nascent recovery in Hong Kong's retail sector seen in the first
half of 2018 was dented by escalating US-China trade tensions and stock
market tumult in the second half of the year, SOGO Causeway Bay
("SOGO CWB") recorded a 10.5% increase in sales revenue for the year.
The flagship store’s strong sales growth recorded in the first half of 2018
was partly offset by the relatively flattish sales growth recorded in the
second half of the year when global political and economic uncertainties
undermined consumer sentiment.

With a 10.5% growth in sales revenue, SOGO CWB contributed 83% to the
Group's gross sales proceeds in 2018. Average ticket size of the store saw
an increase of 5.6% to HK$912 while the stay-and-buy ratio remained
steady, thanks to an enhanced shopping experience provided by the store
rejuvenation program.

During the year, the SOGO Rewards program continued to gain traction,
with the number of members exceeding 570,000 by the end of 2018. The
program has helped keep customers engaged and reinforced the Group's
brand equity. Sales revenue from members of the SOGO Rewards
program accounted for around 52% of the total sales revenue of the store,
up from 46% in 2017. The Group will continue to optimize the loyalty
program to increase sales productivity of the store.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &% B 57 i & 247 (&)

The Group continued to enhance its digital promotion and customer
services to offer greater convenience to shoppers, especially at the store’s
iconic biannual Thankful Week anniversary events. The popular events held
in May and November drew overwhelming responses from shoppers and
sustained strong sales momentum. In aggregate, sales from the two events
accounted for approximately 27% of the store’s gross sales proceeds of
the year.

In addition, CVISION, the outdoor full-HD LED advertising screen at the
building facade of SOGO CWB that the Group launched in late 2017, has
proven to be an effective advertising platform and has further reinforced
our flagship store’s position as a prominent retail landmark in Hong Kong.

SOGO TST

Catering to shoppers across multiple ages and customer needs with an
eclectic range of well-selected products and brands, sales revenue growth
of our SOGO Tsim Sha Tsui ("SOGO TST") once again outperformed the
broader market and widened its lead over the Hong Kong retail industry.
SOGO TST continued its robust growth momentum throughout the year,
with a 30.3% increase in sales revenue recorded for the full year.

Cosmetics and skin care products, grew 39.8% over 2017, remained the
main growth driver for the SOGO TST store during the year. SOGO TST
saw growth of its average ticket size, traffic footfall and stay-and-buy ratio
during the year. The May and November Thankful Week events at SOGO
TST were well received and achieved record-breaking sales revenue.

Wa Sai Mai
Wa San Mai restaurant contributed aggregate sales revenue of
approximately HK$71.4 million in 2018, up 4.1% from 2017.

Kai Tak Project

To capture the rising purchasing power and untapped customer base in
the East Kowloon area, which will be bolstered by a government
supported redevelopment plan as well as increasing accessibility brought
about by the upcoming Kai Tak Station of the new Shatin-Central Link, the
Group through government tender on 23 November 2016 acquired a plot
of land in Kai Tak — East Kowloon, at a price of HK$7,388 million.

The government's Kai Tak redevelopment project is a huge and highly
complex project spanning a total planning area of over 320 hectares,
encompassing the former airport site together with the adjoining
hinterland districts of Kowloon City, Wong Tai Sin and Kwun Tong. Under
the current redevelopment plan, the Hong Kong government has
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B & 24 (&)

With a site area of approximately 14,159 square metres, the Group's Kai
Tak Land will be developed into two blocks of commercial buildings to
provide space for both retailing and office use, with a total gross floor area
of approximately 101,000 square metres. The retailing portion is planned
to house a full-fledged department store and other facilities
complementary to the operations of a department store as well as to use
for the operation of a shopping mall and other entertaining and dining
facilities, and the office space will be divided partly for self-use and partly
for leasing out for rental income. The proposed development is expected
to be completed by end of 2022, and it is believed that this Kai Tak Project
will be able to create a landmark position in the new Kai Tak development
and East Kowloon area and will further broaden and solidify the Group’s
presence in the Hong Kong retailing market.

The Kai Tak Project commenced ground breaking works in December
2017, marking the start of construction for the two commercial blocks. The
construction has been progressing satisfactorily and the Group aims to
complete the foundation construction work in early 2020.

Renewal of Trademark Licence

The Group currently operates its department stores in Hong Kong under
the "SOGO” brand name and trademarks pursuant to an existing
trademark licence granted by Sogo & Seibu for a period of 18 years from 9
May 2007 to 8 May 2019. On 4 December 2018, the Group entered into a
new trademark licence agreement with Sogo & Seibu, pursuant to which
Sogo & Seibu agreed to grant the Group the sole and exclusive licence to
use the "SOGO" trademarks in Hong Kong for conducting its business
activities of operation of department stores for a further term of 20 years
commencing from 9 May 2019.

Outlook and Plan

Looking ahead, the Group takes a cautious view for 2019, as lingering
Sino-US trade tensions and a weaker Chinese yuan could hit consumer
spending. The easing growth momentum seen in emerging economies
coupled with the looming Brexit risks would also undermine consumer
confidence around the globe.

Hong Kong's economy is set for muted growth on the back of slowing
economic growth in China and moderating global trade. While resilient
local job market and continued expansion in inbound tourism will lend
some support to the retail sector, consumer sentiment could be
dampened by a decline in wage growth and waning wealth effects
stemming from weakness in asset prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &% B 57 i & 247 (&)

As a leading retail operator in Hong Kong with a loyal clientele and strong
brand equity, the Group will continue to integrate its physical and digital
assets to curate a more engaging and seamless shopping experience to
discerning shoppers. The Group, with a view to creating personalized
customer experience and addressing customer pain points, will enhance its
service and product portfolios as well as in-store interaction, thereby
driving store traffic and sales.

As always, the Group remains on the lookout for strategic investment and
lucrative business opportunities that enable us to generate higher returns
for shareholders and achieve profitable growth in the long term.
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As the premier department store operator in Hong Kong, Lifestyle International
is committed to the conduct as a responsible, ethical and sustainable corporate
citizen. We strive to offer a one-stop shopping destination that focuses upon
providing our customers with the wide range of quality goods and services
under an enjoyable shopping environment.

X

S0

Customers: our main goal is to satisfy our customers and
provide them with a world-class shopping environment and
experience.

Employees: our people are our most precious asset and

their well-being is essential for the productivity and growth
of our business.

Business partners: we treat each brand retailer as our long-
term business partner and conduct all businesses with
integrity and in a responsible manner.

Community: we act as a conscientious member of the
society and are dedicated towards contributing to the well-

being of our environment and to providing help to those
who are in need.

Shareholders: we strive to maximize long-term value and
return for our shareholders.

The commitment towards our stakeholders provides us guidance in our
corporate responsibility policy, where we strive to ensure that the values of
our social and environmental responsibilities are integrated within our
daily operations and business code of conduct.

We believe that the pursuit of integrating our sustainability goals within
our business is an ever-evolving process and we hope to further improve
upon our performance in the years to come.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

Corporate Responsibility Policy

1. Ethical Standards and Responsibility
We strive to conduct our business with the highest level of integrity
and responsibility when engaging with our business partners.

2.  Support and Respect our Staff
Employees are our greatest asset and we treat them with fairness
and respect, providing them with a supportive working environment
within which they can reach their greatest potential.

3. Environmental Responsibility
We aim to cultivate an environmentally conscious culture within our
company and endeavor to minimize the carbon impact of our
business activities.

4. Striving for Excellence
We continue to ceaselessly set high standards for ourselves and
encourage our partners to embrace these ideals.

We aim to holistically integrate our values and corporate responsibility
commitments into our business model and company culture that in turn
will support our growth in the long run.

Materiality Assessment

The purpose of conducting a materiality assessment is to identify issues of
importance to the Group from a sustainability perspective and to prioritize
those which are considered material. This methodology involves the
engagement of the Group's various stakeholders and encourages different
stakeholders to consider a range of sustainability indicators, identifying
and rating KPIs that are deemed most relevant to our business.

There are a wide range of issues on which we could address. The principle
of materiality is defined as aspects that are considered significant in
reflecting the Group's economic, environmental and social impact and
those that are important in influencing the decision-making process of our
stakeholders.

In 2018, the ESG Committee engaged a sustainability consultant to
conduct a comprehensive materiality assessment with our employees. In
the exercise, the consultant carried out an online survey with the
employees, and the participants rated various ESG issues and provided
their perspectives and comments on the Group's performance in ESG. In
addition, 3 engagement sessions were held with our managers to seek
their opinions on the macro trends which may impact the operations of the
Group in the next 3 to 5 years.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 &R &8 R % (F)

After analyzing and validating the results with the consultant, the risks and
opportunities arising from ESG issues which are most relevant to the
Group were identified. The findings were instrumental in facilitating us in
determining our long-term ESG goals and strategies in the coming years.

Stakeholder Engagement

Customers

Business
Partners

Engagement Channels

—  Shareholders’ meetings

— Investors & Analysts meetings

—  Results Presentations

—  Financial Reports, Announcements & Circulars
—  Training & Workshops

—  Volunteer Activities

— Interviews & Meetings

—  Project Collaborations

—  Public Events & Social Gatherings
—  Sponsorships & Donations

—  Websites

—  Industry events
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

Governance Structure

Executive
Directors

BITES

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds the
ultimate responsibility on the overall strategic development and corporate
governance of the Company. To ensure high governance standards in
ESG matters, the Company has a robust ESG governance structure with
clearly defined responsibilities in place.

The formulation of ESG strategy and the day-to-day management and
reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Committee, which is
headed by our Executive Director and comprises members from all major
departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Committee include
formulating ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder
engagement, materiality assessment, monitoring the performance of ESG
initiatives and promotion of ESG issues both internally and externally.

Through the Executive Director, the ESG Committee has been providing
updates to the Board on the latest ESG performance of the Company on
an annual basis. The ESG Committee has continuously worked upon
enhancing its reporting mechanism and has scheduled, starting from 2019,
to provide a biannual report to the Board, covering the performance of
ESG initiatives as well as forthcoming plans. The move is aimed to ensure
that the Board is being informed on a timely basis of the progress of our
ESG works that will enable them to efficiently oversee the effectiveness of
the ESG risk management and internal control systems.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 &R &8 R % (F)

To ensure effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify any
potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Committee
conducts regular meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG
initiatives and to follow up upon the works of business units which are
charged with carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies to
align with our overall ESG strategy. The ESG Committee is also assisted by
the internal audit team in identifying and evaluating the potential ESG
related-risks (including climate change related risks), so as to devise
appropriate strategies for risk mitigation.

The ESG Committee continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into our
daily operations and decision making processes across all levels of the
Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders.

United Nations Sustainable Development Goals

The Group strives to deliver business growth while driving the sustainable
economic development. We have identified 10 of 17 United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals ("UNSDGs") which are relevant to our
business.
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Continuous efforts to raise environmental consciousness

amongst our employees & business partners

Clean water and sanitation
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Affordable and clean energy
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

People AfH
Provide a healthy working environment, equal opportunities
and development programmes to our employees
RESRMBENIIERE  TERS NERGTE
Cater to the well-being of our staff by providing adequate
wellness programmes and recreational activities

RETENRANFTEMNFELEY HEETFOREZF

Community # &
Support education and youth development initiatives through
volunteering works and partnerships
FEREBIERBHAE IHFHUELEFERER
Promote arts & culture by holding regular exhibitions at our
stores

RIET/EHASRMRERRE  #EEMEE

GOOD HEALTH 4 QuAuTY 'DEGENT WORK AND
ANDWELLBEING EDUCATION ECONOMICGROWTH

wid L K

Good health and well-being | R &7 5z B4& 41k

Quality education BEHE

Decent work and economic BEE TIEMA L
growth

Reduced inequalities

4 QuAuTY
EDUCATION

L]

Quiality education | BEHE
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Environment R
Environmental Policy RIBEE
Lifestyle International’s Environmental Policy targets to reduce our  FI{EBIFR &Y IRIFECR § £ KR M8 3R[H 2B

environmental carbon footprint and promote an environmentally MR B &L ERNEEJHERRSUE - A -

sustainable culture within our store operations. We will:

o Quantify the environmental impacts of our operations and design
measures to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions.

. Consistently work to improve the efficiency of our energy
consumption.

o Ensure a healthy and comfortable indoor environment within our e
business premises.

J Adopt green practices and technologies to better conserve our o
natural resources.

o Ensure compliance with applicable environmental and related e
legislations with our staff, business partners & other stakeholders.

d Minimize our waste generation and manage our waste ina ®
responsible manner.

o Cultivate an environmentally conscious mindset amongst all
employees through regular internal communications and trainings.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 &R &8 R % (F)

Energy Efficiency and Water Conservation

We continuously strive to reduce overall energy consumption and
maximize the energy efficiency of the facilities within our buildings and
department stores. Electricity, water and gas are the main sources of
energy used within our department store operations.

In order to monitor and improve our energy consumption efficiency,
record will be kept for different zones within the buildings for data
collection, compilation and verification. Data is collected and analyzed on
a regular basis in order to ensure that equipment and facilities are
functioning under optimal conditions.

Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems, vertical
transportation (lifts and escalators), general lightings, refrigeration systems,
plumbing & drainage systems and I.T. facilities (servers, personal
computers and Point of Sales system) and office equipment. We
continuously take measures to ensure that the facilities are maintained at
their optimal operational conditions. Measures include searching for more
efficient models through new procurement, timely replacement of less
efficient parts, and implementing preventive maintenance practices being
carried out by independent contractors and in-house maintenance teams.

To maximize the energy efficiency of our lighting systems, LED lights are
now used in all public and department store areas.

Notwithstanding measures are taken to reduce energy consumption, the
increase in power consumption during the year was caused by the full-year
impact of the operation of CVISION, the LED advertising screen, which
commenced operation in October 2017. CVISION uses the latest LED
technology and is having a relatively longer product life cycle than its
peers. The device provides 3 brightness-control mechanisms — automatic
sensor control, manual control and timer pre-setting control, so that the
brightness of its screen and power consumption is kept at optimal level at
all times.

To demonstrate our commitment to the environment, we have signed the
"Charter on External Lighting” following which minimal light nuisance and
energy wastage in the operation of our external lighting facilities is being
observed. Operations of all external lighting facilities of our stores such as
LED screens, light boxes, logo signage are in full compliance with the
requirements under “Charter on External Lighting” by the Environment
Bureau.

Our corporate office in Causeway Bay underwent renovation during the
third quarter of 2018. Taking this opportunity, LED lighting systems
equipped with sensor control by either indoor illumination level or outdoor
brightness were installed. The lighting systems are divided into small
zones, enabling a more flexible approach towards energy saving.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

In comparison to electricity, water consumption is not significant in our 1T L& - KM EFK L ENAKEL T
business operations. Consumption is mainly used in sanitary facilities for & - AXKEFZARBEERBRASINABERT R
both customers and staff within the department stores and office premises. 8 T &RAF ERME - RPIEXAFRELE TR
Sensor type water taps and flushing facilities have been installed for /KR EFERIKAESE RIF/KEE -

reducing water consumption in washrooms

Energy and Water Consumption BRIRHERAKE
Aggregated energy and water consumption at our Causeway Bay, Tsim RZ-ZZE—+tFE-_T—N\F WBEFEE KR
Sha Tsui department stores and auxiliary supporting facilities for 2017- PHEBEEE R AR ERENREREFERBKAE

2018 is presented as below: 25T -
ltem 2018 2018 2017 2017
EH —B-N\F —B-NE —E-tF —2-tf
. O (Intensity by (Intensity by
square meter) square meter)
(BEFKEE) (BEFKREE)
GHG Emissions (Scope 2) ~ Total kg CO,e 17,927,613 kg 292.68 Kg/m? 15,957,950 kg 265.18 Kg/m?
BEREHNN(BE2) —RiEREBLQT 1792161307 Y AK29268RfT 159579508 BT FAK2A518RT
Purchased Electricity Total KWh 23,518,102 kWh 383.95 kWh/m? 21,046,308 kWh 350 kWh/m?
BEE BT/ 23518102 F B/ B G 5 K383.95F Fu/ )N B 21046308 F FL/NE HEHAK350F B/
Purchased Towngas Mega Joules (MJ) 1,699,296 MJ 27.74 MJ/m? 1,420,224 MJ 23.60 MJ/m?
BEHS kEH 1,699,296 K EE  GF R TAKEH 14202208 BFR2BO0KEH
Potable water Meter cube 89,308 m? 1.46 m3/m? 88,999 m? 1.48 m?/m?
ERAK UHAK 89,3081 75K BERKI1463 K 88,9993 75 K FEF K148 K
Remarks: B
1. Total operating area used for computation of energy intensity is 61,253.33m?2. 1. ATHEEREEMAELERERG25333F K-
2. Emission Factor used for purchased electricity from Hong Kong Electric and CLPis 2. RELBERELTPERESENAAERESED B A

0.79 and 0.51 respectively. Emission Factor for Towngas from Hong Kong and
China Gas is 0.065 per MJ.

3. GHG emissions is calculated basing on purchased electricity and Towngas only, 3.
excluding those electricity consumptions by central air-conditioning systems which
are not under our operating control that consumption data cannot be readily
available and reliably measured.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 &R &8 R % (F)

Sustainable Construction

We remain committed towards the implementation of environmentally
friendly construction processes that minimize its carbon impact and
hazardous emissions to the surrounding area.

During the design consultation stage in respect of our office renovation
project, we encouraged the use of regionally sourced materials and high
efficiency energy fixtures and materials with recycled content were
applied. We strive to minimize the creation of harmful substances during
the construction process and all contractors are required to use approved
sealants, adhesives, paints and coatings that fulfill the low VOC (Volatile
Organic Compounds) requirements. Air purifiers are used during the
construction period, which protect both the workers and our staff from the
inhalation of dust and odors created from construction works. From the
pre-construction stage through to the entire construction process, we
actively identified and leveraged opportunities that enabled us to enhance
the environmental friendliness of the construction process.

Waste Management and Recycling

Waste prevention and management plays an indispensable role in our
overall environmental policy. In addition to minimizing our environmental
impact, we believe that waste prevention increases operational efficiency
and generates cost savings in the long-run. We recognize the importance
of promoting waste consciousness amongst our various stakeholders in
order to effectively implement our waste management policy that includes
the promotion of recycling and practices that support the reduction of
consumption.

To strengthen our recycling efforts within our operations, a recycling
machine, namely the Reverse Vending Machine, has been set up at the
SOGO Tsim Sha Tsui Store for the collection of non-refillable PET bottles
since August 2017 and over 1,000 pieces of PET bottles has been collected
from our customers in 2018, saving approximately 240 kg of carbon
emissions.

For our store renovation works, contractors are required to appoint a
waste management coordinator, who is responsible for ensuring the
implementation of construction waste recycling. Prior to the start of any
construction work, a construction waste manager is appointed to oversee
and monitor the waste recycling process, and set targets for all
subcontractors to contribute towards our waste management efforts.

In 2018, we have successfully recycled approximately 15 tons of
construction waste that was generated during the office renovation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

Workplace Conduct

For our office renovation carried out during the year, environmental and
health related considerations were incorporated in the design and fit-out
of the new office. Selected system furniture with zero VOC emission and
ergonomic accessories were installed based upon the needs of our staff.
Ergonomic task chairs are assigned to all staff that aid in supporting
correct spinal posture. Multi-function printing machines, with power-saving
mode and security print function, are located in designated semi-enclosed
areas to ensure better air quality and minimal noise disruption.
Furthermore, an air purifier system is incorporated into the new air-
conditioning system, bringing about better indoor air quality for the overall
office environment. In addition, the open plan design of the office layout
maximizes outdoor light exposure and encourages collaboration and
communication amongst our employees.

Other efforts to strengthen our commitment towards environmental
protection and sustainability include the introduction of new measures for
energy saving and waste reduction. Point-of-Use filtered water dispensers,
with energy-saving mode, are installed to minimize the consumption of
bottled distilled water, while continuing to provide even better quality
drinking water to staff. All office paper for in-house printing is of FSC
(Forest Stewardship Council) certification. There are designated areas to
collect used paper, plastic bottles and cans for recycling purposes. Certain
unwanted office furniture will be donated to relevant NGOs instead of
disposed of.

In 2018, the Group was again awarded the “"Green Office Awards Labelling
Scheme (GOALS)” and "Eco-Healthy Workplace” label by the World
Green Organization (WGO) for our commitment towards a sustainable
workplace environment. We believe that providing our staff with an
optimal working environment contributes towards an enhancement of the
overall workforce productivity. Smart tips on achieving a green office are
shared with staff from time to time.

Environmentally Friendly Shopping

To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, we sell reusable bags
and have adopted P-life biodegradable plastic shopping bags as storage
options for our customers. In addition, we regularly hold different
environmentally friendly promotional activities within our stores to
encourage our customers to adopt a more environmentally conscious and
mindful lifestyle.
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In 2018, we have held the following activities to promote eco-living:

—  Tote bags, foldable bottles, foldable mugs, eco wrap, stainless steel
drinking straws and foldable lunch boxes for gift upon purchase/
redemption;

—  Italian Fair x Go Green Veggie Dishes Introduction;

—  Tips of Living Green at social media channels;

—  Workshops for making use of recycle materials;

—  Save the Ocean competition;

—  WWF Walk for Nature enrollment;

—  WWF Symbolic Animal Adoption Package redemption;

—  Save the Endangered Species Facebook game;

—  Green Living Days with environmental friendly gift upon purchase;

— Freshmart Go for Green Fair;
—  Shop-Naked Foodie Facebook Wall Game;

— Live in Pink Donation to Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation (over
90 brands participated);

—  Charity Sale for Po Leung Kuk;

—  Christmas Make A Wish Charity Sale;

—  New Year Party at HATCH for underprivileged families

Food Recycling

The food and confectionery sections of our stores apply the principle of
reduce, reuse and recycle in the handling of food wastage. We adopt
policies that support the collection and recycling of leftover food products
in order to minimize the amount of food waste being shipped to the
landfills.

"First-in-first-out” policy is adopted regarding the storing and selling of
food products, so that food waste from perishable produce can be
reduced to a minimum. Daily food waste collected under our food
recycling programme is turned into compost or animal feed to help to
reduce the organic waste produced. For 2018, around 49,090 kg of food
wastage was collected, saving approximately 27,895kg of CO,e emissions
from the landfill, an increase of 62% when compared to 2017.

In addition, we have been donating food to food bank “Food Angel” since
2017, to help those in need and raise awareness towards treasuring food as
a precious resource. For 2018, Food Angel has collected approximately
2,022kg from our food sections as food rescue donations.
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Employees ==

Staff and workplace BTIMIEHAR
As at 31 December 2018 Lifestyle International employed a total of 685 HRZ_-ZT—N\F+_A=+—8 ' FI@EKA &LF
staff and they are all based in Hong Kong. The gender and age FA685HE T  BEHEFS LIE- ﬁzﬁﬁlm

distribution of our staff are as follows: MR RFE®RI>MWT
By Gender By Age
Bl 2 F R 4 Bl
o 30 years old and below
0B A T
@ Female %1%
31-50 years old
31-505%

Over 50 years old
5058 A £

[ ]
w Male 51

Lifestyle International has complied with relevant laws, rules and FEBEERE2F—HETHEHEEE - BEX
regulations on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, &7+ TERS - &R - FE#E - 2t K
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti- ERN R EMFS MEFOHEREE AR LA

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare throughout the year. il o

Our performance management system is the foundation for reviewing and ~ EPIRENE R T E Aigs Kk E TRIF K
reflecting our staff members’ performance level and challenges $ PRTE T E0 R 8L R i BY b P BUR R B B B

encountered, and assisting them towards reaching their future aspirations. o R R IEFR AT B T T VEREE A Bt /= 22 E)
Observation and formal evaluation of staff members’ work behavior and %'JE{”E&%%%E%% ° lﬁt%—?&fﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂil
accomplishments form the basis for making decisions which include wage, & * #i& kEHMHAZE &7 - AR

salary, and benefit adjustments; promotion, demotion, transfer, or ~ KEEMEA - iEEJHjE-&%?f):' B2 o
termination; and coaching and counseling, training, or career
development options.

Lifestyle International does not tolerate forced labour nor child labour. We — Ff@BIR N AFF&H| 45 T ET - KPR HEER
co-operate actively to prevent their occurrence towards not only our direct K EBEBH (RIETEERE A E0H  BKELL
staff but also towards the possibility of our indirect involvement through A SkiBEE#IE) B & EfF IE B BB R ERME
our suppliers or business partners, including consignment counters, HE#ETHEEREMNE T4 - NERREH
contractors, labour brokers or recruitment agencies. Throughout the [ + HMW T AB Ll & B TR TERBER
reporting period, we are not aware of any non-compliance cases in the

aforesaid areas.

Anti-corruption R&E3S

Lifestyle International regards fair play, honesty and integrity as our  FIEBIBFEAFEHF HEMHEAEBFHHNE
important commercial assets in business. Our anti-corruption policy sets out ~ ZE¥EEE - KPR ESEEREIIMEE LR
the basic standard of expected conduct of all staff members. Periodic ~ ERIRSFRIEARNIZLE - F M5 8 T & BE T B &7
seminars are arranged for our staff to reinforce the knowledge of &  LAMG#E GBI MR IR AERR R EVS B A o T (M
recognizing and dealing with bribery and corruption. We have complied with 25 —HE<FTH A - $1F - BEFRERER
relevant standards, rules and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud and ~ FREFIRZE « 5 KRG - RIS EAR - BMERE
money laundering throughout the year. No whistleblowing case has been  fEfAl#2 5 {4 -

reported during the reporting period.
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Staff Training and Development

Lifestyle International regards human resources as our critical assets. Our
mission in talent development is closely intertwined with the achievement
of our corporate objectives. We provide our staff with innovative customer
and service-oriented training programs that enable them to stay
competitive within an ever evolving retailing market.

For 2018, staff on average received around 11 hours of training. With a
focus upon the building of a high quality team, different team building
workshops were designed for managerial, supervisory and general staff
members.

In addition, various other training programs were organized according to
the needs of different staff levels including:

o Computer Skills Workshop

o Marketing by Customer Workshop

o Writing Effective Job Descriptions Workshop
° Professional Grooming Workshop

o Beauty Workshop

\nte maﬁonal Holdings Limited
R s’t\l\e
e

BTHRIEBR

MNEERERANERREENEE - RAEAS
BEAEMEGERMEXARESHEME - B
RSB TRHAIFOEE LIRS SRS -
FEMEETHERNTENSTREHRF I -

RZZT—N\F - ETFHEIHNNEET - &
MAEEE EBEN—RE TLHTRNEBEL
TiEY BT S EEZEBKAEL -

BEAN - BAIZIRE MR IE B RIETRE T
BAMFEMR - 21

. B R TIEY

. BREBRTETLHERBNM&RN TS
. ERERTIERANTIFY

. BEXREERIIFY

. EXBRTEY

A
NNnugy ReDOrt R
Ols



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

With an emphasis on personal development and growth, staff members
are encouraged to proactively pursue their own self-development.
Through the performance management system, staff members are seeing
their immediate supervisors and managers at least semi-annually to discuss
their work performance, personal attributes and potential training
opportunities.

Based on the performance review and discussions, staff members are able
to obtain feedback on their work and share with their superiors about their
aspirations and expectations. Training plans are developed and
appropriate resources will be allocated to enable each staff member to
achieve both their personal and corporate development goals.

Health and Safety

Lifestyle International considers the health and safety of its’ staff,
customers, visitors and members of the public at large to be of the
greatest importance.

To ensure a risk and hazard-free environment for all, Lifestyle International
will:

o Conduct regular inspections of all parts of the Group's premises.

o Conduct fire drills for staff members to practice the evacuation
procedures of the department stores in the event of a fire or other
emergencies.

o Obtain professional advice on best health and safety practices where
necessary.

J Provide staff members with advisory service on health and safety
matters.

J Provide information and training to enhance staff members’
awareness on health and safety issues.

J Promote health & safety at work and gather staff members’ feedback

through the Health & Safety Committee.

Every staff member participates and shares the responsibility in the
formulation and monitoring of procedures and arrangements for
workplace health and safety.

Staff members will:
o Co-operate in identifying, reporting and rectifying hazards at work in

relation to health and safety and report such hazards immediately to
superiors or the Security Department.

° Co-operate in the investigation of any accident, injury or near
accident to minimize re-occurrence.

o Adopt safe working methods and procedures.

o Offer practical advices and suggestions for the improvement and

maintenance of health and safety standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 &R &8 R % (F)

To promote health and safety at work, we have organized a stress
management workshop, an adult first aid certificate workshop, yoga
classes and other health seminars with topics such as healthy eating and
nutrition. Health booths with osteoporosis, cholesterol and blood sugar
testing and nutritionist recommendations were set up for our staff to
understand their general health conditions as well as enabling them to
gain more knowledge on the topic of adopting a balanced and healthy
lifestyle.

We recognize mental health as a fundamental component in the overall
well-being of our staff members. In June 2018, we commenced the
operation of the Employee Assistance Program, a professional
organization with qualified counselors that engage in providing
confidential consultative services to all staff members through a 24-hour
hotline and face-to-face appointments. Both work and non-work related
problems or issues are covered during these consultations.

In addition, staff recreation activities such as cooking classes, food dye
experience workshop and leather accessories classes were organized to
provide staff members opportunities to relax and socialize with their peers.

.

Social and Community Support

Lifestyle International is committed towards actively connecting and
interacting with the community and working towards the fostering of
harmony between the people and the environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B H &R ERRE (&)

We focus on contributing our time and resources towards the following
four main areas:

—  Community support

—  Environmental protection and sustainability
—  Education and youth development

—  Arts and Culture Promotion

For 2018, a total of 7 activities and 973 hours of charity works were
completed by our volunteers. Organizations we worked with included Po
Leung Kuk, Orbis, A Drop of Life, Habitat for Humanity of Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Physically Handicapped & Able-Bodied Association and the
Conservancy Association. The types of volunteer and charitable activities
included the Moonwalkers 2018, Walk & Run 2018, Tour at Lamma Winds
with Kids, Elderly home visit and clean up, and School visits and wall
painting.

Understanding that young people are the future of the society, the Group
has supported 30 students from a secondary school to participate in the
Eco-Rangers 2018 which offered them a chance to know more about the
environment and understand the ways to protect our ecosystem through
orienteering games.

In addition, we are dedicated towards cultivating the young generation
and supporting vocational education. Internship opportunities in our
frontline sales departments and back office departments are available for
interested students from secondary schools and universities in Hong Kong.

To sustain the momentum of health consciousness and caring for the
community, the 4th SOGO Charity Run event was held on March 11, 2018.
The event was well received and brought in over 2,500 participants and a
portion of the runners’ enrollment fee was donated to Suicide Prevention
Services to raise public awareness on suicide. In addition, “Green
Monday”, our green partner also held various promotional activities to
help introduce to our customers environmental-friendly and low-carbon
living practices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 &R &8 R % (F)

SOGO stores have been participating in Earth Hour organized by World
Wide Fund for Nature (WWF) since 2014 to lend our support towards
efforts to tackle problems resulting from global warming. All the external
lights of both SOGO Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui store were switched
off on the specified date for one hour, from 8:30 pm to 9:30 pm. We will
continue to extend support towards these types of initiatives with an aim
to contributing towards a more sustainable world.

We also actively support different arts and cultural activities by bringing
the works of different artists from around the world to Hong Kong. In
addition to promoting and sharing the works of the artists, we hope to
bring about cultural enjoyment for our customers, enriching their overall
shopping experience within our stores. During the year of 2018, we have
held a number of arts exhibitions and events, including “Yayoi Kusama &
Contemporary Art Collection Exhibition”, "Japanese Cookware Fair”,
"Kyoto Traditional Arts Exhibition”, “Tokai Region Procelain Fair”,
"Japanese Ceramic Fair”, “Germany Tableware Fair”, "Tachikichi Bizen &
Shinoyaki Fair”, "Ashahido Gasen Traditional Craft Fair”, “Ishikawa Arts &
Crafts Fair”, "Wagaku Exhibition” and "Chopstick Culture Fair”.
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In 2018, we for the first time partnered with the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology’s School of Business Management for hosting the
“"HKUST International Case Competition 2018". The competition engaged
80 students from 15 leading business schools around the world and was to
challenge the participants to brainstorm and propose innovative solutions
for the business challenges that our company is facing, revolving around
the themes of sustainability and digitalization. The annual competition was
a particularly meaningful platform for corporations to interact with the
academic community and Lifestyle International is honored to be featured
as both the sponsor and the case study company of the 2018 competition
which marked the 16th anniversary of this prestigious annual competition.
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

We are committed to managing our supply chain in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner. We continue to enhance our working
procedures and strengthen collaborations with our business partners and
suppliers to mitigate and manage potential risks in our supply chain. In
addition, we have an established green procurement policy for general
office supplies.

Product Safety

Product safety is of utmost importance to our business and our Product
Safety Policy reinforces our commitment towards the sales of safe
merchandises, particularly under the Kids Fashion & Toys product category
which covers all baby and children products. Our product safety practices
are being executed vigorously to ensure that our merchandise selection is
in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

We require all our suppliers to focus on the quality of their products, with
primary concern to be placed upon the health and safety of the end users
of their products. We maintain a manual which documents all the latest
requirements under various ordinances and regulations, including the Toys
and Children’s Products Safety Ordinance; Toys and Children’s Product
Safety Regulation; Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance & Regulations; The
Trade Mark Ordinance; The Copyright Ordinance; The Trade Descriptions
Ordinance; and the Prevention of Copyright Piracy Ordinance and we
require strict compliance of our suppliers.

Lifestyle International will:

° Comply fully with the Toys and Children’s Products Safety Ordinance
and the Consumer Goods Safety Regulation, as these are the basic
standards and fundamental to us;

° Conduct regular examinations on our suppliers and business
partners to ensure that products they supply are in strict compliance
with the safety standards;

° Act in accordance with the Trade Mark Ordinance and perform
continuous inspections as set out in the standards;

° Keep abreast of latest changes of standards, evaluate their impacts
and develop up-to-date policies to maintain continuous safety
control on our merchandise;

° Enhance the standards of product safety by adopting the best
practices;

° Provide regular training to staff to maintain their awareness on
product safety concerns at all times.
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Food Safety

Consumers place great trust on our food products and therefore the safety
and quality of our food products are fundamental to our brand equity and
assurance. Our mission is to provide "Quality food in responsible manner”
and we continue to strengthen and improve our sourcing management
and product selection.

We periodically recruit trustful vendors such as “The Hong Kong
Hydroponics Plantation Group Limited” to launch their products in our
stores. We understand that they are the first and only one AFCD (The
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department) accredited farm
engaging in hydroponics plantation in Hong Kong and all their vegetables
are 100% grown in local farms and planted in hydroponic way with no
chemical pesticides.

With effect from 24 July, 2018, the import ban on vegetables, fruits, milk,
milk beverage and dried milk from four Japanese prefectures, namely
Chiba, Gummea, Iraraki and Tochigi, had been lifted and these produces
are allowed to enter the Hong Kong market so long as the products are
accompanied with certificates issued by the Ministry of Agriculture,
Forestry and Fisheries of Japan. It is our aim to provide a wider range of
high quality products to our customers while continuously monitoring the
quality of our products on offer. Looking ahead, we are conscious to meet
the applicable food safety requirements at all times and will ensure all of
our suppliers are well acquainted with the relevant obligations.
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Customer Services

Our mission is to satisfy the needs of our customers and to provide them
with a world-class shopping experience. We respect, listen and take into
serious consideration all the views and feedback from our customers. We
actively work to improve our dialogue (via comment notes, emails, social
media and phone calls) with our customers to better understand their
needs and expectations.

Maintaining high-quality customer services is part of our business
philosophy which is to offer quality goods and services under a
comfortable and welcoming shopping environment. Small customer care
services such as power bank rental machines are available at both our
Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui stores. Our customer services are
extended to the after-sales journey which we believe is even more
important in our endeavour to cultivate a lifetime relationship with each of
our customers.

In order to engage and better understand members of our SOGO Rewards
program, an online survey was conducted in September 2018 and over
10,000 members have responded. The satisfaction level on store
environment, product and staff is 3.77/5, 3.8/5 and 3.76/5 respectively. On
ESG initiatives, the results also revealed that as one of SOGO's
stakeholders, our customers are of the view that SOGO should focus on
quality, health and safety standards of their products/services; protection
of customer privacy; and fair and responsible marketing communications.

Customer services play an important and direct role in our shoppers’ in-
store experience as well as our overall store service proposition. Our
customer services team acts as an effective communication channel
between our stores and the customers we serve, which in turn contributes
towards the building of customer loyalty in the long-run. We endeavor to
provide a swift, sincere and helpful response to any queries or issues
raised by our customers, in order to fully meet and exceed their
expectations.

Advertising and Marketing

Lifestyle International respects the rights of consumers and engages in
responsible advertising and marketing practices. Our advertising and
marketing channels actively avoid misleading practices, such as false or
deceptive messages, omission of important information or
misrepresentation in respect of goods during the course of trade.
Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws,
rules and regulations such as the Trade Descriptions Ordinance.
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Our advertising and marketing plans take into consideration impacts
towards climate change and we pay attention to any new format available
in the market for advertising and communications. To reduce our
environmental footprint and accommodate the rising popularity of digital
format of marketing (such as mobile and APPs), we have steadily increased
our digital advertising and marketing budget in recent years.

In 2018, the amount of marketing spending on digital and electronic
platforms has increased by about 5% as comparing to 2017. We believe
that the growing trend of utilizing digital and electronic platforms shall
continue in the future. Following the launch of our SOGO Rewards
membership program in July 2016, mobile APPs, eDM and SMS have
become the major communication channels with our members. The
quantity of printed direct mailers in 2018 has decreased by 10% when
comparing to 2017. In addition, installation of LED display panels within
our stores also helps to deliver promotional information to our customers
in an environmentally friendly way. As a result, the quantity of printing
materials has been reduced. Besides, we have adopted FSC paper from
responsible sources for the printing of weekly newsletters and Thankful
Week leaflets. We have been closely monitoring the distribution of
printing materials in our stores and will adjust the quantity from time to
time to prevent any unnecessary wastage.

Consumer Data Management

With the aim of enhancing our customers’ shopping experience and
increasing their engagement with our SOGO stores via events and
promotions, Lifestyle International has leveraged upon an amount allowed
by the relevant privacy laws, consumers’ personal information for our
various direct marketing (including cross-marketing) purposes. We respect
the privacy and inviolability of the rights of our customers and we do not
reveal or use customer information for any other purpose and strictly
comply with our customer privacy policy. Customers have the right to
request us to update their personal information or delete their data from
our records.

Lifestyle International takes into serious account of personal data
protection and will ensure that adequate resources such as professional
staff and appropriate security measures are in place to protect customers’
personal data against any unauthorized use, access, modification or
disclosure. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations such as the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance.

We place utmost importance in protecting the privacy of customers
through the collection, processing and usage of their personal data. We
strictly ensure that customers’ personal data is always securely stored and
processed only for the purposes for which it has been collected. During
the reporting year, there were no complaints received concerning
breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Emissions

2358

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

BREABERIAZRELR KR HOEES  AEREE
BEDHEESH : @QEE : RO)ETHETABEATE
BRI EE KRG E R

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

MAS AR A B B R AR R B U -

KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BRESIEFA2AERBEERERTE -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
BREBIERAMINEEASEEDRERTE -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

HREVIERAMANELBZEZNRERTE -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

ARG BUE RA SRR R BE R B B R TSR -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
B E MR RALMEREEE RESEZEYN A  BIE
EEENEERASHR o

Use of Resources

BERER

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BREER - KEEMEME) HOBEK

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
and intensity
MR EBIR A VR B S EE R Mk REEE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BREBIERA22EFEKEREE -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

RS A U IR A2 3R BE TR (8 A Az 5 B S AT 1S AR -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

BB 1R R R A2. A% i SKERE A 7RO AT A el E - AR
BRI RKEE B R PTEKR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products
R A RUE AR m T A B EM B a8 -
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Reference

2

Environment — Environment Policy, Energy Efficiency
and Water Conservation, Energy and Water
Consumption, Sustainable Construction, Waste
Management and recycling

R —REBR - gRAas REA K - BEIRH
FERRKE  AIFEREE  BEYEERDW

Environment — Energy and water consumption

RIE— RN AKE

Environment — Energy and water consumption

RIE— BB R AKE

Considered to be not material

WRA/TEKX

Considered to be not material

R/ TEKN

Environment — Energy Efficiency and Water
Conservation, Energy and Water Consumption,
Sustainable Construction, Waste Management and
recycling

IRIR — R RET KRR « BEIRBRE R AK
B ARHERE EPDERE RO

Environment — Waste Management and recycling

BRI — EMEE kB

Environment — Environment Policy

B — BERE

Environment — Energy and water consumption
RIE— RN AKE
Environment — Energy and water consumption
R — BERERE R AKE

Environment — Energy Efficiency and Water
Conservation
IRIE — AEIR A Es R A A K

Environment — Energy and water consumption

RE — R AKE

Considered to be not material

WRB/TEKR
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‘A& The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRXARER

— Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the — Environment — Environment Policy
environment and natural resources.

—  REBTAHRERRABERERERZENHBE ° — RE—REERX

= KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on = Environment — Energy Efficiency and Water
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken Conservation, Waste Management and recycling
to manage them.

— BREMEEAIHAERBEBHRERRABIRNEANY —  RE—BERBAREHMAK  EYERRDOK

ERORBREERHETZENT -

Reference
2%

Employment and Labour Practices {E & & % T ¥R @ [ M m 1

B1. Employment @ w
(=4

= Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant = Employees — Staff and Workplace
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—  FEFMEEE  BERES  LERE - RE TEKg - — EE—BIMNI(ESM
St - RIEARAREMAE KB : (@K« Rb)EsT
HETABEAZENHEBEELROINER -

= KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age = Employees — Staff and Workplace
group and geographical region.

— BARERUEEBIIRIER - BEHRE - FRAR RMEE 5 —  [EE—B8IMI{EGF
BB 5 488K o

B2. Health and Safety
BREEZ2
— Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant — Employees — Health and Safety
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

— FARREZ2TERERABEEREBELEEZN : @K — REE—RE&EZE
K RO)ETHETAGEARZENRMERRAROINER -

B3. Development and Training

R R A

= Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for = Employees — Staff Training and Development
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—  ARRTHEERET TERE R ANB R EUR - S| — RE—BTHIIEHER
B o

‘ B4. Labour Standards

Q % TR

= Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant — Employees — Staff and Workplace
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— ARABLETRBEHSETH : @QEEK: ROETHETAR — EE—BINI{ESMA
BEAXENHBERRROINES -
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Operating Practices & E 18/l
B5.

"

Supply Chain Management
HrEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERHEENRE Rt R RS -

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

BEMRHERNRBHERERS  BS  BHEELES
BHIARMRITEDN : @QEE ROETHETAEEATLE
EVARRDER KR BIH AR -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

R RUERBO.S il H B E B R RE RFLEBOR - ARAR
BT RERTE -

Operating Practices — Supply Chain Management

BEBH —fEEEE

Operating Practices — Product Safety, Food Safety

LEEN —ERLE RmRETE

Operating Practices — Consumer Data Management

BEBY —HBEEREER

B7. Anti-corruption
RES
— Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant Employees — Anti-Corruption
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
—  FBEAMEER R RFERERER  @QBUK  Kb)ESF BE—R&ES
HETABEARZENHBEERLROIONER
< UM Y
B8. Community Investment

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
AR EZ2ERTREEMELRTEENRRELERLED
gERBLRIENBER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution

Social and Community Support

g Rt E

Social and Community Support

— ERERUEEBSIEIIHEEE - e RitESIE
= KPI B8.2 Resources contributed Social and Community Support
—  RERUEEBS2ABAEIR taRitExE

" \nterna“°“a| Holdings Limited Annug) Rep
sesty ort 5
\,\‘e 078

")/ N\




Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of nine
directors, including two executive directors, three non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group's business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. During the year and
up to the date of this report, there was no change in the
composition of the Board. The directors’ biographical details and
the relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of
Directors” in this annual report.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Executive Directors

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas the executive
directors are responsible, in addition to assisting in setting the
Group's strategic plan, for implementing the Board’s decisions,
monitoring and supervising the Group’s overall performance,
ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources are available to
implement the business strategies being adopted from time to time,
setting out and monitoring targets, plans and direction for
management, reporting to the Board on the Group's performance
and proposing business plans and strategies for further evaluation
and assessment by the Board.

There is a clear segregation of duties and responsibilities between
the Chairman and the executive directors.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the executive
directors, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.
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Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the executive directors and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/ her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of one year or three
years and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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(6)

(7)

Meetings 6) B=
The Board held five meetings during the year to review and EEERNFANYSERAARGEH  UWENHK
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results HE (AR aiE) REENPHRRRAZES
announcements and financial statements, connected and continuing NERBBHRE  BERSERERS
connected transaction, and to review quarterly operating REBAEENFELERR -
performance of the Group.
Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in RIEANRAMERBUNERE  EF
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance BREARSINSHEERTAZEAR
with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association. The AEFEER BREFNFALFESS
attendance record of each director at the Board meetings and ERAREBFRG 2REHIIWT
annual general meeting held during the year is set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE T BITERRE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors 8= Exgem BREBFRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Kam Sen BSREE 5/5 11
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 258/ A 4/5 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BB/ EE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEISEE 5/5 0/1
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy | FEL+ 5/5 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon IR B ST A 5/5 1M1
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham hEFHRZEE 4/5 1/1
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FFERAR S 5/5 0/1
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung EeHogiLE 5/5 1/1
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) ESZSRHETZESERZERK

Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.
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(8) Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional (8) EERERIBESXERRE
Development
Induction package covering the Group's businesses and the BENEEZESE (R SEGEERR
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed REEEBR EMARESEEERES
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any. T LEANREER - ARFHFEM
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's EFERMHBMAANEREESLR - AR
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules REMBAEERENRNER -

and other applicable regulatory requirements.
During the year, the directors participated the following training: FRN-EBEFD2EATEI

Types of Training

Directors =S e H kil

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Kam Sen 2S5 EE A,C

Ms. Lau Kam Shim 25 8N A A,C

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas B AC

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEGEE AC

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy BEBx+ AC

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MR B 5T £ ABC

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham figszE AB,C

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung AR A AB,C

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung EGaiE AB,C

A — reading materials given by the Company relating to the A — BIEBALHRHERAATIE
Company's businesses and regular updates on the Listing BUAREBRERBREREEDN
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements TRBI R EAEREERERNE
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities R

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums B — HEAHEFRBELEENER
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities g /g GH wE

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate C — HEEBLEELEE BHER
governance matters, environment and social issues or HERENEFHBRETHR
director’s duties and responsibilities = RET
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code"). After
specific enquiries by the Company, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s own code during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018. The directors have ensured that the financial statements
of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the remunerations paid/ payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately HK$1.6 million and
approximately HK$0.8 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group (including discontinued operation) respectively.
Details of significant non-audit services and the fees incurred are as
follows:

Review of interim financial information

for the six months ended 30 June 2018 HK$0.5 million
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Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises four members, namely, Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Mr. Hui Chiu Chung
and Mr. Ip Yuk Keung, all are independent non-executive directors.
The audit committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, who is a
certified public accountant. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) toreview the Company's financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

EE2BETHNERS
BEAREEH BREEE FHEAGRE
AEAGIEEF - BRSNS A 0BREER
S ARPEFEETEARE -

(1) BHRZEE"
BV BemmAK AN - BIMIKE L
HAERER  FFRBAEREHRL
£ 2RBKEBORBIFATES -BX
ZEEAMEBRELETR  BRAME
SETEN - BERREGRREHIANERAE
17

BAETANTRRTEZCEREZES
BEGEHIZEGE 2 RIMBECDEHR
RAR B o

BRZEGZIERENT
BEHAR AN R A 2 AR TS B B

REARZBILE EEE XA EZ
HEM:

=

(i) BHARAZHBHRERRE &
FIREEN 2 #8) REGHEST
AR EmAR B ROABIAR
E

(i) EBERAKEZMBREEHNE - Bk
BERAMEENEISERE &

v BOTRERSCETHRIZOLE
AR mEE -

FR BERZBEEERTMAEHE - BX

BeRBHRESRZCHHINWT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members ERZEENE HiE BITEERE
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MIKBE A (FFF) 2/2
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEHEE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung PR 2/2
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung EgoaiE 2/2

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group’s interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
and (iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group.
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(2)

(3)

Remuneration Committee (2) ifr@ﬂéﬁ 2

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three FNZE 2R =R B IENITEETMIKE

independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, f‘ﬁi(ﬁﬁ'ﬁ TNEE 2 EE) « AEHZE

Simon who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, The [EPNESEts %EM& ZIFRTEEIE

Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and one non- BAEENK - FINEE SR RHAHWER

executive director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The DAJ@?‘TEH&%E\ °

remuneration committee is provided with sufficient resources to

discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out REETANTIRIAIEZHMNEES

the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the BEREFIIEZEG RN RBEDER

guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on AR R -

the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide FMEEE I EBERRTIRERE

advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration $ATIT La% REBNEERSRERE

packages of the directors and senior management; (i) any specific ZEHMES  (E2EMSERL  A%RE

remuneration packages with reference to market conditions, &1.)\2%35%&%%5%@75#%”%29*5

performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the kB rE - HERABHMEE - Kiin

goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (i) if VERBREEFNEREERBRILERZE

necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office eI EE B LB -

of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The FRN FHNEEGLRIT—RgH-BE

attendance record of each committee member is set out below: ,5\@52/\ @& sE s
Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FHEESERE HEBITERRE

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BlBs et 11

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) RIS A (EE) 1/1

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEH=EE 1/1

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung R e A 1/1

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and FMZEgRe FEANEBERSIE

recommended for the Board's approval (i) the discretionary bonus HEFITEER :i*tiﬁZE’J’\$+E%I ;

for the executive directors for the year 2017; and (ii) the &(u —E-N\FEZEEHNG

remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2018.

Nomination Committee (3) REZESE

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent RELZEGH=-BBEIIFNTEEMIKE

non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon who is the CE(RARZEZEESZER) AEHR

chairman of the nomination committee, The Hon. Shek Lai Him,
Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and one non-executive director,
namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The nomination committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.
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The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

REZEGZIERBEWT

) ZEIEFRTEFTENRE KE
ABEAEA (BYEREE MBS
FE)  YREMRESARRNA
AREMBEHESTSFLNERE
Bz RS

(i) YEAREABEARIETERSNX
BEMAL YHESERLEES
MABMEEGRAABAE X

(i) MEFELHEHEZTUARES (L
HRIFERITRAE) BETENE
MEERAEFSRLES -

PREEBER/REBARRESTNEER
RAENRRA - TRSERARRIRES
BERN—#D RERERAESSEHS
FREAR REZBEEZHEFLE
B PInEE NEE - RAT AR BN E
BEEREFTEHANER - URERA
RRAIBEEFENELTTIEBED  FRES
ERBETIZAER ARG ED
EEHREFSFHES -

REZBENTARNEBIIFATESH
Bt -

FRREEEEURTREHR-EE
AR AN EERZEHHTINT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members REEZEEHKE HE BITEERE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas B uE 11
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) IR B A (£ FE) 11

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEHEE
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung PR A

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and (iii)
made recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-election
of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.

The Group's system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.
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The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organizational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
directors and audit committee periodically. The internal audit also follows
up with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

pEBARAT =3
A
,,k\\’k@

Ng

EEe BV AETRBREFAENAEMRE -
BRERRETHEREREREEFSSH A
AHmEnmRnR)  NEEAEENTBE R
BEEE HEEBEURABEREFIENE
BEERENR  BEELEERENEREELA
MERRAR UYMEFGRELZEERSAR
Af A B i IR B NP E R R A AR AER -

NEEZRHEAEBRREE R AREE R
B 7 RIZE AR 2 B RS - FEANEBERZ
AENERAREIELEREBNLFHER
B - Wit kR E—HMETHARERER W
ERZEME AL - BREFEIANIERT
TSN - REDE AL BB T Bt BT H R BI 3k
HETE - ANEXEHNEREEARANEZE
HNHEERTHAEEHRARNTEZTRERE
BEHmE - ARERII BB ETHASEE
BEERE  UERZERFMARMERERNSE
Rt

R



Corporate Governance Report (continued) 73 &4 R & ()

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2018 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysis’s briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive directors and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders.
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In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.

Dividend Policy

It is the Company'’s current intention to continue keeping the 35% pay-out
ratio as its dividend policy through the distribution of interim and final
dividend to our shareholders in the foreseeable future.

The amount of dividend each year however will be subject to the
discretion of the Board and will depend on a number of factors including
the Group's financial performance each year and expected future earnings;
availability of the Company’s cash and distributable reserves; investment
requirement; cashflow and working capital requirement; and general
financial and market conditions.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the “"Corporate Governance” on the homepage of the
Company's website.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylehk.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Mr. Lau, aged 30, was appointed as an executive director in June 2017. He
is responsible for project management of the Group. Mr. Lau holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New York
and a Master of Arts degree from New York University. He has previously
worked in investment banking with a global financial institution in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a trustee of the Board of Trustees of China Institute in
America. Mr. Lau is the son of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, the brother of
Ms. Lau Kam Shim and the nephew of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Ms. Lau, aged 31, was appointed as an executive director in March 2016.
She also acts as director of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lau joined
the Group in October 2012 and was responsible for international
boutiques and sales promotion division of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from King's College London, University of London
and a Master of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New
York. Ms. Lau is the daughter of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, the sister of
Mr. Lau Kam Sen and the niece of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman

Mr. Lau, aged 64, joined the Company in January 2004. He has been the
Chairman of the Company since 2015. Mr. Lau is also the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive director of Lifestyle China Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee
and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, the PRC. Mr. Lau is the father of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau
Kam Shim, and the brother of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 74, joined the Company in March 2005. He is also the vice-
chairman and non-executive director of New World Development
Company Limited and an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, both being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Doo is also the chairman and director of
Fungseng Prosperity Holdings Limited (previous known as Fung Seng
Enterprises Holdings Limited). He is a Justice of the Peace appointed by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He is
also the Honorary Consul General of the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong
Kong and Macau, and a Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce
in Hong Kong. Mr. Doo was awarded the Chevalier de la Légion
d'Honneur by the Republic of France in 2008.
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Profile of Directors (continued) & £/ ()

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Ms. Lau, aged 65, joined the Company in March 2004. She is also a non-
executive director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a
Doctor of Dental Surgery degree from University of Toronto, Canada. She
is a retired dentist registered with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of
Ontario, Canada. Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, and
the aunt of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 69, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Lam graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree. After
graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat Marwick and obtained his
qualification as a chartered accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in 1979 and certified public accountant
from the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1980. He is also a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a
practicing accountant for over 25 years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L.
Lam & Company, a firm of certified public accountants. He has served as a
member of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He is an
independent non-executive director of Le Saunda Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (Abraham Razack) (GBS, SBS, JP)
Mr. Shek, aged 73, joined the Company in March 2004. He has been a
member of the Legislative Council for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region representing real estate and construction functional
constituency since 2000. Mr. Shek is a member of the Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and Court and Council
Member of The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is a non-executive
director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and a
member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption. Mr. Shek is an independent non-
executive director of MTR Corporation Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited,
NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited,
Chuang’s China Investments Limited, ITC Properties Group Limited,
Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings
Limited, SUM Holdings Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited, Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, Everbright Grand China Assets
Limited and CSI Properties Limited, all being companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock Exchange) and Regal
Portfolio Management Limited (the manager of Regal Real Estate
Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Shek holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree and has extensive experience in the property
development field. Mr. Shek was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and
Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2007 and 2013 respectively.
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Profile of Directors (continued) EZE// ()

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (JP)

Mr. Hui, aged 71, joined the Company in July 2005. Mr. Hui is the chairman
and chief executive officer of Luk Fook Financial Services Limited and has
over 47 years of experience in the securities and investment industry. He
had for years been serving as a council member and vice chairman of the
Stock Exchange, a member of the advisory committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited, a member of the listing committee of the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the
Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform, and an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. He was also
a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and a member of Government
“"Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region a Justice of the Peace in
2004 and has served as a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and senior
fellow member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr.
Hui also serves as an independent non-executive director of Zhuhai
Holdings Investment Group Limited, Gemdale Properties and Investment
Corporation Limited, China South City Holdings Limited, SINOPEC
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd., Agile Group Holdings Limited and FSE
Services Group Limited (formerly known as FSE Engineering Holdings
Limited) and a non-executive director of Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

Mr. Ip, aged 66, joined the Company in April 2014. He is an international
banking and real estate professional with over 30 years of experience in
the United States, Asia and Hong Kong. His expertise are in real estate
finance, corporate banking, risk management, wealth management and
transaction banking. Previously managing director and corporate bank
head of Citigroup and managing director of investments at Merrill Lynch
(Asia Pacific), Mr. Ip currently serves as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Langham Hospitality Investments (“LHI") and Langham
Hospitality Investments Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange) and LHIL
Manager Limited (the trustee-manager of LHI) and a non-executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the manager of
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock
Exchange). He is also an independent non-executive director of Hopewell
Holdings Limited, Power Assets Holdings Limited, TOM Group Limited
and New World Development Company Limited, all being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ip is an Adjunct Professor of City University of Hong Kong, The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and The Hang Seng University
of Hong Kong. He is also a Chairman of the Advisory Board for the Master
of Science in Finance and an Honorary Professor at Lingnan University, a
Member of the International Advisory Board of College of Business at City
University of Hong Kong, a Council Member and a Member of the
Business School Advisory Council at The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, a Professor of Practice (International Banking and Real
Estate) at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a member of the
International Advisory Committee and Adjunct Distinguished Professor in
Practice at University of Macau, an executive fellow in Asia and a trustee of
the Board of Trustees at Washington University in St. Louis, and an
honorary fellow of Vocational Training Council. He is a vice chairman of the
World Green Organization and a member of the committee on
Certification for Principalship at the Education Bureau of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied Mathematics and
Computer Science at Washington University in St. Louis (summa cum
laude), a Master of Science degree in Applied Mathematics at Cornell
University and a Master of Science degree in Accounting and Finance at
Carnegie-Mellon University.
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The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores in Hong
Kong and other retailing format and property development and property
investment.

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 89 to 90.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.370
in cash per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 7 May 2019. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting, the final dividend will be paid
on 17 May 2019. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.295 per share,
the total cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 is HK$0.665
per share.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
"Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 9 and pages 10 to 23 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Highlights” on pages
4 to 5. No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end
of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 48 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (continued) £ =% % (&)

Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire as well as consignment arrangement.
In the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group in respect of our direct
and consignment sales accounted for approximately 57% of the Group's
total purchase and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 23% of the Group's total purchase. The five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
turnover during the year.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder so far as is
known to the directors having more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company, within the knowledge of the directors, has any
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Donations

During the year, the Group (including discontinued operation) made
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$0.6 million (2017: HK$1.5
million).
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Directors’ Report (continued) E 5 & & (&)

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Kam Sen
Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman)
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

In accordance with Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Lau Kam Shim, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report (continued) £ =% % (&)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2018, the directors’ and the chief executive’s interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange ("Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in shares of the Company

EERESTHRAERRST - HER
pREERZER
RNZZE—NF+_A=1+—HB ZE2=LES]
BABRARF S EAR 2 BEEE (Z(EH R
SR EHREEED]) EXV S RESE)
2R - MR G REEE PR EIREEH R
EIEFIEI2EMELERABEF 2 B MRk
RIEBBHERXFERAE ([BRAT])#FE L
AR A ([ ETRRAD) M8+ Fra 2 ( ETETA
ERETEFRZNEESTRINZESTA] A
MERNB R R RARHIAT -

(i) A2EARGZER

Number of Percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERE HERTRG
EEgE MY 4= ZEBEDL
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 113,403,292 7.55%
REE oA EnERA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 1) 1,011,694,500 67.36%
REGAE R (1)
Trustee (Note 2) 1,000,000 0.07%
ZEA (H5E2)
Mr. Lau Kam Sen Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2) 1,000,000 0.07%
E5REE ErEZmA (:E2)
Ms. Lau Kam Shim Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2) 1,000,000 0.07%
25 /N H FEZmA (H:E2)
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy Beneficiary of a trust and Trustee (Note 2) 1,000,000 0.07%
AEELL ERZmARZITEA (H:E2)
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Directors’ Report (continued) E 5 & & (&)

(ii)

Notes:

1.

The 1,011,694,500 shares comprise:

0]

(i)

540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited ("United
Goal”). United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas through his controlled corporations and as to 20%
by certain family members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder
brother of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same

parcel of shares in which United Goal is interested.

471,694,500 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic
Castle”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be

interested in the same parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

These shares are held by a trust for an estate in which certain family

members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas have interest. Mr. Lau Luen Hung,

Thomas and Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy are the trustees of the trust and each of
Mr. Lau Kam Sen, Ms. Lau Kam Shim and Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy is a
beneficiary under the trust, and therefore each of them is deemed to be

interested in such shares by virtue of the SFO.

Long position in debentures of associated corporations of
the Company

(a)

LS Finance (2025) Limited
- 4.50% guaranteed bonds due 2025

ffeE

1.

#%1,011,694,5000% % 19 £ 45 -

0]

(i)

540,000,000% f% 7 B United Goal
Resources Limited ([ United Goal |)
#54 ° United Goal &8 L £ 18
BE S A E SR 80% RN 1
wm R BB E (RBIEREEY
B ) B FREK B XA 20% /%
iR o IRBEFEFRIE KD - 2%
6 45 A AR A ¥ B United Goal FTHF
BEERERDER

471,694,5000% B& 17 B 1808 S £ 2
& # A 2 Dynamic Castle Limited
([Dynamic Castle]) #75 - RIEEH
REAE RG] - JIEIR K ERIR RE
& Dynamic Castle FTH A HER AZ 5
WS o

ZERMBIEREEETREKERE S
BAED ZBERGTRA - EBEERE
EBRTRZERNZTA  URBISRE
& RS MARBIERXERARERET
ZEEA Rt REEFRAEGES - K
ERWEREEZSR S

(i) AQFZHEHBEIEEEZENEE

(a)

LS Finance (2025) Limited
-4.50% R 2025 F R A E R RES

Amount of
Name of Director Nature of interest debentures held (US$)
EEHA ERME FrEEEEeE (Ex)
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 4,000,000
BB E=lEAE A
Mr. Lau Kam Sen Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 15,000,000
SEREE ZEHEE R (1)
Ms. Lau Kam Shim Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 10,000,000

258/ A

REHDEE R (ME2)
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Directors’ Report (continued) £ =% % (&)

(b) LS Finance (2022) Limited
- 4.25% guaranteed bonds due 2022

(b) LS Finance (2022) Limited

-4.25%R2022 F BB ERES

Amount of
Name of Director Nature of interest debentures held (US$)
EEnE FEEME FiEEEESE ()
Mr. Lau Kam Sen Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 2,000,000
BSREE A E R ()
Ms. Lau Kam Shim Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 2,000,000
2154/ A A E R (2)
Notes: Bt 5
1. These debentures are held by Magic Achieve Limited ("Magic 1. Z % EREE BAMagic Achieve
Achieve”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Kam Sen. By virtue of Limited ([ Magic Achieve ) 3§ & -
the SFO, Mr. Lau Kam Sen is deemed to be interested in the same ZARBBSREEEZEHER R
parcel of debentures in which Magic Achieve is interested. BEFLBEGED - 85 RTER
15 B B Magic Achieve 8 f 18 R
EEEER -
2. These debentures are held by Dynasty Sky Limited (“Dynasty Sky"), 2. #% % f& 4% 3 i Dynasty Sky Limited

which is wholly owned by Ms. Lau Kam Shim. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Lau Kam Shim is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
debentures in which Dynasty Sky is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief executive had any
interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right
during the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under

the SFO

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the

i

RERSFRPE

SIRBIATIRHEZRR

RZB-NF+ZA=+—8" THALTE
EAR
KRR D P 158 R R 75 K BB {5 01 58 336 {15
%ﬁmuaﬁﬁ\b\ﬁrzyﬁaaﬁﬁWi%ﬂ@

AEFRESTRAR)RAAF 2 KN

ZA/NCIWA

Company: FORBEIIT
Long position in shares of the Company KABRRGBZER
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERG HEBRTRSO
=18 EEME A ZED
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 3) 540,000,000 35.95%
BmEA A (PHFE3)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 3) 540,000,000 35.95%
(“Asia Prime") YRR EBE S (1 &3)
Sand Cove Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 2 and 3) 540,000,000 35.95%
(“Sand Cove") IR EBE S (HE2%3)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 3) 471,694,500 31.41%
BmEA A (HEE3)
Notes: B 5
1. Asia Prime, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, holds 1. Asia Prime & 8|88 St IR 2 N F - HiFE
80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia 80% United Goal 2 B B 1TIRA « IRIFE A RIE
Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising {611+ Asia Prime# 12 AF United Goal Bz B 1)
540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner. 540,000,000 & % 17 o #E B A8 B #E o o
2. Sand Cove, which is wholly owned and directly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, 2. Sand Cove R EIEE A2 EHA KA REH - &
Thomas, is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 100% voting power at G REAE Asia Prime R K& 1718 sk 2 4775 100 %
general meetings of Asia Prime. By virtue of SFO, Sand Cove is deemed to be MR o IRIBEE 5 LB E &P - Sand Cove #i 47
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asia Prime is deemed to be B LM ATl Asia Prime FTAR A A /98 R
interested as set out in Note 1 above. Bt i s o
3. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim are directors 3. BB -~ RS R AE KBS IE /)N AUnited Goal
of United Goal and Sand Cove. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is also the sole J2Sand Cove 2 B % © 8l 8 % A4 I BAsia Prime 2
director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle. Dynamic Castle 2 M — & = ©
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any B EXFEZRREN  MEEMNAL(KRFES
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who & =EITHA BRIN MAQGBAER =T —/)\
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares ofthe F+ZA=+—HBHEREZBLFLBEKHE
Company as at 31 December 2018 which were recorded in the register  3361§#7E uaﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁrzﬁuaﬂﬁWiﬂ@ﬂi

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the

Company.
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Share Options

The share option scheme (2009 Share Option Scheme”) was approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 3 March 2009 for a period of 10 years
commencing from 3 March 2009 as incentive or rewards for the
contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to
provide to the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Under the
2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options to any
employee, director, consultant or adviser, distributor, contractor, supplier,
service provider, agent, customer and business partner of the Company
and/or any subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised under the terms of the 2009 Share
Option Scheme. However, the Board may offer to grant any options
subject to such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of
the options to be held and/or the performance targets to be achieved
before such options can be exercised and/or any other terms as the Board
may determine in its absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at 3 March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company, which
represented approximately 11.11% of the issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this report.

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding options
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, and the proposed grant of options will result in the
total number of share issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer and having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at general
meeting. The connected person involved in such proposed grant to
options and all other connected persons of the Company must abstain
from voting in such general meeting (except that any connected person
may vote against the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so
has been stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).
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Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the
offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of offer),
upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the offer. Options may be
exercised at any time during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the offer.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No options were granted or subsisted at any time during the year. The
2009 Share Option Scheme expired on 2 March 2019.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements
Save for the share option scheme described above, the Group has not
entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section "Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Specific Performance Covenant on Controlling
Shareholders

In July 2016, the Company as guarantor and through its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a HK$8 billion 5-year secured loan
facility agreement with a group of banks.

In April 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower,
entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of financial institutions
for a term loan of up to HK$9 billion. The final maturity date of the facility
shall be the earlier of the date falling (i) 60 months from the utilisation date
of the facility; and (ii) 6 months after issuance of a certificate of compliance
by the Director of Lands for the development of the New Kowloon Land
Lot No. 6557, Kai Tak Area 1E Site 2, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Under the aforesaid facility agreements, unless with the banks’ written
consent, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, his family members and/or his family
trust arrangements and Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph's family members and/
or his family trust arrangements shall remain the major shareholders of the
Company with shareholding interest, directly or indirectly, of not less than
50.1% and retain management control of the Group.
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Connected Transaction

On 31 July 2018, a sale and purchase agreement ("S&P Agreement”) was
entered into between Vision Pilot Group Limited (“Purchaser”, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Majestic Eagle Limited (“Vendor”,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Lifestyle China Group Limited ("Lifestyle
China")), which the Purchaser agreed to purchase and the Vendor agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Global Top Limited (“Global Top”)
at a consideration of HK$52 million.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a controlling shareholder of the Company
and Lifestyle China. In view of his interest in Lifestyle China, the Vendor is
an associate of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and therefore connected
person of the Company. As a result, the S&P Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Details of the transaction were set out in the joint announcement of the
Company dated 31 July 2018.

Continuing Connected Transaction

The following transaction of the Group constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transaction (“Continuing Connected Transaction”) for the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 under the Listing
Rules.

Hong Kong Restaurant Tenancy Agreement

The Group through its subsidiary, Congenial Company Limited, entered
into a tenancy agreement with Global Top dated 10 June 2016 (“Hong
Kong Restaurant Tenancy Agreement”) to lease a portion of 22/F., East
Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong ("HK
Restaurant Property”) for restaurant operation purpose for a term from 1
June 2016 to 31 December 2018 at a rent calculated at 17% of the monthly
sales proceeds of Global Top generated at the HK Restaurant Property
(exclusive of government rent, rates and management fee).

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, a non-executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, either directly or indirectly owns 74.91%
interest in Lifestyle China. Global Top was a wholly owned subsidiary of
Lifestyle China prior to its disposal to the Group on 31 July 2018. In view of
the interest of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas in Lifestyle China, Global Top
was an associate of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

temational Holdings Limiteq
\e n!

BHERXS

RZZE—)/\F+tHA=+—H ' Vision Pilot Group
Limited (B 5] - BARBMNE2ENB AR H

Majestic Eagle Limited ([ E77] + RFEHEEE

ERAR(MEFEDNE2EMBAR)IILE
Bk (f?—iETﬁ% %) BUESCREBEMR
HERBHEERERAR (ES]) 28 &7

A RIEBEAS2EEET -

RIgR e BRARI RFIEF R ZIERBE - B
FEERANRTRE s B AREREE 2
B2A VEALABRQARZBEAL I BEE
HEERNAARR ETRUNEVAZE TN 2 —H
HERS

RPABERARAAP R/ -_FT—-NFLH
=t—RZBARE-

REREXRS

EoF - \F+ZA=+—BILFEN - RE
ETRE - NEEZ TR ERTERREE
BiEx s ((BEmERS)) -

7

EEEEHEEHS
A5 3% 3B H I )& 2~ §lCongenial Company
Limited Bt SN ZZ—RFNA TR ZEER

= ((BEERBEERH])  NERTBREE
JEFFHBO555R R A L2218 8 — A D ([ BB ERE
%%J)f’ﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘“%ﬁﬁﬁ FHR_T—RFRA

—BEZT-N\F+A=+—H Haigts
EA%-?/’%AXE%%%EEE’]lHﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fxlﬁﬁ%ﬁ
H(HBRBEES  ZMRERE) -

RABFEAITE EFRIEB AR DB EE R
F'ﬁ&%z&ﬁ%lﬁaaﬁPIM7491%%>’\° RZE—N\F
tA=+—BEETFAEERN  EEZAFEFR

ﬁ%%ﬁ%%@ﬁo%%%@ﬁ%i%ﬂ%%ﬁ
B - S ARIAE L EMBEA - At R
HETRA BRATMMEAL -

Annue,
Rep,
Ort 2
(&



Directors’ Report (continued) E 5 & & (&)

The transactions contemplated under the Hong Kong Restaurant Tenancy
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The aggregate rental received by the
Group for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 July 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$7.04 million.

The Continuing Connected Transaction above has been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have confirmed
that for the year ended 31 December 2018 the Continuing Connected
Transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Save as the transaction disclosed in Continuing Connected Transaction
section above, none of the related party transactions in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

The following directors have interests in the following businesses which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as disclosed pursuant to Rule

8.10 of the Listing Rules:

EERNBRFRG 2D
T EF RN AEA RIE L T8 100F 5
BB R R R B R R A F R A R

B SR

Description of

Nature of interest

of the director

Name of director Name of entity businesses in the entity
EERZERZ

EENA BREH EBEN EREE

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William New World Development Property development and Director

MHEEEE Company Limited investment and department ~ E %

it RERBR AR

Ace Action Ltd.
group of companies
Ace Action Ltd. & N3

Amelia Gold Limited
group of companies
Amelia Gold Limited& N £ &

Fortune Success Limited
group of companies

BsERRARIET R H

Fung Seng Enterprises
Investment Company Limited
group of companies

CREEREFRARETEE

Fung Seng Enterprises Limited
group of companies

CRERAROXARARETRE

Golden Wealth Investment Limited
group of companies

CEREGRAFETEE

Oriental Triumph Inc.
group of companies

RIBERARETEH

Silver City International Limited
group of companies
Silver City International Limited

BET&EE

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
group of companies

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
ET &R

nt
\J\’(esw\e !
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store operations

MEBRIMBENBELE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment and
management

MERERERE

Property investment and
development

MERE LER
Property and hotel investment

W FOBERE

Property investment and food
and beverage operations

MEREREREE

Property investment

MERE
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Director and
shareholder

EEMBR

Director and
shareholder

EERRRE

Director and
shareholder

EENMER

Director and
shareholder

EEMER

Director and
shareholder

EERRE

Director and
shareholder

BEENMER

Director and
shareholder

EEMER

Director and
shareholder

EERRE

Director and
shareholder

BEEMER
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Description of

Nature of interest
of the director

Name of director Name of entity businesses in the entity
E=ZNZERZ

EEpgE HEREEE EBEN EEMtE

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy Chinese Estates Holdings Limited Property investment and Director

BlEEL+ Chinese Estates Holdings Limited development 5%

(EAEXEE)

As the Board of the Company is independent of the boards of the above-
mentioned companies and none of the above directors are in control of
the Board of the Company, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length, the businesses of
these companies.

Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung
appointed as a Professor of Practice (International Banking and Real
Estate) at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University on 1 September
2018

—  ceased to be an Adjunct Professor at The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University on 31 August 2018

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company repurchased a
total of 100,670,500 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for
enhancing the net asset value and earnings per share of the Company. All
the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. Details of the
repurchases of shares are as follows:

BE HEFEEAQAES

HE-_Z-\F+A=+—HIEFER AR

A

44 X

gh >

FBE a4 2L

100,670,500 & A= 22 &I A 7 LA

REARAESENEEFERAN - ZFEOK
EREREH - ARBRRND ZFEHIIT

Number of Price paid per share Aggregate

shares BRBEE consideration

Month repurchased Highest Lowest (excluding expenses)

A BERDHE == RE HBAE(FEERX)

(HK$) (HK$) (HK$'000)

(B7T) (B7T) (T 7T)

June 2018 11,420,500 16.70 15.60 185,534
—E-N\FXHA

July 2018 11,710,500 17.06 15.84 194,000
—ZE-NF+tH

August 2018 25,151,000 15.80 14.44 379,022
—ZE-NFENHA

September 2018 32,112,500 15.70 14.70 488,298
—E-N\FNA

October 2018 20,276,000 15.50 13.28 291,949
—E-\%F+AH

100,670,500 1,538,803

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, taking into
consideration of the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 685 employees in
Hong Kong. Staff costs (excluding directors” emoluments) amounted to
HK$237.9 million (2017: HK$241.8 million) for the year. The Group ensures
that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line with market
trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance related basis
within the general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Kam Shim

Executive Director

4 March 2019

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&

Ng

N R R

AEEZFMERZERZRA  AEREAN
HE - AAREEZHENEFHEEGLER
ADTUSEEE - BRRARLETSREME
HitRT o

==

RZZE-N\FE+_A=Z+—B AEEREHHL
BR85S EREE - AFEZEBIRAN (TREES
Be) B2379BERL(ZE—+LF 241868
BIL) c AEERREEFHKFEAFTEF HIRE
AMGBY BEEZHFHBREBEASE  —BH
CERRTEAHEARREERRET -

RAARFERE

BEAARFEZ AREHRBEEMOE - 7
AEREAH RRALRIBEFATRNZ
25% ©

M

AERGEAMBREACKHZUENTE « BER
HERETT ([EE]) Bz - ARBRNRAEETT
ZBERBFASRZEBRBHA/NR AR Z

NN
REBR

REEHE
e
HTES

—E-NAF=AMNHAE

%



Independent Auditor’'s Report

B ZBERE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
NEEREEAERLT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 186, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNESNAHBRENSRETRE

Valuation of investment property under development

EEREYENIEE

We identified the valuation of the investment property under development
(“IPUD") as a key audit matter due to the significant unobservable inputs
and significant judgement associated with determining the fair value.

MR ETEE N T EABNERT A BENE AZURME R HE - AR5
HERKEME(ERREVEDNGHERARERFE -

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the fair value
of the Group's IPUD as at 31 December 2018 of HK$5,132,000,000 was
determined based on a valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer (the “Valuer”) using income approach with reference to
comparable rental transactions in the relevant market and takes into
account the construction cost already incurred as well as the estimated
cost to be incurred to complete the project plus the developer’s estimated
profit and margin for risk.

WIR A M BHRERMT17E - EEER - N\F+A=+—HZ
R E Y3 A T1E/5,132,000,00078 7T, » ZEE THRIEE 7 F (L ERD
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
the IPUD included:
BMEBERREMELENREFEHE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the Valuer;
AL ERER - gE MR EIE

Obtaining the valuation report and
discussing the valuation methodology and
key inputs with the Valuer;

RS MERS - LHREEMD I GETE
KR m AR

Assessing the valuation methodology and
reasonableness of key inputs used in the
valuation of IPUD, based on our
knowledge of the property industry,
market evidence of capitalisation rates,
prevailing market rents and recent
comparable rental transactions for similar
property; and

BEH MY ETEN D EREED
Mmi5EE  BITmSEE REUY E&R
ALLEBR S - SRR E M EEEM
REEETER AR ABIRN SR
&

Checking, on a sample basis, the data used
in the valuation of IPUD, including the
estimated cost for completion by agreeing
to the approved budgets and the
estimated developer’s profit and margin
for risk comparing to historical record.
MEREEZREMFAEMAHE AR
B BREAGEC B ENTEE TR E
SRS T B i 7R O £ S ) e g LR SR
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Key audit matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNESNAHBRENSRETRE

Capitalisation and additions to investment property under development and construction in progress

EEREYFERGEETIEELXIEREM

We identified the capitalisation and additions to IPUD and construction in
progress (“CIP") as a key audit matter due to the significance of these
transactions to the Group’s investment properties and property, plant and
equipment.

BHMBAHERRENERERZIR ((ERIRDENMRE NSRS
FTFE REARZEXRSH ESENREMEURDE  BHERRE
BB RIE

As disclosed in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the capitalisation and additions to IPUD and CIP during the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$260.8 million and
HK$257.5 million, respectively. The relevant accounting policies are set out
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements under the headings of
“Investment properties”, “Property, plant and equipment” and “Borrowing
costs”.

IR B M REAME7 RISPAEE - BE-F - \F+_A=+—HiLt
FE ERREMERTERIRERMERIEMD RIH 26088 & TR
257 5B BB - MBS BREIINGEVBRRMTAREDE] - 9
¥ BELRRBIMMEEKRAS] S -
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Our procedures in relation to capitalisation and
additions to IPUD and CIP included:
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Obtaining an understanding of the
construction progress of the Group's IPUD
and CIP projects by interviewing the
Group's project team;

BATHE EEEEEER TH 5%
EERIREMERTERTIZNMIEE |

Obtaining an understanding and
evaluating the internal control over the
Group's budgeting and related payments
for the IPUD and CIP projects;

TEAGE EEEHTERREVERE
R TIZENTRH FIAERE ST By R BB -

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Group's construction costs’ capitalisation
policy by comparing it against the
accounting policies of “Investment
properties” and “Property, plant and
equipment” as disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, and the
reasonableness of the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation against the
accounting policy of “Borrowing costs” as
disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements; and

BREE ESEREKNTNERMCBE
Rz e M BmRMT4aBENIREME]
K% - BB RRE N GFBERTEE
HEM  ARFEERMEBEER AR RER
EUBRRMTARENMBEERR NS
AR RTEEA B R

Checking, on a sample basis, the amounts
of additions and proper accruals with
reference to the contracts, contractors’
claim forms or invoices and quantity
surveyors' certificates in respect of the
IPUD and CIP.
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau King Pak.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
4 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEeESERAMEERRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 BLZE — T — NF+_A=+—HLLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M 51 FHExT FHET
(Restated)
(E51)
Continuing operation BEKEXEL
Turnover e 6 4,358,010 3,755,092
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,142,748) (924,502)
Gross profit EH 3,215,262 2,830,590
Other income, gains and losses EaUg A - Wzm & BB 8 108,507 53,749
Selling and distribution costs HE M EKA (721,950) (669,671)
Administrative expenses TR (137,485) (131,288)
Interest and investment (losses) gains M B NIEE (B5E) Wi 9 (270,971) 735,063
Fair value changes on investment properties BREMERNTELES 17 251,200 823,200
Finance costs B & R AN 10 (282,187) (228,954)
Profit before taxation B #5% AiT 42 ) 2,162,376 3,412,689
Taxation TiIE 11 (472,306) (537,015)
Profit for the year from continuing REERBFHELE
operation EFi Segil 12 1,690,070 2,875,674
Discontinued operation FRFEREE
Profit for the year from REEREFFRFELE
discontinued operation %5 F 14 — 426,710
Profit for the year REEHH 1,690,070 3,302,384
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hit2EEA (XH)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BERFIBEERT D2 1B
profit or loss: ZIEA -
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEBINEBREEZ
foreign operation [ W, =58 — 16,177
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of DG INI B R R EFIE
foreign subsidiaries HiEEcEN — (102,178)
Other comprehensive expense for the year REEEMEESZ H
(net of tax) (F0BrFEE) — (86,001)
Total comprehensive income for the year AKEEE2EBRABLEE 1,690,070 3,216,383
Profit for the year attributable to owners of REFARRBHE A
the Company: JEAE & A -
— from continuing operation — REABBEEEER 1,690,070 2,875,674
— from discontinued operation — REFHELEED — 424,848
1,690,070 3,300,522
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling RNFE IR RS
interests: FEMR A -
— from continuing operation — REFER — —
— from discontinued operation — RE R EEEETS — 1,862
— 1,862
Profit for the year AN g T 1,690,070 3,302,384
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued) 55185 & Hib 2 E R H & (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E — \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FET FET
(Restated)
(&71))
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FER2EBALRE -
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZF =N 1,690,070 3,207,979
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS — 8,404
1,690,070 3,216,383
Earnings per share (s ek 16
From continuing and discontinued REFERIFRELE
operation S
— Basic — &K HK$1.08 HK$2.06
From continuing operation RERFELEETE
— Basic — &K HK$1.08 HK$1.79
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

at 31 December 2018 A —ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
—E-N\E —tF —T—tF
+=ZA=+—-H +-A=+—8 —H—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M EE FHER FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(251) (251)
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investment properties REWE 17 5,132,000 4,620,000 4,327,884
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMRE 18 5,876,308 5,708,076 5,668,295
Prepaid lease payments EREERE - — 548,191
Deposits paid for acquisition of FEEME
property, plant and equipment W= R&EzRE 28,715 29,899 66,230
Club debentures SHES 19,137 19137 19137
11,056,160 10,377,112 10,629,737
Current assets MENE E
Inventories "E 19 44,783 38,305 35,454
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE — — 16,123
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3R % L B MR IR 20 189,569 176,022 197,041
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABRZ
profit or loss SREE 21 3,080,999 3,349,047 2,440,605
Time deposits EHEFER 22 4,782,877 — —
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 22 1,413,115 7,423,068 7,536,764
9,511,343 10,986,442 10,225,987
Current liabilities MENBE
Trade and other payables FER BRI R K A B 5k 1B 23 1,046,371 1,072,051 1,047,374
Contract liabilities AWERE 24 153,496 156,786 136,758
Tax payable FESIFIR 290,459 211,886 320218
Bank borrowings — due within one FITEE ——FR
year gl 25 3,099,958 2,601,552 3,427,208
Bonds — due within one year &5 — —FREIH - — 3,879,914
Financial liabilities at fair value AT EFAERY
through profit or loss eRAaR 21 3,773 — —
4,594,057 4,042,275 8,811,472
Net current assets TEEEFE 4,917,286 6,944,167 1,414,515
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLTDEE 15,973,446 17,321,279 12,044,252
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE — —F%IH 25 8,114,291 8,582,586 4,949,040
Bonds — due after one year a5 — —FERIEH 26 4,656,499 4,637,641 4,601,335
Deferred tax liabilities ERETIEEE 27 271,272 222,386 212,813
13,042,062 13,442,613 9,763,188
2,931,384 3,878,666 2,281,064
f\
N %y




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %4 81 # ik 0 & ()
at 31 December 2018 R —E— NE+_A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
= A ZE—+F ZE—+F
+=A=+-8 | +=A=+-A ~A-8
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTET FiET FiET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (E71)
Capital and reserves BEARR R

Share capital [N 28 7,510 8,013 8,013
Reserves it 2,923,874 3,870,653 1,675,509

Equity attributable to owners of the ERAEEA
Company [EfL R 2,931,384 3,878,666 1,683,522
Non-controlling interests RS — — 597,542
2,931,384 3,878,666 2,281,064

FORIBEIE M REREEEETN _T— 1
F=AMBHEREETE  WHTIESERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 186 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by: #=E:
Ms. Lau Kam Shim Mr. Lau Kam Sen
2|5y ME ZSREE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
WITES WITES
i | Holdings Limited
e “\temahona fted - Anngg, ReDOrt
e 2018



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 H ZE —Z— NF+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREAEERS
Statutory Capital Asset Non-
Share surplus Jempti luati Translati Merger Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
EERS -2 KEEf BE L RE FER
BE 2HE HERE #E #E #E B @it [ 35 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL ThL ThL T T
(Note 29) (note a)
(H3t29) (Fizta)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~F+ZA=1-8

(Audited and originally stated) (BEZRERFIER) 8013 225 687 240,722 92,543 - 1,508,184 1,850,374 597,542 2447916
Effect of merger accounting note 2) AREHRENTE (HiE2) — - - (237,042) - - 15,824 (221,218) - (221,218)
Adjustments on adoptions of HKFRS 15, RRERUMHRERAE SROHRE -

net of tax [note 3.1) MR (HEE31) - - - - - - 54,366 54,366 - 54,366
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RZZ—+F-A—R(EJ]) 8,013 25 687 3,680 92,543 — 1578374 168352 597,542 2,081,064
Profit for the year REREF - - - — — — 330052 3300522 1862 3302384
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hh2E () A - - - - (92,543) - - (92,543) 6,542 86,001)
Total comprehensive (expense) AEF2E (T

income for the year o8 — — - - (92,543) — 3,300,522 32079719 8404 3216383
Dividends paid (Note 15) BIRARE (M 15) - - — — — — (1012835 (1,012,835 — (1,012,835
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 31) HERBAR (HE3) — — — — — — — — (605,946) (605,946)
Transfer upon disposal of subsidiaries HENBARKEY - (225) - - - - 25 — — —
At31 December 2017 (restated) RZE—tF+-A=+-A(F3) 8013 - 687 3680 - — 3866286 3878666 — 3878666
Profit and total comprehensive RERERR

income for the year Lot — — — — — — 1,690,070 1,690,070 — 1,690,070
Share repurchase RABEE

— repurchase of shares (503) — — — — — — (503) — (503)

— premium on repurchase of shares — — - - - - (1,542,403) (1,542,403) - (1,542,403

— transfer — — 503 — — — (503) — — —
Acquisition of an entity under common control KE-REEREHEERR — — - - - (52,000) - (52,000) - (52,000)
Transfer from retained profits BRBEFEYR — — — — — 52,000 (52,000) — — —
Dividend paid to Majestic Eagle Limited 52 F Majestic Eagle Limited

("Majestic Eagle") (IMajestic Eagle]) 81 &

(note b) (f&b) - - - - - - (36,258) (36,258) - (36,259)
Dividends paid (Note 15) BIRAIHE (HE15) - - - - - — (1,006,188 (1,006,188) - (1,006188)
At 31 December 2018 W=Z2-\F+-A=+-A 7510 - 1,190 3,680 - - 2,919,004 2,931,384 — 2,931,384
Notes: B 5
a. Merger reserve was arising on the application of merger accounting method in  a. AOREFEDANE - ARSI ERE AR MERA

relation to the acquisition of an entity under common control. Details of the

acquisition is disclosed in note 2.

b. Prior to the completion of the acquisition of Global Top Limited ("Global Top”), b.
Global Top declared and paid a dividend to Majestic Eagle, the then shareholder,
in the amount of HK$36,258,000. Details of the acquisition is disclosed in note 2.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 018 i ZE — T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—tF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TERT FHET
(Restated)
(&751)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before taxation 3 258 i g )
— from continuing operation — REBECEER 2,162,376 3,412,689
— from discontinued operation — REFBECLEER - 426,710
2,162,376 3,839,399
Adjustments for: RAEHAT A%
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERZFBWA (159,022) (67,703)
Finance costs BE KA 282,187 228,954
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment BETE 185,078 163,316
Release of prepaid lease payments BERNEEREE Y — 4,642
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRARZ K 31 — (420,843)
Dividend income from financial assets at BATEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss EREEREBA (74,934) (50,077)
Interest income from financial assets at BATEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZFEBA (11,052) (1,012)
Loss on disposal/written off of property, HE M
plant and equipment EEE g 2,922 2,177
Fair value changes in respect of financial assets at fair BRFEFABRZ
value through profit or loss CHEEZATER 515,979 (624,617)
Changes in fair value of investment properties REYMEZ AFEED) (251,200) (823,200)
Unrealised exchange loss RERAELEE 13,598 42,797
Reversal of write-down of obsolete inventories FIHFENOREE (26) (1
Impairment loss recognised for trade FhIEUER X e
and other receivables, H it FE M R IBRERR
net of reversal BEEE MR ED 18 (17)
Operating cash flows before movements in LERECEEHA
working capital KL2WERE 2,665,924 2,293,815
Increase in inventories FEEm (6,452) (2,850)
Decrease (increase) in trade and FEUTER TR &
other receivables Hoth fE WORIE R A (3E00) 8,724 (42,336)
(Decrease) increase in trade and e BRI &
other payables H b e 5038 O ) 150 (13,277) 103,801
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities AHEECRD)EM (3,290) 20,028
Cash generated from operations REXBREES 2,651,629 2,372,458
Interest received B UH 8 136,733 59,738
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBNEH (344,847) (331,617)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBMBRLSFE 2,443,515 2,100,579
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %R R &R E X (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—BIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E§ I
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
(i FHET FHET
(Restated)
(E£71)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERATEF A B2
fair value through profit or loss CRMEEMEHK 1,833,116 1,186,264
Interest received from financial assets at BEATES A NBREZ
fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZBWFE 11,052 6,503
Dividend received from financial assets at AT ESABREZ
fair value through profit or loss cRMEEZEUWRE 74,934 50,077
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BERR (265,825) (239,767)
Additions to investment properties BEREME (154,528) (22,350)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries LEWNBRARZFEER 31 — 872,496
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE K
plant and equipment BELZIER 1" —
Placement of time deposits FERESER (15,816,845) —
Withdrawal of time deposits REEHER 11,033,968 —
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATESABZZ
through profit or loss TREE (2,075,559) (1,509,885)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING REED () 18
ACTIVITIES RERE (5,359,676) 343,338
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETE
New bank borrowings raised HMERITER 39,343 5,859,340
Share repurchased BB E RGN (1,542,906) —
Cash consideration paid upon acquisition of WiE—RZ RGN EE
an entity under common control NABINZRERE (52,000) —
Redemption of bonds BRES - (3,879,932
Repayment of bank borrowings BEETER (40,926) (3,031,565)
Dividends paid BIRfARE (1,006,188) (1,012,835)
Dividend paid to Majestic Eagle ¥ FMajestic Eagle 2 iR & (36,258) —
Finance costs paid ENEERA (454,934) (433,787)
Upfront arrangement fee incurred in connection with new B R IRIT E A
bank borrowings AIEIRZHEE A - (67,620)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZHRARSFR (3,093,869) (2,566,399)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRESSENRD FE (6,010,030) (122,482)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCE EXZECY 77 8,786
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FHEER
OF THE YEAR BeSEY 7,423,068 7,536,764
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FREAER
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BANK BeZEY
BALANCES AND CASH MRTEERES 1,413,115 7,423,068
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R R M R

for the year ended 31 December 018 i ZE — T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

General

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas (“Mr. Lau”), who is the Chairman and a non-executive
director of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the operation of department stores, property
development and investment in Hong Kong.

As disclosed in note 14, the Group completed in prior year the
disposal of its entire 59.56% equity interests in Lifestyle Properties
Development Limited (“Lifestyle Properties”) (now known as
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.) and its subsidiaries (collectively
"Lifestyle Properties Group”) held by the Group. Accordingly,
results of the Lifestyle Properties Group before the disposal was
presented as a discontinued operation in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Statements

On 31 July 2018, the Group entered into the sales and purchase
agreement with Majestic Eagle, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of Lifestyle China Group Limited ("Lifestyle China”), to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Global Top for a total consideration of
HK$52 million in cash. The principal activity of Global Top is the
operation of Wa San Mai Japanese restaurant in Hong Kong. The
acquisition was completed on the same date.

The Group and Global Top are both under the control of ultimate
controlling party before and after the date of acquisition, and that
control is not transitory, hence the acquisition has been accounted
for as combination of entities under common control by applying
the principles of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Accordingly, the consolidated
statements of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows of the Group for each of the two years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 include the results of
operations, change in equity and cash flows of Global Top as if the
current group structure upon the completion of the acquisition had
been in existence throughout each of the two years ended 31
December 2017 and 2018. The consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017
have been restated to include the assets and liabilities of Global Top
as if the current group structure had been in existence as at the
respective date.

Details of the transaction have been disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 July 2018.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&

Ng

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 2. FEMBBRRZEREE

RZE—NFEtA=1T—08  KEEHEF
RREEEBRAR ([FETE])HHE
2 & M1 B 2 F]Majestic Eagle?] 32 B & 1
# AR eREEESTWETS 2
2HEFTRE S EEREBLEIN
ZERIMBRER - ZWBEERFE BT -

AER B Rt S AU B BRI 18 B S AR

AT HEES] - ez 6 IEE T - R
BREASFHIAS ([EAEMAE])
Bz @ETIESIESR [ HAERIEEHNE
prestl THEMHERRA - ZEEEE
RAR—EH THEBEO - At - &
BEHzZz-_—+tFRER-_ZT—NF+=A
—t—AIEREFENGEERRAMS
Al mE SGEEaZYREEEREN
ERCEEHRNEEREE  ExEHR
E/Eui/mi IR R AR IR E
EEREBE T —tFR_FT-N\F+=
A=+—BIEREFESFA—EFE -
REBR-_Z—+tF-—A—BR=ZT—t
FHZA=T—AMNKREYBRARAEREE
P UBEEEENEEMSE  BnIEE
SEEBASAENBBRELFR -

ot

ROHZFHBRARRABEHR-ZE—N\FL
A=+—B2RAEAHE -

nuP



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 2. FEMBBRZEREE (E)
Statements (continued)
The effect of restatements described above on the consolidated FHRBEROEIEHEE_ST—+tF+ A
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the —t+—HIEFENGEEEEMEEK
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: BmRANTZEWT
Year ended Year ended
31 December Adjustments/ 31 December
2017 Global Top Eliminations 2017
BE_Z—1% BE_Z—+F
+ZA=+—H +tZRA=+—H
LFE i RAEHH LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Audited and
originally
stated) (Restated)
(mERR
JRARFI8R) (&%)
Continuing operation BEREEY
Turnover ES 4,898,605 68,620 (11,665) 4,955,560
Cost of sales HEXA (2,112,296) (19,710) — (2,132,006)
Gross profit E7 2,786,309 48910 (11,665) 2,823,554
Other income, gains and losses HAWA ~ Wz REE 54,456 (707) — 53,749
Selling and distribution costs HE RS HEMAR (648,542) (32,408) 11,279 (669,671)
Administrative expenses THE Y (131,058) (230) — (131,288)
Interest and investment gains FEREE W 735,063 — — 735,063
Fair value changes on investment REMELTEEZY
properties 844,200 — (21,000) 823,200
Finance costs A RA (228,954) — — (228,954)
Profit before taxation P A 4 ) 3411474 15,565 (21,386) 3,405,653
Taxation B (536,834) (2,548) 3,529 (535,853)
Profit for the year from continuing AEEREFELEER
operation 2 A 2,874,640 13,017 (17,857) 2,869,800
Discontinued operation FRELEER
Profit for the year from discontinued AFEREFEFELEE
operation B2aH 426,710 — — 426,710
Profit for the year AREF R 3,301,350 13,017 (17,857) 3,296,510
Other comprehensive income Hig2EHEA
(expense) (Xit)
Items that may be reclassified BFEAREN D EE B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBREECE
translation of foreign operation RER 16,177 — — 16,177
Release of exchange reserve upon A HF/EIN B A BIFRE R
disposal of foreign subsidiaries HEzEL (102,178) — — (102,178)
Other comprehensive expense for ~ AFEE {2 H
the year i (86,001) — — (86,001)
Total comprehensive income forthe  ANFE 2 ERABE
year 3,215,349 13,017 (17,857) 3,210,509
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

“E-N\F+A=+-HILFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 2. FEMBBRZEREE (B
Statements (continued)
The effect of restatements described above on the consolidated LR EMENHEE T —+F+ A
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the =t+—HIEFENGFa AR REMEEEK
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: (continued) HRAMZENT : (&)
Year ended Year ended
31 December Adjustments/ 31 December
2017 Global Top Eliminations 2017
BE_ZT—+F BE_ZT—+F
+=A + =] +=A + A
HFE =) A HE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET
(Audited and
originally
stated) (Restated)
(REZR
RARFI8R) (E51)
Profit for the year attributable to REEAREEE AERS
owners of the Company: A
— from continuing operation — RARELCEER 2,874,640 13,017 (17,857) 2,869,800
— from discontinued operation — REFRFELCLEES 424,848 — — 424,848
3,299,488 13,017 (17,857) 3,294,648
Profit for the year attributable to REE IR E S EL
non-controlling interests: A
— from continuing operation — RERELEED — — — —
— from discontinued operation — REFRFEREER 1,862 — — 1,862
1,862 — — 1,862
Profit for the year AEREN 3,301,350 13,017 (17,857) 3,296,510
Total comprehensive income [EE R ER AL -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AARERA 3,206,945 13,017 (17,857) 3,202,105
Non-controlling interests JEPRIRRE 8,404 — — 8,404
3,215,349 13,017 (17,857) 3,210,509
Note: There is no impact on the earning per share for the year ended 31 fizt: BHE-_ZBE—+F+-_A=+—HILFELE

December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of

financial position as at 1 January 2017 is as follows:

REMBHRRZEREE (H)

BIHR =
RRRFE

E—tF-A-HNEAUH

LI

Adjustments/

1 January 2017 Global Top Eliminations 1 January 2017
RZZF—tF RZZF—tF
—HA—H s AR —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET FET
(Audited and
originally
stated) (Restated)
(BERR
RAF ) (&%)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REYH 4,628,884 — (301,000) 4,327,884
Property, plant and equipment LERS: VS 5,649,186 2,006 17,103 5,668,295
Prepaid lease payments BRNEETIE 548,191 — — 548,191
Deposits paid for acquisition of BENE BEAREBZ
property, plant and equipment bk 66,230 — — 66,230
Club debentures eMESH 19,137 — — 19,137
10,911,628 2,006 (283,897) 10,629,737
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 34,533 921 — 35,454
Prepaid lease payments BRNEETIE 16,123 — — 16,123
Trade and other receivables JE LB 0 % b R LU R IB 194,307 2,923 (189) 197,041
Financial assets at fair value through A EFTABZ 2 S/
profit or loss BE 2,440,605 — — 2,440,605
Bank balances and cash FITHEFRAS 7,520,140 16,624 — 7,536,764
10,205,708 20,468 (189) 10,225,987
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables FEATBR R e Hot FE 5008 1,243,211 6,219 (189) 1,249,241
Contract liabilities AREE — — — —
Tax payable BT 308,930 545 — 309,475
Bank borrowings — due within one  HRITEE — —F R 2|5
year 3,427,208 — — 3,427,208
Bonds — due within one year E%— —FNEH 3,879,914 — — 3,879,914
8,859,263 6,764 (189) 8,865,838
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,346,445 13,704 — 1,360,149
Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities 12,258,073 15,710 (283,897) 11,989,886
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 2. FEMBBRZEREE (B
Statements (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of BIEHR-_E—tF—A—BNREYTH
financial position as at 1 January 2017 is as follows: (continued) RRRFENMT - ()
Adjustments/
1 January 2017 Global Top Eliminations 1 January 2017
RZT—+4F RZT—+4F
—A—H jug=) AR —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TET FTET
(Audited and
originally
stated) (Restated)
(EEER
RARTER) (E7))
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings — RITEE ——F%2H
due after one year 4,949,040 — — 4,949,040
Bonds — due after one year B ——F%IH 4,601,335 — — 4,601,335
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE 259,782 (454) (46,515) 212,813
9,810,157 (454) (46,515) 9,763,188
2,447,916 16,164 (237,382) 2,226,698
Capital and reserves BERRfRE
Share capital %N 8,013 — — 8,013
Reserves e 1,842,361 16,164 (237,382) 1,621,143
Equity attributable to owners AR EHA AREEER
of the Company 1,850,374 16,164 (237,382) 1,629,156
Non-controlling interests MR 597,542 — — 597,542
2,447,916 16,164 (237,382) 2,226,698
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 2. FEMBBRZEREE (E)
Statements (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of BIER T —tF+A=1+—HHNE
financial position as at 31 December 2017 is as follows: SMBRARZENT :
31 December Adjustments/ 31 December
2017 Global Top Eliminations 2017
RZT—+5F RZFT—tF
+-A=1+—H =) AR/ HE +t-A=t+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET FET
(Audited and
originally
stated) (Restated)
(EEEZR
[RAFNE) (E351)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties BB 4,942,000 — (322,000) 4,620,000
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE k& #E 5,689,962 1,397 16,717 5,708,076
Deposits paid for acquisition of FEEWH¥ - FiFE M&E 2
property, plant and i
equipment 29,899 — — 29,899
Club debentures eMEH 19,137 — — 19,137
10,680,998 1,397 (305,283) 10,377,112
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 37,571 734 — 38,305
Trade and other receivables JE LS B 0 % b R LK RIB 174,887 1,291 (156) 176,022
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRI SR
through profit or loss B 3,349,047 — — 3,349,047
Bank balances and cash ROEGFRES 7,389,274 33,794 — 7,423,068
10,950,779 35,819 (156) 10,986,442
Current liabilities nBEE
Trade and other payables FERTBR R e Et FE (5008 1,293,288 7,848 (156) 1,300,980
Contract liabilities BHERE — — — —
Tax payable FESBIE 199,343 640 — 199,983
Bank borrowings — due within #1768 — —F A E|H#f
one year 2,601,552 — — 2,601,552
4,094,183 8,488 (156) 4,102,515
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,856,596 27,331 — 6,883,927
Total assets less current BEERTEBAE
liabilities 17,537,594 28,728 (305,283) 17,261,039
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 2. FEMBBRZEREE (B
Statements (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of BIEHR _E—tF+_A=+—HHMEK
financial position as at 31 December 2017 is as follows: (continued) BB RZENT  (B)
31 December Adjustments/ 31 December
2017 Global Top Elimination 2017
RZE—+F RZE—+F
+-A=+—H jug=) AR/ U +-A=1+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL
(Audited and
originally
stated) (Restated)
(BEZR
FRAFIER) (E7))
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings — due after ~ $R1TIEE — —F 1454
one year 8,582,586 — — 8,582,586
Bonds — due after one year B ——F%IH 4,637,641 — — 4,637,641
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE 272,883 (453) (50,044) 222,386
13,493,110 (453) (50,044) 13,442,613
4,044,484 29,181 (255,239) 3,818,426
Capital and reserves BARHE
Share capital %N 8,013 — — 8,013
Reserves i 4,036,471 29,181 (255,239) 3,810,413
Equity attributable to owners AR EHA AREEER
of the Company 4,044,484 29,181 (255,239) 3,818,426
Non-controlling interests TR — — — —
4,044,484 29,181 (255,239) 3,818,426
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 3.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by the HKICPA for the first time

ERFIREETERMBRE
B (ERMBREED])
REFERBERZ T REBTES
B35 4R 45 2 A
REBRAREE BRI T BB G6T
DEBEM 2 RE L EEN B R

in the current year:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and

amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the current year

has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance

and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied the full retrospective method of
transition to HKFRS 15 and the comparative figures have been
restated.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o Sales of goods: from the Group’s own sourced and
direct purchase merchandises to customers

J Income from concessionaire sales: from sales of goods
by the relevant concessionaires based on certain
percentage of sales in accordance with the terms of
contracts. When the concessionaires fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income

. Income from “After Purchase Order” (“APQ") sales:
from sales of goods by the APO clients on APO
arrangement based on certain percentage of sales in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When the APO
clients fail to meet the minimum guarantee income in
accordance with the terms of certain contracts, the
minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income

. Service income: from concessionaires and clients for
using the Group's product displaying and advertising
facilities and promotional activities

o Rental income: from tenants for leasing the Group's
department store space (not within the scope of HKFRS
15)

Information about the Group's accounting policies and the
performance obligations resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in notes 4 and 6 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 3. EBANMIRKBIEEMBRE
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") A (EBUBREED] (&)
(continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily REFEBAERZHTRREBITER
effective for the current year (continued) B E 2 B ()
3.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 3.1 BEBHUBHREEREISHEKREES
(continued) B2 W | (4E)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 B E & B &R 15E £ &
wE
The effect of HKFRS 15 described above on the results for the LB B REEAE 1SR EGEER
current and preceding years by line items presented in the g HAMEEWEKRAMFIIER HARFE LB
consolidated statements of profit or loss or other comprehensive TFEEEBENZEWT
income is as follows:
Impact on profit for the year HARFEaNzoE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-_Z—N\F HEz—_Z—+F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—~”
LLFEE IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHET FHET
Decrease in turnover &R D ab (1,382,077) (1,200,468)
Decrease in cost of sales SHE AR D a 1,388,690 1,207,504
Increase in taxation TR IEIE N b (1,091) (1,162)
Net increase in profit for the year and total ANFEGFRAFESE
comprehensive income for the year U A 4B 58 F I8 5,522 5,874
The effect of HKFRS 15 described above on the results for the L BE BN GRS ENE SR YRS ER

current and preceding years by line items presented in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss or other comprehensive
income is as follows:

g HMEE S RAYIEB NOAEE MBS

EFERENTED

N

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z-N\F BE_Z—tF
+=ZHA=+—8H +ZA=+—H
LEE IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Increase in profit for the year attributable to AN E AN A & HE A A JE(5 3 7
owners of the Company: &
— from continuing operation — REBEBEEER 5,522 5,874
Increase in total comprehensive income JFEAE 2 E W A B REIE N -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZEWN 5,522 5,874
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

ZE-)N\F+ZA=F+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 3.

Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

(continued)

The effect of HKFRS 15 described above on the consolidated

statements of financial position as at 1 January 2017 and 31

December 2017 by line item affected are as follows:

R KRBT BBUBRE
ZA(TEEMBEREER ] (&)

REEERFERZTITRRETER
B #5852 R ()

3.1 BEBYUBHEEREISHEIKEES

BRI Z Y% (4E)
BAERE B BHEER15ELHFE
Z(E)

LB BRELENFISHREN T
—+tF—A—BERR=-ZE—tHF+=A
T+ —HBZGAVBRARTEFEER
VBN

Reclassifications/

1 January 2017 Adjustments 1 January 2017
RZEB—+F—A RZE—+F—H
—H BN/ RE —H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M e FET FAET FET

(Restated per
note 2) (Restated)

(fABR 2
=71)) 7))
Trade and other payables FEATBR N R EL AR FE S SR c 1,249,241 (201,867) 1,047,374
Contract liabilities BHERE c — 136,758 136,758
Tax payable e TRIA 309,475 10,743 320,218
Total effects on net assets HEEEZRYE 2,226,698 54,366 2,281,064
Reserves i 1,621,143 54,366 1,675,509
Total effect on equity R BTE 2,226,698 54,366 2,281,064
31 December Reclassifications/ 31 December
2017 Adjustments 2017
R-ZZE—+F R-E—+F
+ZA= + B S¥Ho8E/#@% +-A= + A
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M e FET FET FET

(Restated per
note 2) (Restated)

(mk =2
Edl) (&E5))
Trade and other payables JRE AT B 35R  ELAh JE<T ARIE c 1,300,980 (228,929) 1,072,051
Contract liabilities aHaE c — 156,786 156,786
Tax payable [E& 1A b 199,983 11,903 211,886
Total effects on net assets HEEELRVE 3,818,426 60,240 3,878,666
Reserves f#f 3,810,413 60,240 3,870,653
Total effect on equity HiEm By E 3,818,426 60,240 3,878,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)
3.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

(continued)
Impact on basic earnings per share

3.

PR RAET B RBUBRE
ZA ([EHRMBREZER ] (R)

RAFEBFERZHITREEITES

PR 3R & 2 R ()

3.1 BEUBBEEEREISHIKEES
EXZ W ()

BB BB REGER15ELNZE

HE(E)

HERERBMNZZE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

BE-_Z—N\F HEZT—+F

+=ZHA=+—8H +=ZA=+—8

LEE IEFRE

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Basic earnings per share from continuing REFRERIFFELEER

and discontinued operation before REA Z BRERERF

adjustments 1.07 2.06
Adjustments arising from initial application & /X J& Fi &8 B1 1% 3 5 %= Bl

of HKFRS 15 LISHRBH 2 BE 0.01 —

Reported basic earnings per share EWMERERZF] 1.08 2.06
Basic earnings per share from continuing REFELEEGAER 2

operation before adjustments BRERZN 1.07 1.79
Adjustments arising from initial application & /X & &8 B 15 #R & 28

of HKFRS 15 FISREH AR 0.01 —

Reported basic earnings per share ER2ERERET 1.08 1.79

Notes:

(a) Application of the HKFRS 15 has resulted in a change of the accounting

treatment for those sales transactions under the APO arrangements. These

transactions were previously accounted for as direct sales on a gross basis
amounted to HK$1,920,726,000 and HK$1,681,352,000 for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively, whereas under the

HKFRS 15, the Group is regarded as the agent rather than the principal and

therefore only the commission income amounted to HK$532,036,000 and
HK$473,848,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December

2017, respectively on a net basis will have been booked as the Group's

turnover.

\J\’(esw\e !
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

3.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

3.2

Revenue in respect of breakage is recognised in proportion to the amount
of gift certificate and rewards points under customer loyalty program
redeemed in that period, which is likely to result in an acceleration of
revenue when the possibility of redemption becomes remote. Breakage
amounted to HK$6,613,000 and HK$7,036,000 for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively have been
recognised as revenue under HKFRS 15, with adjustment made to account
for the corresponding tax effect amounted to HK$1,091,000 and
HK$1,162,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, respectively. In addition, as at 1 January 2017, the accumulated
amount of breakage amounted to 65,109,000 was reclassified from
deferred income and the corresponding accumulated tax effect amounted
to HK$10,743,000.

Deferred income of HK$156,786,000 and HK$136,758,000 as at 31
December 2017 and 1 January 2017, respectively, which were attributable
to unredeemed gift certificate sold to customers, deferred advertising
income and unredeemed reward points under customer loyalty program,

was reclassified to contract liabilities upon application of HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses ("ECL") for
financial assets and (3) general hedge accounting.

Except for the 2010 versions of HKFRS 9 that were early
adopted by the Group in previous years regarding
classification and measurement of financial instruments and
disclosure requirements, the Group has applied the
requirements of HKFRS 9 issued in September 2014 and the
related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs in the
current year, whereas the introduction of new requirements
for ECL for financial assets is relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 HZE — T — \F+ A=+ —BILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
requirements for ECL retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 4.

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group's existing financial assets for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 9 and concluded that there is
no material impact to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

—E-\Ft+ZA=t-RLLFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 3.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been issued

but are not yet effective:
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the

Company anticipate that the application of all other new and

amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation will have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold land for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liabilities will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group while upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as investing
cash flows in accordance to the nature.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease
payments for leasehold land where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.
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3. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 3. EBANMIREBIEBYBRE

Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$390,807,000 as disclosed in note 32. An
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$25,098,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets.

The application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The Group elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 "Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group elected the
modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of the
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participants ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&

Ng

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4., FTESHBEE(H)

AN P BHREM S - R FENGTER
RUAGHERAFENE ABEN TR LM
ZHEHEEQXTFENGENEEE - 2
R ZR=F e AT

. F-RBABBLERRERRE
BmiSHTe2ARNEERABHR
2 B CREHAE)

. F_RBABBELE R ZREI -
AREERKREEREEXRE
RISz ARE &

. FE=RBABIEID W IR BB R
BESAEMSL -

TERHBEMT -

HOBE
A M HRE BEAL T EARTHILH
B RAHBARNOYBRE - 2555

BERRUAAT
o HRRET R

. HEAZEFRE TN ZLHRZ
BB ES R

. BRRNEREENTZERDR -

i %5 B R 150 R BR | PRI = TR I =
Hb—ARZENE  AAKEGEHE
BINAREHIRE T °

RN £2 (B M 15 Y I )45 1) A By (R 5 4 AT Y
BRARA AR NAKE KT R
Al IEARR - BR8N E - FARMAMKERTH
EMER A Z WA RN AEERESE
4 B BARET AR A B E A 2 E U E
xR HEARERTHENZMBARRL -

BEahkEb2ARESEEYREBERAR
ABA ANSFEREE - HBARNE
RS ARFEEBNARREE ARIFER
R EL RS SRR DA BAIHE

Pt A o

VERSAEMBLRPBHRERAEE
ATREREAREE G R -

il



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Merger accounting for business combination involving
businesses under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the
date when the combining businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated using
the existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase
gain at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the businesses had been combined at the end of
the previous reporting period or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with an

alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the goods at the department stores.

For income from concessionaire and APO sales, the Group
recognised commission income over time which it is entitled and is
based on certain percentage of sales made by the concessionaires
and the APO clients in accordance with the terms of contracts.
When they fail to meet the minimum guarantee income in
accordance with the terms of certain contracts, the minimum
guarantee amount is recognised as income as it is the amount that
the Group has the right to receive.

For service income, the revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations
including obligation to provide goods or services to customers on
complementary basis and customer’s options to acquire additional
goods or services for free or at a discount in future granted under
loyalty reward program, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative standalone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell a
promised good or service separately to a customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Accounting for unredeemed gift certificate and reward points
under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificate and reward points under customer
loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities, and reflect the
value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e. anticipated breakage.
Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance on
constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as the
Group's historical experience with gift certificate and loyalty points
under loyalty reward program. Revenue is recognised in regard to
breakage in the proportion of gift certificate and loyalty points
redeemed in that period and likely to result in the acceleration of
revenue when the possibility of redemption becomes remote.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled using
the most likely amount, which better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the transaction
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on issued
statements to consignors and concessionaires (including assessment
of whether the variable consideration is constrained) to represent
fairly the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire and APO sales as the
Group does not control the specific goods provided by the
consignors and concessionaires before goods transferred to a
customer.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of costs of
properties under construction. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than construction in progress) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for
such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Club debentures
Club debentures are measured at cost less any impairment losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other
than investment properties measured under fair value model, such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course
of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payment for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as "prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is under
finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, or when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4., FTESHBEE(H)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"”) as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. FESTTEX (#)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset which
is included in the “interest and investment (losses) gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment requirements under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables, time deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a
debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (continued))

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, bonds and trade and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors of
the Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred tax relating to investment properties is
determined on the basis of recovery through use.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has a portfolio of debt investments in which the directors
of the Company consider that the business model of holding these
investments is not just to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Accordingly, they are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9. At 31
December 2018, the Group's financial assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value through profit or loss which are
approximately HK$3,080,999,000 and HK$3,773,000 (2017:
HK$3,349,047,000 and nil), respectively.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Investment properties

As described in note 17, the fair value of the Group’s investment
property under development ("IPUD"”) amounting to
HK$5,132,000,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$4,620,000,000)
has been arrived at based on a valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited
("C&W"). The fair value was arrived at based on a valuation using
income approach carried out on that date by C&W and was
determined based on comparable rental transactions in the relevant
market (on the assumption that the property had already been
completed at the valuation date). It also takes into account the
construction cost already incurred as well as the estimated cost to
be incurred to complete the project plus the developer's estimated
profit and margin for risk.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 17. Changes to these
assumptions and inputs would result in changes in the fair value of
the Group's investment properties and corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the profit or loss.
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of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of the Group's
investment properties, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. The Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market. When
Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the board of directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment properties are
disclosed in note 17.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's financial assets and
liabilities at FVTPL, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
management of the Group will assess the valuation of financial
instruments based on quoted bid prices of the previous trading day
in the over-the-counter markets or quoted market prices provided
by brokers at the end of each reporting period.

Note 35 provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at
FVTPL.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&

Ng

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources 5. E A HEMEEREE GG

HR (&)

EFETRE G5 RR ()
AFPETEBRIGEREF
REBFDEENRFEFEAEHBR
EZEM - ERFAARBERENENAF
B AREEAAIESHTSABR
B ARBEZEFE=TAERMGEMYE
AEBMBREMERETHE NERE Y
R AEENEIRE RS ERINTIEERD
BHIEIE  BYNERE2RRFEIRAF
B 8EEHETERBABE - At
ERTSAEERRESL28  AKE
SREBIRKAE2R2H - WEF2H2
2 AARERRASEIRSBHMGEES
Eo MEERFEBLEERES AKX
RAEFERERBRE - FHREEAE
EREYMENFERBEETERZ2EH
BRI E174REE -

EHAARERATEFABGZZEHE
ERBBENAFER  ARERRTES
RIS AT R B - M |E 1 RS8N
SEERERESHRENR MBS
mELE—XZAMBEABRLLIEHD
MSREN G TANEE-

MEESIR A MAEEEARER A FER
ABHZeREERAB A FEERFT
RAZEERZE 2BEEERROFA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
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Turnover 6.
Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for goods

sold by the Group to outside customers (net of discounts), income

from concessionaire sales, income from APO sales, service income

and rental income during the year, and is analysed as follows:

%4
EREEAEEEFARMIATPHESR
m B E W R EUCRIE AT - RE R E
BHEZWA  REHEREIHEZ
WA~ BRI WAA RIS WA - LD 1A
™~

2018 2017
—F-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(E7))
Continuing operation BEKEER
Sales of goods — direct sales EREE —HEHEE 1,562,484 1,273,779
Income from concessionaire sales FEFEEHEE WA 2,095,041 1,900,998
Income from APO sales SHEBITEIHE I A 535,326 479,877
Service income AR AU A 125,470 63,113
Rental income HaWA 39,689 37,325
4,358,010 3,755,092
Disaggregation of revenue from goods and service REEmRE®zWED 5
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(E5)
Recognised at a point in time: ERERBRER
Sales of goods — direct sales EmiHE —EEHEE 1,562,484 1,273,779
Recognised over time: BEEREER
Income from concessionaire sales REFTEEHEE ZBA 2,095,041 1,900,998
Income from APO sales REATHEERTEIHE Z WA 535,326 479,877
Service income AR5 U A 125,470 63,113
Revenue from contracts with customers HEBAS LK 4,318,321 3,717,767
Rental income Ha WA 39,689 37,325
Total turnover FEE ] 4,358,010 3,755,092

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the goods at the department stores. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

Turnover (continued)

For income from concessionaire and APO sales, the concessionaires
and consignors will pay the commission income based on certain
percentage of sales in accordance with the terms of contracts. When
they fail to meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with
the terms of certain contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income. The Group receives the entire sales proceeds
from ultimate customers on behalf of the concessionaires and
consignors and reimburse the sales proceeds back to
concessionaires and consignors after deducting the commission
income.

For service income, it represents advertisement and promotional
income from customers and revenue is recognised over time using
output method by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation when the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs.

The reward points under customer loyalty program earned during
the year will be expired within one year at the end of the reporting
period. In addition, the service income contracts are for periods of
one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied contracts are not disclosed.

The gift certificate sold to customers will be expired in three years
upon the date of issue. As the Group is unable to control when the
customers utilise the gift certificate, it is not practical to disclose the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts.

All the above turnover is derived from Hong Kong.

Segment Information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” which
focuses on the operation of department stores, property
development and investment in Hong Kong. This operating
segment has been identified on the basis of internal management
reports prepared in accordance with accounting policies that
conform to HKFRSs as disclosed in note 4, that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision makers ("CODM”") (i.e. the
executive directors of the Company). The CODM regularly reviews
revenue analysis and profit for the year of the Group as a whole to
make decisions about resource allocation. Accordingly, no separate
segment information other than entity level information is prepared.

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong. The Group's
non-current assets are all based in Hong Kong. The Group has no
customers that contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

10.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

8. HtA WBKEE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operation BERCEER
Management fee income EERBWA 64,953 58,129
Credit card recharge ERAREREHM 28,107 16,698
Project income HA A 3,365 2,324
Net exchange loss FIE K EE (10,091) (45,022)
Others HAith 22,173 21,620
108,507 53,749
Interest and Investment (Losses) Gains 9. FERKRE (EH) KR
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Continuing operation HEREXEK
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFBUWA 159,022 65,995
Dividend income from financial assets at BEAVEFABZEZERMEEZR
FVTPL BUYA 74,934 48,728
Interest income from financial assets at BAFEFABEZEMEEZF
FVTPL Bz A 11,052 1,012
Change in fair value of financial instruments: @I TE 2 AFEES :
— financial assets at FVTPL other than — BOTAES R T AEUINEAFE
derivative financial instruments FFABHZeREE (492,497) 593,097
— derivative financial instruments —{TESmMT A (23,482) 26,231
(270,971) 735,063
Finance Costs 10. AEK A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operation BESEEL
Interest on: ATIER 2B -
Bank borrowings RITEE 281,896 159,677
Bonds (2 212,676 225,079
494,572 384,756
Less: Amounts capitalised in constructionin = Jil : fEE TR REEREMEZ
progress and IPUD EARbeRE (212,385) (155,802)
282,187 228,954

Borrowing costs capitalised are interest expenses incurred for
financing the development of qualifying assets specifically.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

11. Taxation 11. BiE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTEx FET
(Restated)
(&E5))
Continuing operation HEREER
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BERNE
Current tax AEATE IR 423,874 380,282
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRLEE (454) (301)
423,420 379,981
Deferred tax charge (note 27) EERIES H (H3E27) 48,886 157,034
472,306 537,015

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "Bill"”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

R-ZE—NE=A=+—H BB e
BBEQOITFERB (] (F75) KO E
ZNEMEZR]) - SIAFIEHMAES - Z
BOIEERN T N\F=ZA -+ \BESE
ERXAER TRRATE - BRIBFEH
MR H - A B E B E R E 2,000,000 7T
%A H R R 58.25% ¢ 1 A 482,000,000
TR BT R 516.5% - LB T RE 2 %K~
AN RF A EEIAE —165%H
RINFL ©

ARBEERS  REMBMESH AR
FRZEBRGEMBHRERMSLTE
Ko BEMEHIRIBEMEFE 2B E
ARBE AR 16.5%HH

REERALEGSBED L EMEEMKRER
FRBR B AT @ A 2 BRI T -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
(Restated)
(E3))
Profit before taxation B B B s A
(from continuing operating) (REFEBEEER) 2,162,376 3,412,689
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBREHEFHE 2HIE 356,792 563,094
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARTWA 2 IR &
purposes (45,017) (70,671)
Tax effect of expense not deductible fortax A FIFEFH S 2 HBEFE
purposes 153,489 43,941
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses AR R ARERTIARE 2
previously not recognised I 2 (192) (228)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMIEBEHETE 7,642 1,144
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBZEE (454) (301)
Others EHAh 46 36
Taxation for the year REFZHIE
(from continuing operation) (REIFEEEER) 472,306 537,015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

12 AEERBFEASEEKER

12. Profit for the Year from Continuing Operation

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
(Restated)
(E7))
Profit for the year from continuing operation AFEE R AFFELE X 2 HE
has been arrived at after charging mer Gt A) TFIER -
(crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 13): EE5WE (FI5E13) :
Fees we 2,600 1,717
Salaries and allowances HM Rz 2 B 7,500 3,500
Bonus 4T 15,000 15,000
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAEFFT B 36 29
25,136 20,246
Other staff costs, excluding retirement BRRRENGFEIHFINZ R E T
benefits scheme contributions Ak X 229,036 233,186
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, — EREFIFHEIHFURE U B TH K
net of forfeited contributions for staff 8,888 8,579
Total staff costs B8 TR 263,060 262,011
Auditor’s remuneration = H AN & 2,364 2,338
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERBBETE
equipment 185,078 163,305
Rental payments paid under operating lease S &ML THE i MIEF T
in respect of leasehold land and buildings Z & IE 171,739 129,429
Loss on disposal/written off of property, HEMIEE - BEREEZ
plant and equipment &8 2,922 2,177
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses WRATHZEFEERK 1,142,748 924,502
Impairment of trade and other receivables, & U8R 30 & H A 8 IE 2 B
net of reversal (fNpr#E[E) 18 (17)
Reversal of write-down of obsolete 5 8 17 B MO B =)
inventories (included in cost of sales) (BREEHEXNER) (26) (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

13. Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration 13. EEREEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FRNEZNHSERBERN EMHRAR
applicable Listing Rules and CO, are as follows: NAMGDIHREE - BT -
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-—\F+-A=+—HLEFE
Contributions
to retirement
Directors’  Salaries and benefits
fees allowances Bonus* scheme Total
RIKER
EsHe  HeREE AL HE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TER
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AETES
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 25 %E 200 3,750 7,500 18 11,468
Mr. Lau Kam Sen BSEEE 200 3,750 7,500 18 11,468
Sub-total NG 400 7,500 15,000 36 22,936
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their RO BITEER AR RAEERERE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the EHLIRHRBECEEMS -
Company and the Group.
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B) kHITES
Mr. Lau Bnk 1,000 - - - 1,000
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEEEE 200 - - — 200
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy AEELL 200 - - — 200
Sub-total Nt 1,400 — - — 1,400
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for AT RZAR R B S BB B A R 2 FEETT
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. EEMRHZBRBNESEMS -
C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  C) BUFHTEE
DIRECTORS
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon kB L& 200 — — — 200
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEHRTE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FRPEE 200 - — — 200
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung Eqsns 200 - - - 200
Sub-total Nat 800 - - - 800
Total @t 2,600 7,500 15,000 36 25,136
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown ERTERARRIFELIFRITE R AIEH
above were for their services as directors of the Company. sz ESME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

13. Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration 13. EEREEME (F)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+=-A=+—HLEFE

Contributions
to retirement

Salaries and benefits
Director's fees allowances Bonus* scheme Total
RIRER
20k e Rl TEAT* SR 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET TR TR FET
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AHTEE
Ms. Lau Kam Shim EIE N 200 2,100 7,500 18 9818
Mr. Lau Kam Sen (note) 2SR (fe) 17 1,400 7,500 11 9,028
Sub-total g 317 3,500 15,000 29 18,846
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FRTDIHEATESA AR R RAEEEE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the EBLRHRGECEEWS -
Company and the Group.
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIFHTES
Mr. Lau P 200 — — — 200
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEERE 200 — — — 200
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy CES- YN 200 — — — 200
Sub-total e 600 — — — 600
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for Lt TyE B R RIS EM B AR 2 IEHTT
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. EEMRHZRENESHS
C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE ~ C) BYFHTEE
DIRECTORS
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MBS 200 — — — 200
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AERLE 200 . . — 200
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FRAEAE 200 — — — 200
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung @it 200 — — — 200
Sub-total INET 800 — — — 800
Total FCE 1,717 3,500 15,000 29 20,246
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown R ERAR AR B IFAITEE R M
above were for their services as directors of the Company. ZIRBHESME -
* The bonus was determined with reference to performance and market * TEABAREBEERTISBE -
trends.
Note: Mr. Lau Kam Sen was appointed as an executive director on 1 June 2017. Wizt : BISEXRAEN-_ZE—+EA—BZTAH
TER-
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed R FHR R EESEHEXREMREMS
to waive any remuneration during the years. RN e 2 & HE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

13. Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration 13. EEREEME (F)
(continued)
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, two of them (2017: two) were directors of the
Company whose remuneration are disclosed above. The remaining

BE-_Z—\F+_A=+—RHLFE"
AEBLEESFALY MEH(ZT—t
FMB)RARAESR  WZMERN X
K- BH=R(CF—+F: =R)AK
AEEESR  BEZMESFBHIOT

three (2017: three) are employees of the Group, details of whose
remuneration are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET

Employees: BE
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ERE R EAEF 5,986 5,481
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRREFIFT Bl R 54 54
Performance related incentive payments HIRINEMN RS 778 1,182
6,818 6,717

HHR=F2(ZZ—+F: =ZR)&aF AL

The emoluments of the remaining three (2017: three) were within the

following bands: ZEBMNFATEE
2018 2017
—2-N\F —ET—tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A" AEL
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T % 2,000,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T 2 2,500,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,0007% 7T — 1

BE-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HALFE"
AEBYEAARBAEFTH =R (=T —+
FrZR)EREHEENME - ARSIE
EMAREERERSMARNER 2 ek
BB E -

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the three
(2017: three) highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

14. Discontinued Operation 14. FFEREEK

On 13 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase RZZE—+FWMA+T=H " XEEF—
agreement to dispose of its entire 59.56% equity interest holdings in MEBEmZ  WRA—E2BLE=FNUERE
Lifestyle Properties Group for a cash consideration of 1B 1,292,986,0007# 7T Hi & F59.56% 1 F|
HK$1,292,986,000 to an independent third party and the disposal RibEEEN D EHARE - WHFE B TK
was completed on the same date. The principal business and activity EFEH FEMEEENFEEBHALE
of the Lifestyle Properties Group was property development and MEFRIEE FNBEMWEERE_-Z
investments. The results of the Lifestyle Properties Group from 1 —+tF—-—A—HAE=FE—tFWA+=H
January 2017 to 13 April 2017, date of disposal, was accounted for as (HERM) 2¥ERBE_S—+tF+=
a discontinued operation in the Group’s consolidated statement of A=+—REFEEREEGEERZRA
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended b 2 E U R P AR SIEFE IS B AT 2
31 December 2017. 1% e

The profit for the period from the discontinued operation was MR EFFECEEBNAOTAT

analysed as follows:

For the period
from 1 January
2017 to 13 April

2017

BE_Z—+F

—A—RZz

—T—tF

A+ =HEHE

HK$'000

TR

Other income, gains and losses Hung A - e R Esis 6,655
Selling and distribution costs SHE K5 SRR (5,791)
Administrative expenses TR X (7,757)
Interest and investment gains, net FERBE N - F588 12,760
Profit before taxation R B A& A 5,867
Taxation IR —
Profit for the period HAfE & 5,867
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of transaction costs HEHRBARB MR HMA 2 K 420,843
Profit for the period from the discontinued operation HRRBFFELEEL T 426,710
For the period

from 1 January

2017 to 13 April

2017

BE_T—+F

—H—HZ

—E—tF

WA +=HEE

HK$'000

TR

Profit for the period from the discontinued operation HRREIFELCLER A EN
has been arrived at after charging: BRTFIER -

Auditor's remuneration ZE AN & 20
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME HWERZEZITE 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

14. Discontinued Operation (continued) 14.
During the period from 1 January 2017 to 13 April 2017, Lifestyle
Properties Group contributed HK$641,000 to the Group's net
operating cash outflows and paid HK$697,000 in respect of investing

15.

activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Lifestyle
Property Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 31.

Bz EEBeR
& TR 697,000 7T °

HPBELERE (H)

BE_ZT-—t5—A-HEZFT—LFMO
A+=E8E MEtEEEATEER
JFEAR641,000/8 7T © B

FlEwEEEREERHzEENRBER
HEERMIFE3THE -

Dividends 15. BB
2018 2017
—EB-N\F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Dividends recognised as distributions FANERH/D KB
during the year:
Final dividend in cash paid for the year BE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2017 — FENAR IR Z REAKE
HK cents 34.3 per share (2017: HK cents — BR34IBM(ZFE—LF
34.3 per share paid for the year ended 31 RNBZE T —REF
December 2016) TZA=+—BILFE—
FAL34.38 (1) 549,687 549,687
Interim dividend in cash paid for the six HEZZ-)\EXA=1+HIL
months ended 30 June 2018 — 7E A PAIR @ R 2 FR B AR R
HK cents 29.5 per share (2017: HK cents — FBRR29 5B M (= — 145 :
28.9 per share paid for the six months ENBE—ZT—+4F
ended 30 June 2017) NA=Z+BIEAREA —
FA%28.978 1) 456,501 463,148
Total @t 1,006,188 1,012,835
Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HK cents fEE . RIREHEERRE  ARFAESERRMNR

37.0 (2017: HK cents 34.3) per share has been proposed by the directors of

the Company which is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

16. Earnings per Share 16. BRER
From continuing operation REFERSEEK
Calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the RABHEE NERBRERZF TIREEIA
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TE®REE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: Z R &M T : (Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year attributable to owners REZRRBER ARG &
of the Company 1,690,070 3,300,522
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued W AFERAEFELEEL 2
operation i | — (424,848)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings HAERERELE
per share from continuing operation E5 2 BIREAR BT &) 2 A 1,690,070 2,875,674
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
‘000 ‘000
F® F 1%
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary METESREARZF 2 @K
shares for the purpose of basic earnings INFEF 1985
per share 1,567,701 1,602,587
No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were no dilutive HREM EFE R B EMEEr BT LR
potential ordinary shares during both years. g - IR B 25 FRESER T -
From continuing and discontinued operation REFERFFEREEL
Calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing and HREFERIFFELEET  ARAH#
discontinued operation attributable to the owners of the Company BABEEREREF TIRE AT B8R
is based on the following data: "
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
(Restated)
(&51)
Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ SEEIEERERBN 2 KEE AR
the Company for the purposes of basic AR ANEEER
earnings per share 1,690,070 3,300,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

16. BREF (&)

16. Earnings per Share (continued)

From discontinued operation

Calculation of the basic earnings per share from the discontinued
operation of HK$0.27 per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 is based on the profit for the year from the discontinued
operation attributable to owners of the Company of HK$424,848,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The denominators used for the calculation of basic earnings per
share for both continuing and discontinued operation are the same.

REFFELSEEK

BHE-_ZT—+tE+-_A=+t—BIEEX
BIERBCEER 2 EAGREFN AER
027 L EREBEE-_ZT—tF+_A
=t+—BIFEERATEA AEEEBEIE
SIB LTS 2 424,848,000/ 8 T FE S A ©

R EBERIFRBELCERB 2 BRER
& FrERe s BI98R -

Investment Properties

17. REWE

Under
Completed development Total
25 w2 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
FAIR VALUE Q¥ E
At 1 January 2017 R-_TE—tF—H—H
(previously stated) (R AT 932,416 3,696,468 4,628,884
Effect of merger accounting* AHEFTRIE 2 & (301,000) — (301,000)
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RZZ—tF—A—R8(&E5) 631,416 3,696,468 4,327,884
Additions NE — 100,332 100,332
Increase in fair value recognised in R m R 2 A F(EIE N
profit or loss
— Unrealised gain — REIB W= — 823,200 823,200
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 31) HEH B AR (MiFE31) (640,435) — (640,435)
Exchange adjustments PE i A 9,019 — 9,019
At 31 December 2017 (restated) R-_FE—+F+-_A=+—H
(E7)) — 4,620,000 4,620,000
Additions = — 260,800 260,800
Increase in fair value recognised in R IEZER 2 A FEE N
profit or loss
— Unrealised gain — REBRUW R — 251,200 251,200
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\F+-_A=+—H — 5,132,000 5,132,000
* Investment properties were reclassified to property, plant and equipment * Yo — X HRAEGIE & REME

upon the acquisition of an entity under common control.

EFDERYE  BE

A
B

o

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&
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MZEERETHENMBMEERREA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

17. Investment Properties (continued)

17. REWE (A)

The fair value of the Group’s IPUD at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 was arrived at based on a valuation using income
approach carried out on that date by C&W was determined based
on recent comparable rental transactions in the relevant market (on
the assumption that the property had already been completed at
the valuation date). It also takes into account the construction cost
already incurred as well as the estimated cost to be incurred to
complete the project plus the developer’s estimated profit and
margin for risk.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

REBEREENER-_T—NFE+_A
=t+—BAERZE—tF+ZA=+—H0H
AFETIIRESEBITRZ B ERBAE
EITHEMET  WARBTIEEmED
SO LHER S (BEZWEDEGER
H5ERK) - EEE BB EAR R AN
NSEREZIE B BT A BRI A - Btk
MR GEEFBMRE -

EHREMEN R TFEER  &EM&KERE
RRZEMEERMERRE -

TRV ZFREMERFENETE A
(LERMBETDERMERZ8) ERIA
RAFEFERE  REQFEL - QF
B E2ENATEAEL2HNAIBERE

PDER—E= -

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable

properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value

AEEFFRENEZ DAVESR HEFE BRE® BEBEENBAS YN

BREE Y MEZBANZY BEENBAZE AFEHBER

Investment property under Level 3 Income approach Capitalisation rates: The higher the capitalisation
development HK$5,132,000,000 £ =4 WASE BARHE: rate, the lower the fair value.

(2017: HK$4,620,000,000)

TE324% & ¥ %5,132,000,0007% 7T The key inputs are:
(=% 4 : 4,620,000,000 FEHA WAE:
A7)

m Capitalisation rate; and  Retail: 4.000% (2017: 4.000%)
ZE £ 4000% (= F—+£F 1 4000%)

B R

AR RS ATESE-

Office: 3.125% (2017: 3.125%
3.125% (ZZ—+4F : 3.125%)

The higher the price per square
foot, the higher the fair value.
BEHFREEYES  RFE

)

Market rent per month
AmHEE

Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 37.

et

y\e

temational Holdings Limiteq
n

Market rent per month:
FHMSES

Office:HK$41 (2017: HK$39)
per square foot
WMRE: BFHRANET
(Z2—+%F :39%87T)

Retail:HK$60 (2017: HK$68)
per square foot

ZE  BTHROET
(ZF—tF: 68%8T)

Estimated project development
cost of the property is
HK$5,829,000,000
(2017: HK$5,628,000,000)

HETE B R MY K A 55,829,000,00
BT (ZZ—+ 4 : 5628,000,000/ 7T)

Developer's estimated profit and
margin for risk: 10% (2017: 10%)

BB EEREMER  10%
(ZZ—+F 1 10%)

The higher the estimated
project development cost,
the lower the fair value.

HEEBBRRAALS - ATE
MR -

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

ks RTEBE

BEREERMF BN

Annual Repg
-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. M¥ - - BERREE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and  fixtures and Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH HENE BER &R -BE
kT £ BE EERZB AE ERIR @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAL FAT TR FAL FAT TR
COosT BA
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF5-A-H
(previously stated) (Ra#7) 2,482,767 126932 204,149 77,143 W00 387166 1280207
Effect of merger accounting AtEHREZFE 29,468 12,763 4,240 5133 - - 51,604
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RoT—+E—A—A(E)) 2512235 439,695 28389 282276 10010 3857166 7333831
Exchange adjustment EXRAR — — 1 (136) — 1876 1,74
Additions NE 26,407 77,183 8464 153,874 576 99,716 366,220
Disposals/write-offs HE /i — (10,752) (1,257) (8,045) — — (20,054)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - — (44 (5419 (11) (162,573) (168,047)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+-H
(restated) (&31)) 2,538,642 506,126 235,553 422,550 14,635 3,796,185 7,513,691
Additions NE — 50,096 11,625 37,007 — 257,515 356,243
Disposals/write-offs &/ - (18,027) (3,153) (7,694) — — (28,874)
At 31 December 2018 —F-/\5+ZA=1+—H 2,538,642 538,195 244,025 451,863 14,635 4,053,700 7,841,060
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-f-H
(previously stated) (2817 1,098,840 253,081 137,351 133,861 9,908 — 16304
Effect of merger accounting AEHEE Y2 12,364 12,154 3939 4,038 - - 32,495
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RZE—+E—-F—RH(E}) 1,111,204 265,235 141,290 137,899 9,908 — 1,665,536
Exchange adjustment EH A% — — 2 (136) — — (134)
Provided for the year FRFE 1730 54,545 14,663 14966 1782 - 163,316
Eliminated on disposals/write-offs {1 &8 4145 /#i5 — (9,908) (647) (7,322) — — (17,877)
Eliminated on disposal HEMBL RS
of subsidiaries — — (44) (5171) (W) — (5,226)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=1+—H
(restated) (E51) 1,158 564 309,872 155,264 170,236 11,679 — 1,805,615
Provided for the year FRME 47,975 63,527 13961 58,069 1,546 - 185,078
Eliminated on disposals/write-offs &85 ¥ 8 /#i 3% — (17,224) (1,849) (6,868) - - (25,941)
At 31 December 2018 “E-\F+ZfA=1+-8 1,206,539 356,175 167,376 21437 13,225 — 1,964,752
NET BOOK VALUES EEFE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1+—H 1,332,103 182,020 76,649 230,426 1410 4,053,700 5,876,308
At 31 December 2017 RZF—EF+ZA=+-A
(restated) (&31)) 1,380,078 196,254 80,289 252,314 2,956 3,796,185 5,708,076
Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs capitalised CEIRZBREFARLER L ZEBEXNA A
during the year amounting to HK$106,113,000 (2017: HK$77,842,000). 106,113,000 70 (= ZF —+4F : 77,842,000
HIT) o
@ERAE —z
P\ Mg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

19.

18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 18. M¥ - MERRME (&)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than MRIEETEIN . EaiE - BE RREE
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into account B st REMGG R EER  NEHRER
their estimated residual value, using straight-line method over the TOME R FE T EE
following useful lives:
Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the lease terms HEL M REF R A F A
or 40 years %+
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease terms HEWEEE RIBLOF ST F
or 10 years (A5G EBE)
Plant and machinery 5to 10 years T 5 K% 1 28 TFEE+EF
Furniture, fixtures and 5to 10 years RE - BERE AFEE+HF
equipment e
Motor vehicles 5 years B hF
Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 37. BB EEINGFNS - BRI EE37
Inventories 19. 8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
(Restated)
(E751)
Merchandise held for resale BEFEER R 44,783 38,305

\ife®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables 20. FEWERF R H b E W R E
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(E75))
Trade receivables JE AR 3R
— goods and services — EmM R 91,633 104,639
— rental income — e WA — 1,410
91,633 106,049
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREAE (2,212) (2,194)
89,421 103,855
Prepayments FERT AR 24,892 18,568
Deposits paid Eff%E 37,081 35,809
Interest receivables JE WA B 34,300 12,011
Others Hit 3,875 5,779
189,569 176,022
As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables from contracts with RZE—-—NF+A=+—H %8
customers amounted to HK$91,633,000 (2017: HK$104,639,000). BE A %M eI ER 58 A91,633,0000% 7T

—F—4F 1 104,639,0007 7T

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash, REEMBEEFEFHNEZEHEEEUR
through debit card or credit card payments. Its major trade T BRTERIERBRAIR - REEE
receivables arising from credit card sales which are normally settled ZERKEFRE — BN —EMETIIER
in one to two business days in arrears and the rental income B ERREE RBER =1 H ALk E E
receivables are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is WS WA o AT R REIERR (FOBR RARE
an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful H)IRBEZEEHZERRST

debts presented based on the invoice date:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

(Restated)

(E751)

0-30 days OHZE30H 86,079 100,208
31-60 days 3THZE60H 3,276 3,581
61-90 days 61HZ90H 59 29
Over 90 days #3890 H 7 37
89,421 103,855

/\E — =
I i P
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 20. EWEBRA R EfbEWRRRIE (&)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$3,342,000 which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$7,000 has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default because historical experience
indicated that such receivables could be recoverable from the
relevant debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance were debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$3,647,000 which were past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group had not provided for impairment loss
because historical experience indicated that such receivables could
be recoverable from the relevant debtors. The Group did not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

R_E—NF+-_A=+—H AE£Ex
JFE YR 3 4 82 R B 15 AR T 48 (E.3,342,000/%8
TTRIEHRE B2 BIEER - RE &
HigE e » 7,000/8 L2 EHI90 K s A £ -
ZHRETIEBEY RAABREBAL
BOEEAURAEEERAREZSER
o REEWEPZSEBRITE T MIER

o
oA °

RZBE—tF+-A=+—H A&EEZ
JRE Ui iR R 4 4 o B 5 R T 48.18.3,647,00078
TRmERRD B 2 BRI - NEE
WABZEFRREERESE  RESR
EBELR  SEAREBESAREDZ
FRWGR - REEY EHR A FHERTE L
Al 53 an

BB R BB 2 FE R R Y R

31/12/2017
—E—+tF
+=—A=+—8
HK$'000

FHET

31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

31HZE60H
61HZEH
838908

3,581
29
37

3,647

The Group has not fully provided for all receivables over 90 days
because historical experience indicated that such receivables would
be recoverable from the relevant debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 20. FEU AR X % H  FE Uk FRIE (48)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade EWERREREEZS
receivables
2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
FET
Balance at beginning of the reporting period W& BRAE R 2,211
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B MR ZIBEEER D (17)
Balance at the end of the reporting period & R AR 2,194

21. Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value through 21. RAFEFABZZERMEE

Profit or Loss =R

2018 2017
—=2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Financial assets at FVTPL: BRATFEFABRIERMEE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBLMRE 814,245 1,261,871
— Equity securities listed overseas REIN EmRE 922,514 1,180,327
— Listed debt securities (note a) — EWESH (HiEa) 434,833 8,743
— Listed investment funds — LthEEES 455,275 506,250
— Unlisted securities (note b) — EEmEHE (Matb) 441,099 311,778
— Written put options (note ¢) — RUHEARE (Pt 3Ec) 12,880 34,057
— Unlisted equity-linked notes (note d) — JF E R E S (M sEd) — 46,021
— Interest rate swap (note e) A ZISEY (M ste) 153 —
3,080,999 3,349,047

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: BRATEFABRIEHEE
— Interest rate swaps (note e) Fl| =42 57 (B 5T e) 265 —
— Currency swaps (note e) — BB (f5Te) 3,508 —
3,773 —

Notes: B &

(a) The listed debt securities mainly represent an investment in corporate (a) TEFFERESE  ANEERIRLT T
bonds which are mainly listed in Hong Kong, Singapore and Switzerland. ZIEBEHRE -

(b) The unlisted securities mainly include hedge funds with a carrying amount of (b) EETESFFEBEREER161,017,0007
HK$161,017,000 (2017: HK$153,648,000) and investment portfolios L ES (ZF—+ 4 : 153,648,000/ 7T)
managed by financial institutions with a carrying amount of HK$280,082,000 N i & RR AR B TR AR TE {5145 280,082,000 7T
(2017: HK$158,130,000). ®EME (ZF—+1%F : 158,130,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

21. RAFEFABEZEREE
8E &)

MisE - (48)

21. Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

() The written put options are derivative financial instruments. The details of (o) RnHEBSMITETR - UL EIENFE

the written put options are as follows: U

Underlying variables Strike Quantities Expiry date

HEEE THEE ¥E A

At 31 December 2018

R-Z2-NF+=A=t+—H

EURO STOXX 50 Index 2,975 to 3,200 points 643 18 January 2019 to 15 March 2019
(exercisable only at expiry date)

BRMET FE 52 5045 88 2,975 % 3,20024 “E-AFE-ATNABRE
(RAEIER R 74 85977 18E) —E-hF=A+HA

S&P 500 ETF Trust US$230 to US$267 39,400 18 January 2019 to 15 February 2019
(exercisable anytime until the expiry date)

IR LS00 HETFE D 230ETLE267ETT “E-AF-A+NHE
(ATRA B EA B ATE{AT B R 1T 18 —T-hF=ZA+HA

Nikkei 225 Index 20,750 to 22,000 points 51,000 11 January 2019 to 8 March 2019
(exercisable only at expiry date)

BT 20,750%4 222,000 “E-NAF-A+—HE
(RREIEA R 7 Bes7T1E) —E-AF=ANH

At 31 December 2017

R=Z2—tF+=A=+—-H

EURO STOXX 50 Index 3,450 to 3,525 points 459 19 January 2018 to 16 March 2018
(exercisable only at expiry date)

BN HTFEFE 50 B 3,450 % 3,525%, —Z-N\F-A+hBZE
(REIEAR 7 e 597T1E) —E-NF=A+<H

S&P 500 ETF Trust US$250 to US$265 38,400 5 January 2018 to 16 February 2018
(exercisable anytime until the expiry date)

EELFS00EHETFE S 250K TTE 2655 T AR Sl =
(AT EI HA B AT B AT 168) —ZE-N\FZA+~H

Nikkei 225 Index 20,875 to 21,625 points 50,000 12 January 2018 to 9 March 2018
(exercisable only at expiry date)

HE T 20,87586 % 21,625% —E-N\F-A+=ZHE
(REIERE 7 B 57T 18) —ZE-NF=ZANHAH

iShares FTSE A50 China Index ETF HK$12.9 to HK$14.0 4,580,000 11 January 2018 to 27 February 2018
(exercisable only at expiry date)

iShares % iH & I ASOH B H5 BHETF 129870 E14.0% 7T —Z-N\F—-A+—H=ZE
(RENERE A 8E57T1E) —E-NFZA=-++H

(d) As at 31 December 2017, the equity-linked notes were denominated in (d) REZT—tF+=A=1+—H  RIEHHHE

United States Dollars ("US$") and Japanese Yen (“JPY") with a principal
amount of US$11,000,000 and JPY111,500,000 respectively. They had a
tenor of 4 to 6 months. The equity-linked notes were linked with shares
listed in the United States and Japan (the “Underlying Shares”). The final

redemption amount at the maturity date was with reference to the

performance of the share price of the Underlying Shares. The maturity

dates of the equity-linked notes outstanding as at 31 December 2017 were

within one year and were therefore classified as a current asset.

\J\’(esw\e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

21. Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value through

22.

—E-\Ft+ZA=t-RLLFE

21.

Profit or Loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e)

Major terms of the interest rate swaps are as follows:

ATFEFABEZEREE

(e) ﬂ$ﬁ%2£xﬂ%mT:

Notional amount Period Pay fixed Receive floating

XHEE WEFBHAE
BEEH e FEZRE ZF=E
HK$1,300,000,000 3 April 2018 to 3 April 2019 1.66% p.a. 1-month HIBOR
1,300,000,0007% 7T “E-N\FONAZHE-_ZT-NAFHEA=AR FRI1.66E —EAZEBRITREERES
HK$1,000,000,000 29 March 2018 to 29 March 2019 1.66% p.a. 1-month HIBOR
1,000,000,0007% 7T —E-N\F=ZRAZt+NABEZZT-AF=A=+hAH FRI166E —EAZEBRITEERES

The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount quarterly and

receive floating interest on the notional amount monthly based on the

interest rate swaps contracts.

Major terms of the foreign currency swap contract is as follows:

BMNEREREH  AEEBREFTEREE
SR MNEEMNSMRERSERDE AT
BHE -

SR TRERNT

Notional amount Maturity Pay fixed Receive fixed Exchange rate
XA EE Wy e B 2

BEEHE A FEZF= FEZF= E=

US$50,000,000/HK$387,500,000 25 June 2025 4.38% p.a. 4.5% p.a. US$1:HKS$7.75

50,000,000 7t /"387,500,0007% 7T ZE-REANAZTHAR FR438E FR45E 1ETTHT.758 T

The Group will pay fixed interest of 4.38% p.a. on notional amount of
HK$387,500,000 quarterly and receive fixed interest of 4.5% p.a. on
notional amount of US$50,000,000 semi-annually.

These interest rate swaps contracts and currency swap contract can be

terminated by the Group at any time before the maturity date.

At 31 December 2018, financial assets at FVTPL with a carrying
amount of HK$1,256,688,000 (2017: HK$1,427,438,000) were pledged
as security for short-term loan facilities granted to the Group. Details

of the pledge of assets are set out in note 37.

Time Deposits and Bank Balances and Cash

22.

Time deposits represent bank deposits with original maturity date of

over three months and the balance as at 31 December 2018 carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 2.51% to 4.45% per annum. Bank
balances and cash carried interest at prevailing market rates ranging
from 0.01% to 4.35% per annum (2017: 0.01% to 4.30% per annum).

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&

g
*
%

AEERNEFTEIREE £ 78387,500,00078
TXNFEBABEEENEMREECH

50,000,000 7T Y BY - 4 & 245/ B 7E 7
B

AR ER[EI R LA B H B AT AEAR B R 4% LE R
K HANOMERRREH -

N—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—8 KEEA
1,256,688,0007 7T (=& —+4F : 1,427,438,000
BT ZIRATFEFABRS 2 ERMEED K
HEAERR TAEERSHERRE - BF
BEEEFE SR -

EHERRBRITEERES
THERARTEHA =@ ANRITER
R N\E+A=+—H2&E#HEE
FENER251EE445E:E « RITATR
WEIRBITIIHF R B (FFENT0.01
[EZE435E)(ZF—+F : FFENT0.01
[EZEA430E) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

22.

23.

Time Deposits and Bank Balances and Cash
(continued)

Included in time deposits and bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective group entities:

22. EERERBTEERRES ()

EME R MRITET RS BIE T
BEEERIGEESE NGB ENRE

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT TR

us$ X7 621,448 1,234,489

RMB AR 26,569 25,920
Trade and Other Payables 23. ENERRRHAEMENSKIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

(Restated)

(&51)

Trade payables FETBRFR 72,082 91,094

APO sales payables FEfSIHE 2 AT E | SHE IR 126,659 125,407

Concessionaire sales payables e A AT EEHE IR 540,500 545,905

Rental deposits received B ERS 16,831 16,632

Accrued expenses fER TS 224,967 240,696

Interest payables FET RS 37,956 32,575

Others Hitp 27,376 19,742

1,046,371 1,072,051

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based

AT BREEARREMNRIREESR

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: B2 BREC AT ¢
2018 2017
—F-N\F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THETT
(Restated)
(£71))
0-30 days 0HZE30H 46,376 62,465
31-60 days 31HZE60H 23,114 26,778
61-90 days 61HZE90H 777 490
Over 90 days HiE90H 1,815 1,361
72,082 91,094

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire
sales payables is within 45 days from the invoice date. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that most
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

24. Contract Liabilities 24. EHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Gift certificates 85 137,071 145,175
Deferred advertising income R AT BE 5 A 13,123 3,480
Reward points under customer loyalty BB EIT 2
program Bo®E 3,302 8,131
153,496 156,786
Deferred advertising Reward points under
Gift certificates income customer loyalty program
2% EEESBA BHEBHET 2 Ho %
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E | A F | ZE-N\E | 2 4F | ZB-N\F | _TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TR Tt THT FET
Revenue recognised that was included inthe ~ F#Ist ARG B E#EH
contract liabilities balance at the H B R
beginning of the year 115,043 100,388 3,480 70 8,131 5,052
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HEHRENEESERBNTEN —RE
liabilities recognised are as follows: FHERAT
—  Gift certificates — #%
The Group sells the gift certificates to the customers who REERMBEELHERES  MiEH
redeems the gift certificates for goods and services offered at ARBEERRRE Em R -
the department stores. The gift certificates are non- BERAAREREETHBRE=
refundable and valid for three years from the date of issue. FREX -
Deferred advertising income BEERESBRA
The Group receives the consideration in advance from ERERARRBATARNEEER
customers for using the Group's product displaying and BRAMESRSER  AEBEgRE
advertising services at a future date. The future obligation to BIEEWHNRE - RARRIBHRE
deliver the services result in contract liabilities being MWEME  BRANBEREER BEX
recognised until the customers receive the service. BERENEZERE -
Reward points under customer loyalty program BHRBHEAT 2EIRE
Under the Group's customer loyalty program, customers who EASEZ BHEBFET 28
participate in the loyalty program can earn one reward point BHEE A E BRI EE 1SR
for every dollar of their spending. For 10,000 points earned, BEU1 9 o BREVE M 10,0009 1% - B8
customers can redeem gift certificate with the face value of B HREESOE T 2ES - %2
HK$50, which can be redeemed for goods or services offered AFAHBRAEARREZERIR
at the department stores. Rewards points earned from HeoBFRAAZTHATZAE
preceding twelve months to 30 June expire on 30 September BMzEIRENAEBRNALA=THE
every year. H -
I i P
A %



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

25. Bank Borrowings

25. RITEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and ~ R1TEERIEITER
analyse as follows: BB WHRIAT DT -
Secured A HEH 11,214,249 11,184,138
Carrying amount repayable based on RahEEA B EERR
contractual repayment dates: H1E :
Within one year* —FRNER" 3,099,958 2,601,552
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRENBBMEF
two years 496,355 494,899
More than two years, but not exceeding MEREBNER=4F
three years 3,970,841 494,899
More than three years, but not exceeding = FIRENERMYE
four years 3,647,095 3,959,193
More than four years, but not exceeding MEREIEBASF
five years —_ 3,633,595
11,214,249 11,184,138
Less: Amount due within one year shown B FIARBAER—
under current liabilities FAEH 2 FHIB (3,099,958) (2,601,552)
Amount due after one year —F 238 2 ;I8 8,114,291 8,582,586

Bank borrowings amounting to approximately HK$603.6 million (2017:

HK$601.6 million) repayable within one year based on contractual

repayment date contained repayment on demand clauses.

nt
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emational Holdings Limiteq

p 15 §

A
nnuaIReDortQ
Ols

#6036 BB ILRITIEE (=T —LF:
601.6BEETT) RIBENERBH—FAE
BEBANERFERGR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

ZE-)N\F+ZA=F+—HILFE

25. Bank Borrowings (continued)
Variable rate borrowings comprise:

25. $R1T

TEE (&)

/7— SN 1E§/‘TT§

Carrying amount

REE
2018 2017
—E2-N\#F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HKS$ bank loans at Hong Kong Interbank ABTTIRTT CREBIRITRER
Offered Rate ("HIBOR") + 0.81% per Eﬂui%o.m E&F B0
annum® 6,963,551 6,948,991
HK$ bank loans at HIBOR + 0.85% per BITIRTT RBABRITRER
annum®@ %j}ﬂi%OSSJ_ FHE@ 3,647,095 3,633,595
Swiss franc (“CHF") bank loans at London I ARNSRITE R R BIEITR
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") + 0.65% EIRENES0L5E B
per annum® 5,795 —
Euro bank loans at Euro Interbank Offered ~ BUZESRTT IRBOMNER T R E A
Rate + 0.65% per annum® Ej]ﬂi%O.éSJ_ B 193,202 166,842
Japanese Yen ("JPY") bank loans at LIBOR + HJTIRTTE R @ R MBERTTR R
0.65% per annum® BNF B0.65E B0 404,606 434,710
Total bank borrowings RITEERTE 11,214,249 11,184,138

m

(3)

The bank borrowings comprised approximately HK$7,000.0
million (2017: approximately HK$7,000.0 million) and were
setoff by approximately a HK$36.4 million (2017:
approximately HK$51.0 million) amortised upfront
arrangement fee paid to financial institution. The amount is
repayable within three years (2017: four years) and interest
rates will be repriced every one month to three months.

The bank borrowings comprised approximately HK$3,691.0
million (2017: approximately HK$3,691.0 million) and were
setoff by approximately HK$43.9 million (2017: approximately
HK$57.4 million) of upfront arrangement fees paid to a
financial institution. The amount is repayable in four years
(2017: five years) and interest rates will be repriced every one
month to three months.

Repayable in one year and interest rates will be repriced one
month to three months.

The range of effective interest rates of the borrowings is 1.54% to
2.89% (2017:1.15% to 1.85%) per annum.

/@%%@Elﬁ’&ﬁ? ==
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

25. Bank Borrowings (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had undrawn banking

25. RITIBE (H&)

RBERBR  AREZ RIEDIRTTRE

facilities as follows: BEMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Floating rate AN
— expiring beyond one year — —F &2 H 7,702,047 8,098,998
26. Bonds 26. B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
Carrying amount repayable: JE1E R RREE ¢
More than three years, but not more than iR = FE BB F
four years 2,334,004 —
More than four years, but not more than BEMNFENERRF
five years —_ 2,324,490
After five years BERF 2,322,495 2,313,151
4,656,499 4,637,641
US$300.0 million bond with a fixed coupon 30008 &X(ILESH - EER
rate of 4.25% per annum, payable semi- FREABIE GEFZN
annually, maturing in October 2022 — R HEE-T_FTHRIH
=3l 2,334,004 2,324,490
US$300.0 million bond with a fixed coupon ~ 300.0B &X7tE% @ BEF =
rate of 4.50% per annum, payable semi- FHEA/BLIS0E  FFEFLHA
annually, maturing in June 2025 —R EBER-ZT-RFSNAFH
p=1ls 2,322,495 2,313,151
4,656,499 4,637,641
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

26. Bonds (continued) 26. B3 (1)

In October 2012, LS Finance (2022) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, concluded a public offering of the
US$300.0 million bonds (equivalent to approximately HK$2,325.0
million). The bonds carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds, issued at discount,
have an effective interest rate of 4.43% per annum. The principal
amount of the bonds is repayable 10 years from the date of issue of
the bonds, i.e. October 2022 and are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Company.

In June 2015, LS Finance (2025) Limited, another wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, concluded a public offering of the
US$300.0 million bonds (equivalent to approximately HK$2,325.0
million). The bonds carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.50% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds, issued at discount,
have an effective interest rate of 4.70% per annum. The principal
amount of the bonds is repayable 10 years from the date of issue of
the bonds, i.e. June 2025 and are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Company.

The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy funding requirements for the
capital expenditure relating to store renovation and new
department store projects. The bonds are subject to redemption, in
whole but not in part, at their principal amounts, together with
interest accrued to the date of redemption, at the option of LS
Finance (2022) Limited and LS Finance (2025) Limited at any time in
the event of certain changes affecting taxes of the British Virgin
Islands and the Cayman Islands. The Bonds also contain a provision
for redemption at the option of the bondholders under certain
conditions at 101% of the principal amount of each bond, together
with interest accrued to the date for redemption, upon a change of
controlling shareholder with respect to LS Finance (2022) Limited or
LS Finance (2025) Limited.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

27. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

27. EEBIBEBEE
UTADHRRY TSEEHBEE EURR
REERBAEENEE

LAT on fair
Revaluation value change
Accelerated of of
tax investment investment
deprecation properties properties Total
IR B 1R REWME LAFESH
e EHMEE Z1MEEH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—-HA—H
(previously stated) (FRTEZ) 65,660 99,891 94,231 259,782
Effect of merger accounting & H SRR 2 FE (126) (46,843) — (46,969)
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—HA—H
(restated) (&51) 65,534 53,048 94,231 212,813
Exchange adjustments R — 814 1,441 2,255
Charge to profit or loss RERNER
(note 11) (MF3E11) 21,015 136,019 — 157,034
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR
(note 31) (PM5E31) — (54,044) (95,672) (149,716)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
(restated) +=—A=+—H
(&51) 86,549 135,837 — 222,386
Charge to profit or loss MBI
(note 11) (M) 7,427 41,459 — 48,886
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H 93,976 177,296 — 271,272

RBEHER  AREERDAFEER
A3138EEB T (ZZ—+4F : #)268.6A
278 JRERER®BET - mRBER
F 57 2 2 DATE R - #0480 b 7 0B RS 18
RIEEHBEE - 5N AERERKEY
Al PR AR AL EE o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$313.8 million (2017: approximately HK$268.6
million) available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset was recognised in respect of tax losses due to unpredictability
of future profit streams. Tax losses in Hong Kong may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

28. Share Capital

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during both

years are as follows:

28. B

RREFE  ARARZBEAREBFENT -

Number of
shares Amount
ROHA I
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at RZZE—tF—H—A"
1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and —E—+F+_A=+—HBK
31 December 2018 —ZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
FRE{EC.0058 T2 EimAx  4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R-_ZE—+F#—H—8-
1 January 2018 —E—+tF+ZA=+t—HBEK
—ZT-N\F—HA—H 1,602,586,500 8,013
Shares repurchased and cancelled iR BE e s (100,670,500) (503)
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—\E+—A=+—H 1501916000 7,510
During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares FERN - ARREBBIMBELEEE LR
through the Stock Exchange as follows: fgan T -
No. of ordinary
shares of Price per share Aggregate
Month of HK$0.005 BREX consideration
repurchase each Lowest Highest paid
BREE
0.0057& T
BmA 5 LHEREE B®IE Be EBRNRELRE
HKS$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHT
June ~A 11,420,500 15.6 16.7 185,921
July +HA 11,710,500 15.8 17.1 194,405
August N\ H 25,151,000 14.4 15.8 379,813
September LA 32,112,500 14.7 15.7 489,317
October +A 20,276,000 13.3 15.5 293,450
100,670,500 1,542,906
The above ordinary shares were cancelled at the end of reporting PR R E AR E RN o

period.

None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

29.

30.

Statutory Surplus Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
were required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reached
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve could be
used to make up prior year losses, if any, and could be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund was maintained at a minimum of 25% of the
registered capital.

Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 3 March 2009 for a period of 10 years for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees. Under the scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to outside third parties for settlement in respect of
goods or services provided to the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are disclosed in the Directors’ Report of this annual
report.

The Group did not grant any share option under the share option
scheme of the Company for both years and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

31. HEHBAE
PLA B EE1ARTIRE R E—FER - A
EEMP T +FMA+-BERHER
BT 38 o 7 52 8 ) 2 RO AR A -

31. Disposal of Subsidiaries
As disclosed in note 14 above, during the prior year, the Group
completed the disposal of its entire equity interest holdings in
Lifestyle Properties Group on 13 April 2017.
REERLEZEERBBERENT

The assets and liabilities disposed of at the disposal date are

disclosed below:

HK$'000
FET
Investment properties wEME 640,435
Property, plant and equipment WE - HE R HE 162,821
Prepaid lease payments TERT I ERIE 568,303
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables BE -~ AR E M e WRRIE 2,770
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZEMEE 102,966
Bank balances and cash WITEFEMRS 412,322
Other payables and accrued charges E b S M BT 5RI8 (11,107)
Tax payable e A (156,695)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE (149,716)
Non-controlling interests FEERR M (605,946)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 966,153
Consideration received BUR(E 1,292,986
Transaction costs attributable to the disposal HEEEZRZ KA (8,168)
Net consideration received EWREFE 1,284,818
Less: Net assets disposed of B HEZFEE (966,153)
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve upon NEEENHEEZEBR Y
disposal to profit or loss ZARE H % 102,178
Gain on disposal & 2 s 420,843
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on disposal: HEEAZEFRERACRL)
Net cash consideration received BRREFEE 1,284,818
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERSZRITEFENRIAS (412,322)
872,496
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

32. Operating Leases 32. REHEY

The Group as lessee AEBERABEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR

Minimum lease payments paid under FRRBEEHEHEN 2 &K
operating leases during the year: A FIA

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRET 78,858 71,600

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
HK$93,505,000 (2017: HK$57,829,000) of contingent rents which were
based on a certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows:

BE-Z-\F+-_A=+—BIEE"
AREZETHEBDEINAREE R
93,505,00078 7T (=% —-4F : 57,829,0007%
) °

RBERER - ARE AT HELER
w2 P B IR RE AR (RREEHE
&) SR TEIF R

2018 2017

—E-N\F “E—iF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within one year —ERX 79.176 75,432
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF(BIEEERFE) 311,631 313,886
Over five years BT E — 45,703
390,807 435,021

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its leasehold land and buildings amounting to
HK$390,807,000 (2017: HK$435,021,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for leasing commercial properties. Rentals payable are
predetermined at fixed amounts except for certain leases of which
contingent rentals are charged based on a certain percentage of
sales. Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one to
five years and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to two
years except for the lease of the Elegance at the Sheraton Hotel at
the junction of Nathan Road and Salisbury Road, Kowloon by Sogo
HK for the period from 15 July 2014 to 14 July 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

32. Operating Leases (continued) 32, KREMAN (A
The Group as lessor AEEERHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RBEREAR  AEERHEBELFTHNA
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: BRIRBLARIEAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F L
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Within one year —F R 2,264 1,811
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_EERF (BEEEMF) 254 958
2,518 2,769
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to BHO—REEAERH - =FH -

three years.

In addition, the Group contracted with its concessionaires and b AEBRABFEREETEEMIR
consignors to receive contingent rentals based on their turnover for HEZHWMSAES sl FHAHH
terms ranging from one to two years. —EMFZEHK -
33. Capital and Other Commitments 33. EXRKHMEE
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Capital and other expenditure in respect of B4R R A R FERREBERE 2
acquisition of property, plant and BEBEADE BELSBEYD
equipment and property development EEREBRA VEANEMEAY
project contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 918,934 1,188,826
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

34.

35.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings and
bonds and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves including retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

Financial Instruments

34.

35.

EXERER

AEEEEEAR  UBRRALE HE
BERERELE  ABEBECESRR
RiEth  ARHEREREDNR A EH
ZBERREELFAR -

AEEZEARBEERTEERES R
AREHEEANELEER (BEEHTRAR
fEwE (BREREEN))

ARREEEHRIEARRERE - tERZIR
A2—#n  ARREEEEBEAKAL
HEBENHEB AR - REAATES
ZE#F AKRERBEBIRNBE - BITH
PR MR AR BT ERLERIRE
ETRATEHERERER -

TRTHA

Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
(Restated)
(E31)
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRZEREE
(note 21) (BF7E21) 3,080,999 3,349,047
Financial assets measured at amortised cost IZHE K ANt 8 2 R EE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEREERRSEED) 6,323,588 7,544,713
Financial liabilities cEAas
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRATFEFABRZEHEARE
(note 21) (Mi5E21) 3,773 —
Financial liabilities measured B#ENATEZ
at amortised cost AR 16,664,410 16,633,511
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35. ERT A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances and
cash, time deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, bank borrowings and bonds.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company and its majority subsidiaries
is the HK$ in which most of the transactions are denominated.

The Group has certain bank balances and time deposits which are
denominated in US$ and RMB (being currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities) amounting to
HK$621,448,000 (2017: HK$1,234,489,000) and HK$26,569,000 (2017:
HK$25,920,000), respectively. Furthermore, the Group has certain
bank borrowings which are denominated in EUR, JPY and CHF
(being currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities) amounting to HK$193,202,000 (2017:
HK$166,842,000), HK$404,606,000 (2017: HK$434,710,000) and
HK$5,795,000 (2017: nil), respectively. Moreover, the Group has
bonds which are denominated in US$ (being currency other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities) amounting to
HK$4,656,499,000 (2017: HK$4,637,641,000).

In addition, certain financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in
US$, EUR, British Pounds, JPY and RMB (being currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities) amounting
to approximately HK$1,653,322,000 (2017: HK$1,283,345,000),
HK$218,061,000 (2017: HK$248,673,000), HK$17,181,000 (2017:
HK$19,658,000), HK$359,191,000 (2017: HK$527,718,000) and
HK$10,137,000 (2017: nil), respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
,,k\\’k‘&

Ng

BRREREEB N REE
$/§.ZIK%H§IE@?§§ETT 17 MR

CEBTER CRATERAERZESR
é{? JE U BR R I b FE MR GRIE - FE
HMENFIE  RITEBERES - Z5 ¢
BMTEFBESENEERE - BILSES/
TEMBEzRRKBEERERR 2 BEE
RTx-ERES EE&EFLED/(:H;& :
VAT AR K B B 75 st BRI & FE 1 o

S B
ARAREKRGFOHBEBRBRZNEEE S
BT BRARBARZIAETTAE

REBABAETUETLRARBENRTT
HEIFERTESHER (EEFENNEEEE LN
2 EE)  H Bl 5621,448,0008 T (&
— 4 1,234,489,0005% 7T) K.26,569, ooo
BT (ZF — 1 125,920,000/ L) °

Gh REBEBH T - B l&iﬁi/ﬁ
Elz(%laﬁfmmﬁaiéimwl\zgﬁ@*a‘ﬂﬁ
MERTTEE - 5 5 A193,202,0007% T (=
T—4F 1 166,842,000787T) + 404,606,000
BT (=T — 4 ¢ 434,710,000 7T) &
5,795,000/ 7L (ZF — 4 : &) o Lo -
REEUET (EEFENMEEEUIINZ
B FHENGES - ©8A4,656,499,00078
T (=T —+4F : 4,637,641,00057T) °

BEoh - AETT - B - B BEIRAR
(EETENIEEBUAIINZEE) HE
MIZAFEFABENETEREE  H
Bl 51,653,322,0008 7T (=T — £ F -
1,283,345,0007% 7T) - 218,061,0005% 7T (—
T — 4 : 248,673,000/ 7T) 17,181,000
BT (Z T —+H4F 19,658,000/ 7T)
359,191,000/ 70 (ZZ —-+4F : 527,718,000
B70) 510,137,000/ T (ZZF—+4F - &) o

ﬁ‘ilfﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁl\ﬁ%“ﬁﬂpﬂlﬁ% o A E
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35. €@ T A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Notwithstanding HK$ is effectively pegged to US$ under the
pegged exchange rate system in Hong Kong, given the Group's
large amount of net liabilities denominated in US$, the Group is still
exposure to the exchange risk of US$ against HK$ within the band of
US$1 to HK$7.75 and 7.85. The Group is also exposed to foreign
currency risk of US$/EUR/JPY against the HK$ and, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, other foreign currency risks are not
significant to the consolidated financial statements and hence no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 0.5% (2017: 0.5%) for exchange rate of US$
against HK$, and 3% (2017: 3%) in the exchange rate of EUR/JPY
against the HKS$, while all other variables are held constant. Those
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
the key management personnel and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign currency
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 0.5% (2017: 0.5%) change in
US$ against HK$ and a 3% (2017: 3%) change in EUR/JPY against
HKS$. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit for the
year where the HK$ weakens against the relevant foreign currency.
Where the HK$ strengthens against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit
for the year and the balances below would be negative.

MEEREERHRBE (&)

SR (4F)
BEBTEEEHBERG THEHETE
8 ERAEEAEAEUETTENFE
& AEBIEEETHBTEREIZET
H77527858 mmE 2 Ak - AEE b E
HEIL/BE BHELBTHINERR
MAARESERE  EMINERBRELZRE
MR RIEAEATE MU EZHRK
REJE DT

TRANAEERETLR B L EELMEE
HI805% (ZF — 4 : 0.5%) ' A REX
B/HBRBTZEERAEHRI%(ZE
—tF :3%) G REEHG T HEET - MAT
EEMEHEETE HEIBERAEN
BB IR 3R SN [ B 5 #5155 PR 52 S5 NS L B
BE . FRETEBYHINEIE RS E
BENTE - RESMERENRED
RUASNESHEREBMIEE - WH0.5% (=
T+ F  05%) IFETLHBILRI%(ZF
—HF 3% 1ERE RAE N BT B EE
THE - THEHERRBTHABEINERE
KRG - fFFEmFIE N o BT AR
HNESTE RIG AR - WFEEMNBRBBET S
BHEEREROTE  FETIEBKEE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —T—+4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

US$ against HK$ ETLRABTT (11,909) (10,599)
EUR against HK$ B 78 W8 7T 746 2,455
JPY against HK$ HE BT (1,362) 2,790

BERERG  ARNEEB 2RI &R
FRRER - SWHEERE DT EE B
not reflect the exposure during the year. BEE [ fgx o

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed coupon rate bonds (2017: fixed-
rate bank deposits and fixed coupon rate bonds). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank deposits and bank borrowings. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction
purposes) at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. No sensitivity analysis is presented in
relation to bank balances as the management considers the impact
is insignificant. A 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used for variable-rate balances when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. The Group's sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period while all other variables were held constant
after taking into account the impact of the tax and excluding finance
costs capitalised in construction in progress and IPUD is as follows:

35. ERT A (&)

B EREER N RBE (H)

FiE 7 B
N5 B B B 6 (& TE A R IR AT E AT R R
EFREANEEFEE A FEMERRE -
(ZZ—+%F - EENFRITEBRFERKE
Emﬁﬂwﬁ%) REBETHBERELTS
TERRBITEEMERSRENER
% o $%liﬁﬂtl4ﬁfﬂ—lﬂ?¥ﬁ¢ﬂ%°

CEEESEEMNERR  INFE
E%%J%%ﬁi*iﬂ(ﬂ%ﬁk R e
AEBEHRSRAERARZHRE - TR

BRBEREEE BRTER CFRERT
EREARZRITER) UARRSFEENE
BRI e R 2 BB MRS F RIS TEE
TE o RITHEF 2 HRED W EZ R IIH
NEEREERATEEAFE -ZRNEIEE
A BN S ERF ERE - SOMEEE (=
T—tF SOﬁEE)i“jJD_JZ/JIQﬁHEA@wu
% TRREEREHMNEAEAEZHN
E e BEMAEMEHEIRTE K&
RMEEMBRENMCRERIRRERZEE
MEZBENAE  AEERREHHELE
EAHFERBEBENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—ALEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit for the 4 PRIBR T 18 & F O 4>) 18 0
year
— as a result of increase in interest rate — BRFE EF (19,600) (19,139)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — AR FIERT[E 19,600 19,139
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative of the BREERS  BRFHEBZRERIT AR
inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect FANRE  WERESFTIEAREREEG N
the exposure during the year. @z o
6@%%@E¥E’Aﬁ :g\/l%%
A %
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35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35. €e®MI A (@|E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EER R BUR (&)
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE 7B R A E
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 KEE}
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31 HFEAREBITHEEMZRSHRNDER
December 2018 in relation to each class of recognised financial CREEEDH  ReEERR - ViERE
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the MR RMZEEE 2 REE ©
consolidated statement of financial position.
Trade receivables JEW IR
Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit card or TEHETEURSET AJURE B
credit card payments. In order to minimise the credit risk, the ErRERARAIR - REEREEER

management of the Group has formulated a defined fixed credit
policy and delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade
balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for bank credit
card receivables at the gross carrying amount of HK$66,290,000 and
those credit-impaired trade receivables at the gross carrying amount
of HK$2,212,000 which are assessed individually, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on the remaining balances at
the gross carrying amount of HK$23,131,000 by using a provision
matrix, grouped by internal credit rating.

The credit risk on bank credit card receivables is limited because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high external
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies
ranging from Aal to Baa2. In addition, the directors of the Company
consider those not credit-impaired trade receivables were
collectible based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Therefore,
allowance for impairment was insignificant and thus negligible to be
made.
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BE YRE-MAR BEEERFEER
BOHEREERERETHMEERS A
REREEHAREB ZENEE - It
S REBERERTEM B REERNE
ORRETRMEAERRAN (2T -+«
FEELBBRER ) BTRRENE -
BRI A RIZ BB E B8R - 5L
- ARBEERE  ARBEZEERR
EARMERD

RNEEE GLE S RS 2R S o5& A
It% S EGEPEREEBENERE
& o BREREA4R(E 566,290,000 TTHIRTTIS
FA = FE U 3Kk K Bk T 48 {E 22,212,000 TT Y
RS EERE R KRR RGN AN E
]335 38 78 1 AR P /S T BRI 4818 45 23,131,000
BB TESRNTEREEBE AR
EMEEFIRELE -

BN Y F 5 RRT /BB E ST REET
RAa1EBaa2 RIMBEEF RN B
B AWRTERFREFNEERRE
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35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, an impairment allowance
of HK$18,000 was made during the year ended 31 December 2018.
The following table shows the movement in loss allowance that has
been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

@I A (F)
B EREER N RBE (H)

=B A B R B E TS ()
JEM SR ()

REERERKEZRME  HE2-ZF—N
F+ZA=+—HIFEE51218,000%
TRV ERE - TRIIRBEE(EDH
FEWAR RN BB R EE

approach.
Life-time ECL
(credit
impaired)
FEMEY
FEEE
(EERE)
HK$'000
FET
As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 BIBEEEGEREIRN
—E—+F+=-A=+—H 2,194
As at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RIEFEMBEREEABIRRN
—E-N\F—-A—H 2,194
— Impairment losses recognised —ERRAEER 18
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+-_A=+—H 2,212

The Group did not write off any trade receivables during the year.

Other receivables, time deposits and bank balances

Other receivables mainly comprise interest receivables due from
banks. The credit risk on other receivables, time deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks/financial
institutions with high external credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies ranging from Aal to Baa2.
Allowance for impairment was insignificant and thus negligible to be
made since the management considers the probability of default is
negligible.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

AT —=
(SPERPO
o8 %

FA - ARG M T AR -

B ERFR  ER A RIRI TR 17

H W R T ERERKIRITHE - @
REFHRRIT/BREEFREEBT R
AalZEBaa2#) = 51 &P 15 & 77 AR A0 & B
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35. €@ I A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
price risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. Details of the
financial assets at FVTPL are set out in note 21.

The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets at FVTPL
at the end of the reporting period while all other variables were held
constant is as follows:

B R B E R B A9 % BOR ()

B /m
AEBRAVFEFABEZEREETZ
HEHEEER 2 AFERE - B - &
SEHERERRAR - BEEEEERET
FER ZIREEEGNEERERRE - A
FEAABEZERMEE 2 FBHNME
21 e

EEMEHERTET  NEERHEH
BHEEAHRAFEFABEZEREE
ZERERGREMNT

HK$'000
FART
2018 —E-N\F
Reasonably possible change in price Bz AlEIREH) 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year F AR R R0 O 2>)
— as a result of increase in price — AR ERIE 143,674
— as a result of decrease in price — AR ERER D (143,674)
2017 —B—+f
Reasonably possible change in price Br& 2 A Ep 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FARRBEEFE MO D)
— as a result of increase in price — A ERE N 156,978
— as a result of decrease in price — A ER R (156,978)
Liquidity risk REE LR

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and bonds as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
available unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately HK$7,702.0
million (2017: HK$8,099.0 million). Details of bank borrowings are set
out in note 25.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.
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35. ERT A (&)

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from an interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable
is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by
reference to the projected interest rates/exchange rates as
illustrated by the interest rate/exchange rate existing at the end of
the reporting period. The liquidity analysis for the Group's derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

Liquidlity and interest risk tables

B EREER N RBE (H)

mBELEE ()

HERME  TwiRiTEETELEN 2T
BENE - BB EIE R E SRR Z RITE NG
ABRRRER - EM3ETE SR A E 2 51
BRE I EER B E -

TREHINMBEAZRER - EFER
RIFBHE - RRSBRBERS R
KR EME

BEAN s TRAJARENITES R TAD
MBS - ZRRBFRBEE2TE
TAERBBACRA) MRHESIE - E/&
NeBIEE  HESESERAFE/
EXR (MAERSBMARRAMNE JEXFTR)
BT ARENTESRIANRIILED
TERABHIHARE AREEER
B AMIMBEETRITETANRSR
BREFTER -

REE 2 R TR

Weighted
average On
effective  demand/ Total
interest less than 1 1-3 3 months Over5 undiscounted  Carrying
rate month months  to 1year 1-5years years cash flows  amount
mEFY  RER/ =f@AR BEER
RBAE —-@AR —E=M@A - -Eif IHEFHUL ReRE fREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FET FEL FEL FiET FiET
31 December 2018 —Z-NF+ZA=+—-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITECRMEE
Trade and other payables e R TR EL At B A 0B 729,224 62,742 1,696 — — 793662 793,662
Bank borrowings — variable rate (note a) RITEE — FEBFIX (Hita) 298% 2,881,888 43,851 454,391 8,663,922 — 12,044,052 11,214,249
Bonds &5 4.38% — — 205538 317702 2,401,853 5784413 4,656,499
3,611,112 106,593 661,625 11,840,944 2,401,853 18,622,127 16,664,410
Derivative — gross settlement FTETA—BBEH
Interest rate swap A& is 5
— Inflow —RA (1,881) (8,343 (2,478) — — (12,702)
— Outflow — 118 3,957 5321 — — 9,39
(1,763) (4,386) 2,843 — — (3,306) (112)
Derivative — gross settlement PTEIA—BREE
Currency swap st
— Inflow —RA — — (17,862) (71,498) (26,867) (116,227)
— Outflow — — 4,181 12,966 68,638 25,698 111,483
— 4,181 (4,896) (2,860) (1,169) (4,744) (3,508)
Derivative — gross settlement THETA —BHEE
Written put options Rk e
— Outflow (note b) — it (i EEb) 180,206 153,420 — — — 333,626 12,880
ROA] —=
Y £8 B T Na
% ES
EN %
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35. €@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies B R EE R N RBEK (&)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEEZEE ()

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) TEE R RFIEERE (E)

Weighted
average On
effective  demand/ Total
interest less than 1 1-3 3 months Over5 undiscounted  Carrying
rate month months  to 1year 1-5 years years cash flows  amount
NEFY RERS =R BIER
REFE -@BAR —E=@A E-% -ZHEF HEFEULE ReRE RREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHET FET FET FHT FHT

31 December 2017 ZT—+F+-A=t—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTECRMEE

Trade and other payables FEATBR TR E A PR 3K — 748487 40,443 22,802 — — 811,732 811732

Bank borrowings — variable rate (note a) iﬂfﬂ’ig FE & (MTEa) 1.91% 2,622,964 27,695 129,085 9,155,249 — 11,934,993 11,184,138

Bonds &% 4.38% — — 182,211 3,163,050 2,606,588 5,951,849 4,637,641

3,371,451 68,138 334,098 12,318,299 2,606,588 18,698,574 16,633,511

Derivative — gross settlement fTETA—@

Written put options Rb R
— Outflow (note b) — i (Ff5Eb) 169,09 142,714 — — — 311,763 34,057

Notes: i}

(@) Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the (@) M‘JMH?Eﬂiﬁ?ﬁ\ﬂmﬂﬂ'\ﬁﬂfﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂi’i
“on demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity WRERRERL—EA AR - R =F
analysis. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal —N\F+ZRA=+—H  ZEFURRT
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HK$603.6 million (2017: BEFAEHRIE*036BEB T (ZT—+
HK$601.6 million). Taking into account the Group's financial position, the F:601.6BEEBTT) c ERIIAEE NI
directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks R ARBEFHERITIGITEIERE
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. ZREIREE FAMEE - ARABREENR
The directors of the Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid R EMRITERER BiRE HERE—F
within one year from the end of the reporting period in accordance with the W?ﬁzaggrﬂﬁu%ﬁ'h% HHEIEE - B &
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, MRS | SR e 1% 2603.8E & T
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$603.8 ZE—+F:601.8BEETT) ©
million (2017: HK$601.8 million).

(b) The amount included above for written put options is the maximum amount (b) BT Rh Bt s RO R RE R B - anBRE R

the Group is obliged to settle under the written put option arrangements if
the underlying index or ETF go to zero upon the exercise or expiry of the
written put options. Certain written put options amounting to
HK$77,574,000 (2017: HK$77,934,000) are included in the “on demand or
less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis as those
options could be exercised at any time before the expiration dates. The
remaining written put options are included in the respective time bands
according to the expiration dates of the options since the options could
only be exercised on those dates. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Group considers that it is very unlikely that such an
amount will be payable under the written put option arrangements as the
chance of the index or ETF dropping to zero is remote. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the market volatility of
underlying index and ETF of the written put options, and final settlement
price of the options along with other factors.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments

for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ from the estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Liquidity risk (continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are

35. ER T A (&)

ERMITAZATEFE

mBELEE ()
AEEZEF N FlEFAEN 2 BEER
EHMEEZNFE

AEEHOEREENEREBEBEESER
SHRBRATFESE - TREHRARLD

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,

the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

MEEZEeREELREREBBENRTE
(LERMETEMERNBAZE) -

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and

Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy key input(s)

tREE AR NFER AVEERRE HEFZNIEHANZE

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NE “E—tHF
+=A +=A
=t-H =t-A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET

Financial assets at FVTPL

RAVEFTAERZEREE

1. Listed equity securities 1,736,759 2,442,198 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active markets.

LHRE Eh— WERTSROEAR
2. Listed debt securities 434,833 8,743 Level 2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
LHES EH= BHIRFHHRE o

3. Listed investment funds 455,275 506,250 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions. (note)

IHREES 5= ERERMERBRRENTISER - (M)

4. Unlisted hedge funds 161,017 153,648 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions. (note)

FLmEhEe 5= ERERMERBHRHENTISER - (M)

5. Unlisted investment portfolios 280,082 158,130 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions. (note)

FrmREda 5= EREIEHNEREBIRENOTIHER - (D)

6. Written put options 12,880 34,057 Level 2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.

Roh 8- SR HTIHHBRE -
7. Unlisted equity-linked notes — 46,021 Level 2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
FEmRERBES EH= BHNRBHIHHRE o

8. Interest rate swap 153 — Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on forward
interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

pilpgect: EH- BRARLRE  ERNERNE (UREHRBEIBERRETHR) NEH
HE BZRREZXZHUFNEERRER R RRRLRE -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

BATEFABEZERMER

9. Interest rate swap 265 — Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on forward
interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

ME £h= RBRARLRE  ERNERNE (UREPRBEIBRRRETHR) NEH
M BZERMEZXZHFHEERRER B RKRLRE -

10. Currency swap 3,508 — Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on
difference between predetermined forward exchange rates and spot
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties.

ERES 0= HERRERE  ERNTEREXNRE BRENAERNZF] #R
MEZGHFOEERBRIXER  BARRRERE -

%%@Emﬁﬂ =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

35.

Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Note: Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial institutions
represent the net asset value of the respective funds, based on the quoted
prices of the underlying investments, reported to the trustee by the

administrators.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during both years.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values:

35. €@ T A (&)
SRMIAZAVENE (&)
ABELER (&)
REBEE M AFEHENEREER
SREETAFE(E)

T EAKLEHNSREBIRENTISERIRE
AERAERAZTA  RIBEABRERE
EEZRESEETFE-

E—R B_EANME=ZRZzHAESERE
FHEY BEMEE -

RNV EFERGERRE

BRERTR RNRAREERR EREHM
BHRRILEERTIENEREEMNS R
BENEREEREAFERS -

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—E-N\F+ZA=+—-H | ZE—tF+tZA=1+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE ATE BREA NFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Financial liabilities - h=L
Bonds (EE 4,656,499 4,423,729 4,637,641 4,659,102
Fair value hierarchy NFEEZREE
31 December 2018
—E-N\Fg+=ZH=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ Eo&/ B=MH wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FHET FHERT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRAFEFABRZZ SR
BE
— Listed equity securities — FTRE 1,736,759 - — 1,736,759
— Listed debt securities — FWEFH — 434,833 — 434,833
— Listed investment funds — FREES — 455,275 — 455,275
— Unlisted hedge funds — 3 EHEAES - 161,017 - 161,017
— Unlisted investment portfolios — I EMEREMRE — 280,082 — 280,082
— Written put options — Roh B —_ 12,880 —_ 12,880
— Interest rate swap — 7| %4 BY — 153 — 153
Total KBET 1,736,759 1,344,240 — 3,080,999
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: BAFEFABRE S/
afE:
— Interest rate swap — ) S B — 265 — 265
— Currency swap — E& 5 5 — 3,508 — 3,508
Total st — 3,773 — 3,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 # =

36.

“E-N\F+A=+-HILFE

35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35. e®WMI A (@)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP ESEHRER (E)
31 December 2017
—E—tF A=+~
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
— & E_R E=H HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 H K$ 000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET THET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFABZ EREE:
— Listed equity securities — ERE 2,442,198 — 2,442,198
— Listed debt securities — tHEE — 8,743 — 8,743
— Listed investment funds — T REES — 506,250 — 506,250
— Unlisted hedge funds — MR ES — 153,648 — 153,648
— Unlisted investment portfolios — TR EHES — 158,130 — 158,130
— Written put options — ROL B — 34,057 — 34,057
— Unlisted equity-linked notes — L TREEHBRE — 46,021 — 46,021
Total #Et 2,442,198 906,849 — 3,349,047
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing 36. BEFHEL N EBEYIR
Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAMKEEREBREZDHNEEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B aERekIRe¥H HEIHE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash FNEBRECEALEREREMNERT
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's "fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁiﬁzfﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\] LA 3R SR &Y
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BERAEBNZEE -
activities.
Cash
consideration
paid upon
Accruals of Payable in  acquisition of
Commitment relation to  an entity under
Bank Interest fee for bank Dividend  repurchase common
borrowings Bonds payable borrowings payable of shares control Total
Wi - R iR
EHTHER
B BTHEE B IR 43 PEL T
RITEE &% ERRE EHER ERRE  ZERER ReRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiET FiET TEL FET FiEn FiET FET
At 1 January 2017 WoE—+&—f-H 8,376,248 8,481,249 114,260 3417 - - — 16975174
Financing cash flows RERST 2,760,155 (4,098,406) (202,867) (12446) (1,012,835 - - (2,566,399)
Exchange difference [EH =S 22,862 29,719 145 — — — — 52,726
Interest expenses FlexH 24,873 189,569 745 13,767 — — — 228,954
Capitalisation of interest expenses BERMMEFEZ H — 35,510 120,292 — — — — 155,802
Dividends declared BERRE — — — — 1,012,835 — — 1,012,835
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+—-H 84,138 4,637,641 32575 4,738 — — —  15859,092
Financing cash flows BERSR (1,583) (205,694) (232,062) (17,178)  (1042446)  (1,542,906) (520000 (3,093,869)
Exchange difference EREE 3514 11,876 — — — — — 15,390
Interest expenses FEXH 28,180 177,166 60,568 16,273 - - — 282,187
Capitalisation of interest expenses BEMEFEE H — 35510 176,875 — — — — 212,385
Dividends declared BERRE — — — — 1,006,188 — — 1,006,188
Dividend declared to Majestic Eagle /& T Majestic Eagle 2 I8 - — — - 36,258 — — 36,258
Share repurchased BinER — — — — — 1,542,906 — 1,542,906
Non-cash item FRELER — — — — — — 52,000 52,000
At 31 December 2018 WoE-\E+=A=+-8 11,214,249 4,656,499 37,956 3,833 - - — 15912537
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

37. Pledge of Assets 37. EEER
At 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain leasehold land RZZE-—NF+A=+—8 FEEE
and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values of approximately REBENR/I27ABBET(ZE—tF
HK$1,217.4 million (2017 (restated): HK$1,262.8 million), together (E3)) :1,26028BBEBIT) UREBZET
with certain shares of the Company'’s certain subsidiaries, to secure HELHREF ERAQAFAETHER
banking facilities of HK$8,000.0 million (2017: HK$8,000.0 million) AETROER  ERREBERIRTH
granted to the Group. In addition, financial assets at FVTPL with a B & #8,0000B BB L (2T —+F -
carrying value of approximately HK$1,256.7 million (2017: 8,000.0B &#E L) ~ s - REELN A
HK$1,427 .4 million) have been pledged to secure loan facilities in 1,256 7B BT RATFES ABRZE
the amount of approximately US$255.0 million (equivalent to MEE(ZS—tF 14274888 1E
approximately HK$1,996.7 million) (2017: US$255.0 million RIS L255.08 =T (HERL
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,991.6 million)). 1,99 7BEBT)(ZE—+F : 255088
ETXEERLIINBEEL)) ERE
EFE o
Moreover, the entire Kai Tak Project, comprising the construction in AN - BRE4R(E9,185. 7B BB L (ZE—+
progress and IPUD, with an aggregate carrying value of HK$9,185.7 FH+ZA=1+—H:84162B8HT) HE
million (31 December 2017: HK$8,416.2 million) was pledged to EREEE (RELTEIREREEEREY
secure the HK$9,000.0 million loan facility granted to the Group for ¥)BEHEHUREETASENERR AR
financing the development of the Kai Tak Project. As at 31 9,000.0F &I - AERNREERIER R
December 2018, HK$3,691.0 million was utilized (2017: HK$3,691.0 MEE -R_F-\FF+_A=1+—8"
million). EEMA3N0EERTZBEAR (ZF—+1
F:3691.088ET) °
38. Related Party Disclosures 38. FRAEALTIHE
(a) Transactions (@ X3
During the year, the Group entered into the following FA-AEEGHEUTEHEBEAL
significant transactions with the following related parties. EITTIERRS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
(Restated)
(&%)
Nature of related parties transactions HEABEATHIZHEE
(i) Rental expenses paid to subsidiaries of (i) M F & BB A E 22
Lifestyle China Hex — 129
(i) Project management service income (i) [A1 48 5 BBt /&8 2 AU ER 2
from subsidiaries of Lifestyle China 18 B8 B RBUA — 3,237

Note:

All of the above related party transactions were conducted in accordance

with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the contracting parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

38. FRAEALTIHE@®

38. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors being the key
management personnel, were determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company having regard to
the performance of the individuals and market, details of
which, together with the other three (2017: three) highest paid
employees, are disclosed in note 13.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The total cost charged to profit or loss from continuing operation in
respect of the above mentioned schemes amounted to
HK$8,924,000 (2017:HK$8,608,000).

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance ("ORSO Scheme”)
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”).

For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employee contribute 5% of the employee'’s relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. No forfeited
contribution was available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group at 5% of the employee’s remuneration.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

PRC

Before the disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group, the employees of
the Group in the PRC were members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the respective local governments in
the relevant jurisdictions. The Group was required to contribute and
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes was to make the specified contributions and
recognise the respective retirement pay in accordance with terms
set out in the schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

/@%%@Em’&ﬁ ==
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

40. T EMBEARFE
RZZE-N\FRZZE—+F+_A=+—

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place/Date of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid share capital/ Attributable equity interest

B ARBZEEMBRAFEAT

Name of company establishment and operation registered capital of the Group (note) Principal activities
HEMARL RIREELH
Pkt =F BRORES ERRE AEBEGES (HE) - EEXHB
2018 2017 2018 2017
“®-NE| ST+ | C®-NE| STtk
Anfield Capital Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
6 September 2011 SRERE
ABRAREE
—E-—FAARA
Broad Shine Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
BEREBRAF 2 January 2013 SRIRE
ERHERREE
“F-=%-AZH
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
MAEBRBRAA 21 August 1987 leasing
EE NERBELEE
—“AWNEENRZ+—H
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
KERRBRAF 17 November 2000 leasing
EE hNERELEE
ZEZTET-ATtH
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  License holder
BRBERAF 11 September 2003 BITEREE A
&
“EE=FAA+T-R
Forceworld Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
ARREBERAA 15 July 1988 leasing
0 MERBNREE
—WN\A\E+A+TER
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$3 US$3 100% 100%  Investment holding
12 December 2003 RAER
KBRBREE/ BB
“ERR=F+-A+=A
Global Top Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HK$1 100% —  Restaurant operator
tRERARF 12 January 2006 EERE
EE
“EERF-A+ZA
Glory Line Management Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property
BREERERAA 5 September 1995 security and
EE management services
—ANEFAAER RENERL RERRS
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
BEFRAT 7 February 2001 leasing
0 MERBREE
ZEZ-F-A+H
e “\temaﬁonal Holdings Limited Annya Repo,t
\ie® 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 40. T EMBE R EIFE (&)

Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Attributable equity interest

Name of company establishment and operation registered capital of the Group (note) Principal activities
MR/ IR EELY
NAEH =k ERTRES ERBE REBEEGRER (M) TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-NEF TE4AF | ZB-N\F | ZEF
Knight Prosper Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 — 100% —  Financial investment
6 March 2018 2RERE
EBERRES
“E-N\F=ZAKA
Leading Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HK$1 100% 100%  Advertising
BRAERAF 2 September 2016 35
0
—E-R"¥AAZR
Leader Bright Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HK$1 100% 100%  Properties development
ERERAA 18 December 2015 mEER
EE
—E-RETZATN\H
LS Finance (2022) Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
27 September 2012 mE
KBEMRES/ /BB
“E-CHEAAZTER
LS Finance (2025) Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
2 June 2015 E
HBEAREE/ B
—T-hFAZH
Pacific Trump Development Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
MEHREEARAR 6 July 1995 leasing
&k NEBEREE
—NWARFEARE
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
HEFRAF 30 August 1984 leasing
0 NEREREE
—AW\EENA=TH
Ronson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Club operator
5 October 1993 BHEE
&t
—AN=FTALHA
Sogo Hong Kong Company Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
Limited 23 September 1983 TEEK
Sk (BE)BEBRAA 0
—AN=FAAZT=H
@ERAE —z
P\ Mg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

40. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place/Date of incorporation/

40.

FEMBE2RFE (&)

Issued and fully paid share capital/ Attributable equity interest

Name of company establishment and operation registered capital of the Group (note) Principal activities
AMRL, RIREEGY
Pkt BE BRATRES ERERE AEBEGES ()  EEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-NF TR E | ZB-NF | DT +F
Starbeam Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
30 October 2014 SRERE
“E-mETA=TH
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Property holding and
3 April 2001 leasing
HBABRES/BE NEREREE
—FT-FWA=RA
Tycoon Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
23 October 2014 ERKRE
EBERMRARES
“E-mETA-T=A

Note: LS Finance (2022) Limited and LS Finance (2025) Limited are directly held by

the Company. Other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity

Principal place of business

ff5E © LS Finance (2022) Limited & LS Finance
(2025) Limited R AR A EEFA o EAbH
BARRBEAARMEERS -

FRNRIIEARREERRIETE
SEXEREEZHBRR - ARAES
RBA - REEOHBARENSEEFHE
B o

RMEHEAR - ARRZ EM B A RE
REBEBEEARTE - IEZEME LA
EEBRLE ZEMBRA 2 EFEXEBH
N

Number of subsidiaries

FTEXEH TELEME MELRHEE
2018 2017
=205 —TtF
Securities investment Hong Kong 3 1
EHRE &t

temational Holdings Limiteq
n
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 018 B ZE — T — NF+_A=+—HIFE

41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of 41. QA BERRRRRBE
the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the RBERAR - ARRMBEHRARERS
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: &
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets IEMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB A A= 4,194 4,194
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) JRE s B B R B 3R (M 5Ea) 13,206,462 13,434,806
13,210,656 13,439,000
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H e U SRR 1,042 1,117
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b) JE W BT B R B IE (Y Eb) 222,164 191,999
Bank balances and cash RTEEFERRE 96,991 179,527
320,197 372,643
Current liabilities mBEE
Other payables H i JE < F0IE 3,513 2,718
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) FEASHBY /B A A ZR B (i 3Ec) 12,333,671 12,512,669
Tax payable JE# 1A 440 170
12,337,624 12,515,557
Net current liabilities mEBAEREE (12,017,427) (12,142,914)
Net assets EEFE 1,193,229 1,296,086
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital i 7,510 8,013
Reserves (note d) R (B sEd) 1,185,719 1,288,073
1,193,229 1,296,086
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= 4 B 7 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Bl ZE —E —\F+_A=+—HILFE

41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of
the Company (continued)

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as follows:

41.

RA TR TR ()

ARFBEESDIOT -

Capital
redemption Retained

reserve profits Total
BEAXREERE RERF Loy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET FET
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—HF—H 687 643,738 644,425
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 78 [& & | 2 2 H A B 58 — 1,656,483 1,656,483
Dividends paid BIRATRE — (1,012,835  (1,012,835)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 687 1,287,386 1,288,073
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ANF i@l 2 E U A 258 — 2,446,237 2,446,237
Dividends paid BIRME - (1,006,188)  (1,006,188)
Share repurchased [ B 1) 503 (1,542,906)  (1,542,403)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+_A=+—H 1,190 1,184,529 1,185,719

Notes:

As at 31 December 2018, the amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured
and have no fixed repayment terms. An amount of HK$4,003,496,000 (2017:
HK$3,698,000,000) bears prevailing interest rate and the remaining amount
of HK$9,202,966,000 (2017: HK$9,736,806,000) is interest-free. In the
opinion of the directors, based on their assessment as at the end of the
reporting period of the estimated future cash flows from the subsidiaries,
the amount due from subsidiaries will not be repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period, accordingly the amount is classified

as non-current.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and

repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, the amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured
and repayable on demand. An amount of HK$6,003,496,000 (2017:
HK$5,698,000,000) is interest bearing and the remaining amounts of
HK$6,330,175,000 (2017: HK$6,814,669,000) is interest-free.

The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2018
consisted of retained profits of HK$1,184,529,000 (2017: HK$1,287,386,000).
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BIL) mat R MERT6,330,175,00008 7T (=
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEEERE

Results XE
For the year ended 31 December BHE+—_A=T—HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\F | ZE2—tF 2R —Z-nF  C—Z-MmOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 H K$’OOO HK$'000

THET TET T TEL TET
Continuing Continuing  Continuing
operation operation operation
EH b BE
BExH K E 3 BEER
(Restated)  (As Reported)
(&71)) (Mm&|E)

(Note 1)
(BzE1)
Turnover s 4,358,010 3,755,092 4,671,971 6,171,393 5,969,740
Profit attributable to owners ARFHEBA
of the Company BRI R 1,690,070 2,875,674 1,600,907 1,914,392 2,143,994
Earnings per share (HK$) BREM(BT)
— Basic —EXK 1.08 179 1.00 119 1.31
— Diluted — &% N/A N/A N/A N/A 1.31
Total dividends per share (HK cents) Bk a8 (BIL) 66.5 63.2 63.2 63.2 59.1

Continuing operations refer only to the Group’s department store FHELEEBEBAEES IR _E—RERZ
operations in Hong Kong following the spin-off of Lifestyle China Group & —+F 2 H1&8 Bl 5 & K & T 4@ i 2= & (2]

and disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group in 2016 and 2017 respectively. & REBNBERAIER-
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“EB-N\F | ZE—tF TR ZE-hF CZT-MWmF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT TR FHET THT
(Restated)  (As Reported)
(83)) (ERE)
(notes 2 & 3)
(P3E283)
Total assets BEMAE 20,567,503 | 21363554  21,117336 28804274 26,847,895
Total liabilities BREB (17,636,119)| (17,484,888)  (18,669,420)  (15,708,143)  (13,858,982)
Net assets BEFE 2,931,384 3,878,666 2447916 13,096,131 12,988,913
Non-controlling interests JEEfR — — (597,542 (1,973,072) (1,886,546)
Net assets attributable to owners $’z§ﬂff§ﬁ/\ﬁ7§1ﬁ
of the Company BEZE 2,931,384 3,878,666 1850374  11,123059 11,102,367
Net assets per share (HK9) gREEFE(ET) 1.95 242 153 8.17 797
Net assets per share attributable RARGEB AL
to owners of the Company (HK$) BREEFEGEL) 1.95 242 1.15 6.94 6.81
Number of shares issued BREIRNEE 1,501,916,000 | 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500  1,629,385,000
Notes: Bz -
(1) The definition for turnover has been changed effective from 1 January 2018 (1) REREBYBIMEENFEISHE  SEBOER
following application of the HKFRS 15. RZZE—-N\F—A—BRBE®RE-

) The acquisition of Global Top Limited has been accounted for using merger (2 Wit S ERARERAAHEE AR =%
accounting, respective corresponding figures in 2017 have been restated. — L FMEEREFEES -

€) The Group completed the disposal of its entire 59.56% equity interest in Lifestyle  (3) K;EKﬁé:%*tie%&Hﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁw.%%ﬂﬁ
Properties Development Limited in 2017. WEBRRARAD R ZKRE -
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Property under Development

BEPYE

Attributable
Gross Nature of interest to Category Stage of Expected Lot
Descriptions floor area Site area property  the Group of lease  completion completion number
BEE K5E
R [ B ER NERE ks HEER THRER BRI TR
sq.m. sg.m.
TR Trk
1. Property under development 101,900* 14,159 Commercial 100% Medium Under End of 2022 6557
located at New Kowloon Inland EES FH development T ZFFR
Kai Tak, Area 1E RS
Site 2, Kowloon, Hong Kong
IREBNERESIER2 AN
MNERBRZERTNE
* Approximately 49.5% of the development is expected to be for own use. * 18 B #949.5%FastEB A ©
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Lifestyle

International Holdings Ltd.

AlodE BB B AR A

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

NEEBREEGRAR
(RASEEEMRIHBERATF)
BB ST BB 5555%
RAHFL201E

Tel E&E: (852) 2833 8338

Fax{EE&: (852) 2838 2030

Email EFB: info@lifestylehk.com.hk
www.lifestylehk.com.hk

FSC

www/sc.org

MIX
Paper from responsible sources
REARENRAE RN ER
FSC™ C102904
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